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OFFERING MEMORANDUM CONFIDENTIAL

TPK

TPK Holding Co., Ltd.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability)

US$400,000,000
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2014
Issue Price: 100.0%

We are offering US$400,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2014 (the “Bonds”).
The Bonds will mature on April 20, 2014 at 100% of their principal amount. The Bonds will not bear any interest. The Bonds
will be convertible into our common shares, par value NT$10.00 per share (the “Shares” or the “Common Shares”), during the
period from and including May 31, 2011 to and including April 10, 2014 at a conversion price which will initially be
NT$1,071.84 per Share (subject to adjustment as set out in “Description of the Bonds—Conversion — Adjustment to the
Conversion Price”) with a fixed exchange rate of NT$29.065 = US$1.00 applicable on conversion of the Bonds. The Shares are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (the “TWSE”) and are subject to certain restrictions on trading imposed by the rules and
regulations of the TWSE. See “Risk Factors — Risk Relating to Ownership of the Bonds and Our Shares.” On April 13, 2011,
the closing price of the Shares on the TWSE was NT$812.

At any time, we may redeem the Bonds then outstanding at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal
amount thereof, in whole but not in part, if the principal amount of the Bonds that have been redeemed, repurchased and
canceled, converted is more than 90% of the aggregate principal amount originally issued. We may also redeem the Bonds then
outstanding, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof, if, as a
result of certain changes in the laws or regulations of the Cayman Islands or the Republic of China (the “ROC”) occurring on or
after April 20, 2011, we become obligated to pay Additional Amounts (as defined herein).

You may require us to redeem the Bonds, in whole or in part in integral multiples of US$100,000, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof if the Shares cease to be listed or admitted to trading on the TWSE or
if there is a Change of Control (as defined herein).

We have received approval in-principle for the listing of the Bonds on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the
“SGX-ST”). The SGX-ST assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any statements made, opinions expressed or reports
contained in this offering memorandum. Admission of the Bonds to the Official List of the SGX-ST is not to be taken as an
indication of the merits of our company or the Bonds. Prior to this offering, there has been no market anywhere for the Bonds, or
any market outside the ROC for the Shares.

INVESTING IN THE BONDS INVOLVES RISKS THAT ARE DESCRIBED IN “RISK FACTORS” BEGINNING
ON PAGE 9 OF THIS OFFERING MEMORANDUM.

Neither the Bonds, nor the Shares, have been or will be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“U.S. Securities Act”) or any state securities laws, and are being offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in
accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, and outside the ROC. The Bonds are sold subject to restrictions on
transferability and resale and may not be transferred or resold except as permitted under the U.S. Securities Act and the
applicable securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction pursuant to registration thereunder or exemption from registration. As a
prospective purchaser, you should be aware that you may be required to bear the financial risks of this investment for an
indefinite period of time. For a description of restrictions on transfers of the Bonds, see “Transfer Restrictions” and “Plan of
Distribution.”

The Bonds will be represented by one or more global certificates (each a “Global Bond”) and will be fully issued in
registered form, which will be registered in the name of a nominee of and shall be deposited with a common depositary for,
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream”). Beneficial interests in the
Bonds will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, records maintained by Euroclear and Clearstream
and their participants. Except as described herein, individual definitive certificates for the Bonds will not be issued in exchange
for interests in the Bonds. The Initial Purchasers expect to deliver the Bonds to purchasers on or about April 20, 2011.

Joint Global Coordinators and Joint Bookrunners

JPMorgan NOMURA

This offering memorandum is dated April 13, 2011
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You should rely only on the information contained in this offering memorandum. Neither we, nor the
joint bookrunners, have authorized anyone to provide you with different information. Neither we, nor the joint
bookrunners, are making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should
not assume that the information contained in this offering memorandum is accurate as of any date other than
the date on the front cover of this offering memorandum. Our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

Having made all reasonable inquiries, we confirm that this offering memorandum contains all
information with respect to our company and our subsidiaries and affiliates described in this offering
memorandum, the Bonds and Shares that is material in the context of the issue of the Bonds, and that the
information in this offering memorandum is true and accurate in all material respects, and is not misleading in
any material respect, and that the opinions and intentions expressed in this offering memorandum are honestly
held and that they have been reached after considering all relevant circumstances and are based on reasonable
assumptions.

The Bonds are offered in reliance upon certain exemptions from the registration requirements under the
U.S. Securities Act for an offer and sale of securities that does not involve a public offering in the United
States. This offering memorandum is personal to you and does not constitute an offer to any other person or
to the public generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Bonds. In making a purchase of the Bonds,
you will be deemed to have made the acknowledgments, representations and agreements provided in the
section of this offering memorandum entitled “Transfer Restrictions.”

In making an investment decision regarding the Bonds, you must rely on your own examination of our
company and the terms of this offering, including the merits and risks involved. The contents of this offering
memorandum are not to be considered as legal, business, financial or tax advice. You should consult your own
counsel, accountants and other advisors as to legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects of a purchase
of the Bonds.

The laws of some jurisdictions may restrict the distribution of this offering memorandum and the offer
and sale of the Bonds or the Shares. To purchase the Bonds, you must comply with all applicable laws and
regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which you purchase, offer or resell the Bonds or possess this
offering memorandum. You must also obtain any consent, approval or permission required for your purchase,
offer or sale of the Bonds under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which you are subject
or in which you make such purchase, offer or resale. None of our company, the joint bookrunners and our and
their respective representatives is making any representation to you or any person regarding the legality of any
investment in the Bonds or the Shares, by you or any person under applicable legal investment or similar laws
or regulations. This offering memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell to you or any person, or a
solicitation of an offer from you or any person to buy any of the Bonds or the Shares, in any jurisdiction
where it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

Some of the market data included in this offering memorandum is based on independent industry
publications or other publicly available information. Although we believe that these independent sources are
reliable, we have not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of this information.

Unless otherwise indicated, all financial information, descriptions and other information in this offering
memorandum regarding our financial condition and results of operations as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 are presented on a consolidated basis. Our consolidated financial
statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have been audited. All our
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial
Statements by Securities Issuers,” other applicable ROC laws and regulations, and generally accepted
accounting principles in the ROC, collectively referred to as “ROC GAAP” in this offering memorandum.
ROC GAAP differs in many significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in certain other
countries.

No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made by the Trustee, the Registrar, Paying Agent,
Conversion Agent or Transfer Agent or any of their affiliates or advisors as to the accuracy or completeness of
the information set forth herein, and nothing contained in this offering memorandum is, or should be relied
upon as a promise or representation, whether as to the past of the future. None of the Trustee, the Registrar,
Paying Agent, Conversion Agent or Transfer Agent have independently verified any of the information
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contained in this offering memorandum and assume no responsibility for its accuracy or completeness. By
accepting delivery of this offering memorandum, you acknowledge that you have not relied on the Trustee, the
Registrar, Paying Agent, Conversion Agent or Transfer Agent or any of their affiliates in connection with your
investigation of the accuracy of the information in this offering memorandum or your investment decision.

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Substantially all of our directors and executive officers, and
certain of the experts named in this offering memorandum are residents of the ROC, and a significant portion
of the assets of our company and these persons are located in the People’s Republic of China, or the PRC,
and the ROC. As a result, it may not be possible for you to effect service of process upon our company or
these persons outside of the ROC or the PRC, or to enforce against any of their judgments obtained in courts
outside of the ROC or the PRC.

The laws of Cayman Islands do not clearly indicate whether a final civil judgment obtained from
Taiwan courts, or an ROC Court Judgment, can be enforced in the Cayman Islands. Nevertheless, where the
following requirements are met, the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands will recognize and enforce an ROC
Court Judgment without any re-examination of the merits at common law if: (1) the judgment at issue is final
and conclusive; (2) the ROC court rendering the judgment was competent under the conflict of law rules of
the Cayman Islands; (3) the judgment (i) clearly sets out the obligation of the debtor to pay for a liquidated
sum in accordance with the decree and does not involve any obligation of paying any penalty, tax, fine or
other similar financial obligations, or (ii) grants a non-money relief to a particular person (under certain
circumstances); and (4) the judgment obtained does not contravene the fairness and justice or public policy of
the Cayman Islands, and the recognition and enforcement of the judgment is not contrary to the fairness and
justice or public policy of the Cayman Islands. Where the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands does not
recognize an ROC Court Judgment, such judgment will remain unenforceable in the Cayman Islands even if
an investor has obtained a final judgment in the ROC. Investors should be cognizant of risks pertaining to the
purchase of securities issued by a foreign issuer.

Ogier, our counsel as to Cayman Islands law, has advised us that there is uncertainty as to whether the
courts of the Cayman Islands would, respectively, (1) recognize or enforce judgments of United States courts
obtained against us or our directors or officers predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities
laws of the United States or any state in the United States, or (2) entertain original actions brought in the
Cayman Islands against us or our directors or officers predicated upon the securities laws of the United States
or any state in the United States. Ogier has further advised us that the uncertainty with regard to Cayman
Islands law relates to whether a judgment obtained from the United States courts under civil liability
provisions of the securities laws will be determined by the courts of the Cayman Islands as penal or punitive
in nature. If such a determination is made, the courts of the Cayman Islands will not recognize or enforce the
judgment against a Cayman Islands company. Because the courts of the Cayman Islands have yet to rule on
whether such judgments are penal or punitive in nature, it is uncertain whether they would be enforceable in
the Cayman Islands. Ogier has further advised us that a final and conclusive judgment in the federal or state
courts of the United States under which a sum of money is payable, other than a sum payable in respect of
taxes, fines, penalties or similar charges, may be subject to enforcement proceedings as a debt in the courts of
the Cayman Islands under common law.

Lee and Li, Attorneys-at-Law, our special ROC counsel has advised us that any final judgment obtained
against us in any court other than the courts of the ROC in respect of any legal suit or proceeding arising out
of or relating to the Bonds, or the Shares, will be enforced by the courts of the ROC without further review of
the merits only if the court of the ROC in which enforcement is sought is satisfied with the following:

° the court rendering the judgment has jurisdiction over the subject matter according to the laws of
the ROC;

° the judgment and the court procedures resulting in the judgment are not contrary to the public
order or good morals of the ROC;
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° if the judgment was rendered by default by the court rendering the judgment, (i) we were duly
served within a reasonable period of time within the jurisdiction of such court in accordance with
the laws and regulations of such jurisdiction, or (ii) process was served on us with judicial
assistance of the ROC; and

° judgments of the courts of the ROC are recognized in the jurisdiction of the court rendering the
judgment on a reciprocal basis.

A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in the ROC would, except under limited circumstances,
be required to obtain foreign exchange approval from the Central Bank of the Republic of China (Taiwan) for
the remittance out of the ROC of any amounts recovered in respect of the judgment denominated in a
currency other than NT Dollars.

Further, Leaven Attorneys-at-Law, our PRC counsel advises us that the recognition and enforcement of
foreign judgments are governed by the PRC Civil Procedures Law. PRC courts may recognize and enforce
foreign judgments in accordance with the requirements of the PRC Civil Procedures Law based either on
treaties between the PRC and the country where the judgment is made or on reciprocity between jurisdictions,
provided that the foreign judgments do not violate the basic principles of laws of the PRC or its sovereignty,
security or social and public interest.
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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS, CONVERSIONS AND CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

Except where the context otherwise requires, all references in this offering memorandum to “we”, “us”
or “our company” are to TPK Holding Co., Ltd. itself, or to TPK Holding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries and
affiliates, as the context required. All references to “Taiwan” or the “ROC” are to Taiwan and other areas
under the effective control of the Republic of China. All references to the “ROC Government” are references
to the government of the Republic of China. All references to “ROC GAAP” and “US GAAP” are to
accounting principles generally accepted in the ROC and the United States, respectively. All references to the
“PRC” are to the People’s Republic of China.

As the Shares are listed on the TWSE, our financial statements are required to be presented in New
Taiwan Dollars, the lawful currency of the ROC. All references to “United States Dollars,” “US Dollars” and
“US$” are to United States dollars, and references to “New Taiwan Dollars,” “NT Dollars” and “NT$” are to
New Taiwan dollars. Therefore, our financial statements presented herein are translated from US Dollars into
NT Dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date, except for the amount issued common stock with
the par value of NT$10 which shall be translated at the historical exchange rate as required by the ROC
regulations. The exchange rates from US Dollars to NT Dollars as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010
were NT$32.80 = US$1.00, NT$32.03 = US$1.00, and NT$29.13 = US$1.00. The average of spot rates for
buying and selling published by Bank of Taiwan on April 13, 2011 was NT$29.02 = US$1.00. No
representation is made that the NT$ or US$ amounts referred to in this offering memorandum could have
been or could be converted into US$ or NT$, as the case may be, at any particular rate, the above rates or at
all.



SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made forward-looking statements in this offering memorandum. Our forward-looking
statements contain information regarding, among other things, our financial condition, future expansion plans
and business strategy. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and
projections about future events. Although we believe that these expectations and projections are reasonable,
such forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including,
among other things:

° the intensely competitive industries in which we operate;
° industry risks;

° general economic, political and social conditions and developments in Taiwan, the PRC and other
jurisdictions in which we operate our business;

° our ability to meet financial and other covenants provided under our loan agreements;
° market acceptance of our products;

° risks associated with the introduction of new products;

° legal proceedings; and

° other risks identified in the “Risk Factors” section of this offering memorandum.

EEINT3 EEINY3

The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “seek” and similar
words identify forward-looking statements. In addition, all statements other than statements of historical fact
included in this offering memorandum are forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such
expectations will prove correct. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In light of the foregoing and the
risks, uncertainties and assumptions in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this offering memorandum, the

ELINT3 LTINT3 9 ¢ LTINT3

forward-looking events in this offering memorandum are not guarantees of future performance and might not
occur and our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in those forward-looking statements.
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SUMMARY

The following is only a summary and it may not contain all the information you should consider before
deciding to invest in the Bonds. You should read this entire offering memorandum carefully, including the
“Risk Factors” section and the financial statements and related notes.

Overview

We are the leading provider of glass-based projected capacitive, or P-Cap, touch solutions. We believe
our competitive strengths result from our technological leadership, vertically integrated production capabilities,
high standard of operating discipline, and economies of scale. Having maximized these competitive strengths,
we have solidified our first-mover advantage and forged long-term collaborative relationships with most of our
major customers, many of them are leading mobile and consumer electronics devices innovators in the world.
We are in the forefront of the technology revolution whereby touch technologies, in particular, P-Cap, are
increasingly integrated into mobile and consumer electronics devices, such as smart phones and tablets. Our
P-Cap touch solutions offer feather-like, intuitive and multi-touch enabled user experiences, which are the key
features that are increasingly desired by end-users. As P-Cap touch modules are expected to increase from
US$3.2 billion in 2010 to US$5.6 billion in 2012, according to DisplaySearch, we believe we are well
positioned to capitalize on the increasing demand for touch solutions and in particular, demand for glass-based
P-Cap touch solutions.

Since our inception, we have devoted our resources to design, develop, and market glass-based P-Cap
touch solutions. Our undivided focus on the glass-based P-Cap touch technology has enabled us to formulate
our technology roadmap and make strategic and operational decisions based solely on our customer
requirements. We believe that our focused efforts have enabled us to establish our leadership in the
glass-based P-Cap touch solutions, and achieve industry-leading yield rate and manufacturing efficiency. Due
primarily to our comprehensive understanding of the touch manufacturing process and in-house
equipment-building capability, we are able to make accurate and timely capital investment decisions to expand
our capacity. We will continue to dedicate our resources to further advancing P-Cap touch solutions, such as
manufacturing process improvement, production technology enhancement, new product structure and
alternative raw materials, with the aim to stay ahead of technology roadmap and widen our product offerings.

Our vertically integrated production capabilities have enabled us to provide our customers with
comprehensive and efficient product solutions. Leveraging on our ability to provide total solutions, we are
able to meet our customers’ specific demand while reducing the time-to-market of their products. Our
customers are also benefitted from the economies of scale of our large-scale and centrally located
manufacturing facilities, which provide highly efficient and cost-effective solutions to our customers. Our
monthly module lamination capacity for glass-based touch modules increased from 1.8 million units of
3.5-inch modules as of December 2007 to 8.0 million units of 3.5-inch modules and 2.0 million units of
10-inch modules as of December 2010. We plan to expand our monthly module lamination capacity for
glass-based touch modules to 14.0 million units of 3.5-inch modules and 6.0 million units of 10-inch modules
by the end of June 2011.

We have enjoyed rapid growth in recent years. Our net operating revenue increased from NT$12,942.3
million in 2008 to NT$59,598.8 million (US$2,046.0 million) in 2010, representing a compound annual
growth rate, or CAGR, of 114.6%. Our consolidated net income attributable to shareholders of the parent
company increased from NT$388.5 million in 2008 to NT$4,741.6 million (US$162.8 million) in 2010,
representing a CAGR of 249.4%.

Our Shares have been listed on the TWSE since October 2010 under the stock code “3673.” On April
13, 2011, the closing price per Share on the TWSE was NT$812 per Share and our market capitalization was
NT$181,942.8 million (US$6,259.9 million).




Competitive Strengths

We believe our leading position in the glass-based P-Cap touch solution market is to a large extent
attributable to the following strengths:

Pure Play Touch Solutions Provider;

Vertical Integration to Provide Total Solutions;

Proprietary and Efficient Production Process;

Close Collaboration with Industry Leaders; and

Experienced Management Team with Proven Technology and Operational Record.

Strategy

We plan to implement the following principal strategies to further strengthen our leading position in the
touch solutions industry:

Enhance Partnerships with Existing Major Customers while Diversifying Customer Base;
Strengthen our Vertical Integration;

Expand our Addressable Markets; and

Optimize Our Cost Structure.

Recent Development

As announced on the Market Observation Post System, our consolidated net operating revenues for
January, February and March 2011 was NT$6.9 billion, NT$8.1 billion and NT$10.3 billion, respectively. The
consolidated financial data for January, February and March 2011 has not been audited nor reviewed by our
auditor and is subject to adjustments based upon, among other things, completion of applicable reporting
processes. Actual results could differ materially from the financial data provided above.




The Offering

The following summary contains basic information about the Bonds and is not intended to be complete.
It does not contain all the information that is important to you. For a more complete understanding of the
Bonds, please refer to the section entitled “Description of the Bonds” in this Offering Memorandum.

Issuer .. ....... ... ... ... ..., TPK Holding Co., Ltd.

Offering . ................... US$400,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Zero Coupon
Convertible Bonds due 2014, to non-U.S. persons outside the
United States (in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S.
Securities Act) and the ROC in offshore transactions.

Interest . . . ... ... .. .. ... .. The Bonds will not bear any interest.

Lock-up ....... ... .. .. .. ... We and several shareholders holding an aggregate of 42.0% of our
total issued and outstanding share capital as of December 31,
2010, have agreed that, subject to certain exceptions, for a period
of 90 days after the date of this offering memorandum, we and
those shareholders will not, without the Initial Purchasers’ prior
written consent, offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of
any of our securities that are substantially similar to the Bonds or
Shares, including but not limited to any securities that are
convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to
receive, Shares or any such substantially similar securities. See
“Plan of Distribution.”

IssueDate................... April 20, 2011

Maturity Date and Final Redemption . Unless previously redeemed, repurchased and canceled, or
converted, the Bonds will mature on April 20, 2014 at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal
amount thereof.

Issue Price. . . ....... ... .. ... 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds.

Ranking . ........ ... .. .. ... The Bonds will be our direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured (but subject to a negative pledge, as described in
“Negative Pledge” below) obligations, and will rank pari passu
among themselves and with all of our other direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations.

Conversion . ................. Subject to certain conditions, each holder of the Bonds (a
“Holder”) will have the right during the Conversion Period (as
defined herein) to convert its Bonds (or any portion thereof being
US$100,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple thereof)
into Common Shares at anytime from May 31, 2011 to April 10,
2014 (or if the Bonds are called for redemption prior to the
Maturity Date, on the date seven days prior to the redemption
date), provided, however, that the Conversion Right during any
Closed Period (as defined herein) shall be suspended and the
Conversion Period shall not include any such Closed Period.

See “Description of the Bonds — Conversion” and “Risk Factors
— Risks Relating to Ownership of Bonds and Our Shares —
There are limitations on your ability to exercise conversion
rights.”




Conversion Price .. ............

Redemption
Company

at the Option of the

Additional Amounts . ...........

Tax Redemption. . .. ...........

Redemption
of Control

in the Event of Change

Subject to changes to ROC laws and regulations, we shall as soon
as practicable but in no event more than five Trading Days (as
defined herein) from the Conversion Date (as defined herein) issue
Common Shares to the converting Holders.

The conversion price will initially be NT$1,071.84 per share with
a fixed exchange rate applicable on conversion of Bonds of
NT$29.065 = US$1.00. The conversion price will be subject to
adjustments for, among other things, subdivision or consolidation
of shares, right issues, distributions, stock dividends, and other
dilutive events. See “Description of the Bonds.”

We may redeem the Bonds, in whole but not in part, at any time,
on not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice, if more than
90% in principal amount of the Bonds originally issued has been
redeemed, repurchased and canceled, or converted, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof.

Payment of principal on the Bonds will be made without
withholding for or on account of certain taxes of the Cayman
Islands, the ROC or such other jurisdiction in which we are then
organized or resident for tax purposes to the extent set forth under
“Description of the Bonds — Additional Amounts.”

If, as a result of certain changes relating to the tax laws in the
Cayman Islands, the ROC or such other jurisdiction in which we
are then organized or resident for tax purposes, we become
obligated to pay Additional Amounts, the Bonds may be redeemed
at our option, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof; provided that
such right cannot be exercised earlier than 45 days prior to the
first date on which we would be obligated to make an Additional
Amounts payment with respect to all or substantially all of the
outstanding Bonds. Bondholders may elect not to have their bonds
redeemed but with no entitlement to any Additional Amounts or
reimbursement of additional tax. See “Description of the Bonds —
Redemption for Taxation Reasons.”

Unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed, repurchased and
canceled, or converted, each Holder shall have the right, at such
Holder’s option, to require us to redeem all (or any portion of the
principal amount thereof which is US$100,000 or any integral
multiple thereof) of such Holder’s Bonds at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof upon
the occurrence of a Change of Control, as defined herein. See
“Description of the Bonds — Redemption of the Bonds in the
Event of Change of Control.”




Redemption in the Event of
Delisting . . ................

Negative Pledge . . . ... .........

Form and Denomination . ........

Settlement . . . ................

Governing Law . ..............

Trustee

Unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed, repurchased and
canceled, or converted, in the event that the Shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the TWSE, each Holder shall have
the right, at such Holder’s option, to require us to redeem all (or
any portion of the principal amount thereof which is US$100,000
or any integral multiple thereof) of such Holder’s Bonds on the
20th Business Day after the Paying Agent mails to each Holder a
notice regarding such delisting at a redemption price equal to
100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof. See
“Description of the Bonds — Redemption of the Bonds in the
Event of Delisting.”

Subject to certain exceptions, we will not, and will procure that
none of our Principal Subsidiaries (as defined herein) will, create
or permit to subsist any Lien (as defined herein) to secure for the
benefit of the holders of any International Investment Securities
(as defined herein) any sum owing in respect thereof or any
guarantee or indemnity thereof without making effective provision
to secure the Bonds (a) equally and ratably with such International
Investment Securities with a similar Lien or (b) with such other
security as shall be approved by registered holders of the Bonds
holding a majority of the outstanding Bonds. See “Description of
the Bonds — Certain Covenants — Negative Pledge.”

The Bonds will be issuable only in book-entry form and only in
denominations of US$100,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
The Bonds will be represented by the Global Bond. On the closing
date of the Offering, we will deliver the Global Bond to Citibank
Europe plc as common depositary. If (i) at any time the Common
Depositary advises the Company in writing that it is unwilling or
unable to continue as a depository for the Global Bond and a
successor depository is not appointed by the Company within 90
days, (ii) either Euroclear or Clearstream or any alternative
clearing system on behalf of which the Bonds evidenced by the
Global Bond may be held is closed for business for a continuous
period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or
otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease
business or in fact does so, or (iii) an event of default has
occurred and is continuing with respect to the Bonds and the
Trustee notifies the Company in writing that any of the Bonds
have become immediately due and payable pursuant to the
Indenture, the Company shall issue individual certificated bonds in
registered form in exchange for the Global Bond in any authorized
denominations and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the
principal amount of the Global Bond.

The Bonds have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear
and Clearstream on a book-entry system. Settlement of the Bonds
may take place through Euroclear and Clearstream in accordance
with the settlement procedures applicable to debt securities in the
Euromarket.

The laws of the State of New York.

Citicorp International Limited




Listings. . ... ....

Trading Market for Our Shares. . . . .

Use of Proceeds . . .

Transfer Restrictions

We have received approval in-principle for the listing of the Bonds
on the SGX-ST. The Bonds will be traded on the SGX-ST in a
minimum board lot size of US$200,000 for so long as the Bonds
are listed on SGX-ST. We have undertaken to list the Shares
issued upon the conversion of the Bonds on the TWSE. The
Shares will not be listed on the SGX-ST.

The only trading market for the Shares is the TWSE. Our Shares
have been listed on the TWSE since October 2010 under the stock
code “3673.”

The net proceeds from this offering will be approximately
US$397.3 million, representing gross proceeds of US$400.0
million, deducting underwriting discounts and concession and
other offering expenses of US$2.7 million. We will use the net
proceeds of this offering to fund, through capital increases in and
shareholder loans to TPK Glass Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. and
Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc., the expansion of production
facilities for cover glass and touch sensors and acquisition of
relevant machinery and equipment.

This offering is being made pursuant to Regulation S under the
U.S. Securities Act. The Bonds and the Shares have not been and
will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or with any
securities regulatory authority of any state in the United States or
other jurisdiction. The Bonds may only be offered, sold or
delivered outside the United States (as defined in Regulation S
under the U.S. Securities Act) to persons other than U.S. persons
in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S, and outside
the ROC, in each case in accordance with any other applicable
law.




Summary Financial Information

The selected financial information has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 included elsewhere in this offering
memorandum. These financial statements have been audited by Deloitte & Touche, independent certified
accountants. Our consolidated financial statements are presented in conformity with the Guidelines Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and accounting principles generally accepted in the
ROC, which differs in many significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in certain other
countries, such as US GAAP. You should read the following selected financial information together with our
financial statements included elsewhere in this offering memorandum.

Year ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions, except per share information)

Statement of income data

Net OpPerating IEVENUE .......c.ccueveuerreeererreieeeeereieereseeneenenenes 12,942.3 18,708.8 59,598.8 2,046.0

Cost Of 00dS SOId......cueuiirieeriieieieireieeeee e (11,187.7) (14,472.9) 49,581.8 1,702.1

GIOSS PIOFIL...cuiueriieiieieiiinietcierieteice ettt 1,754.6 4,235.9 10,017.0 343.9

OPpErating EXPENSES........c.evrveveuererrerereriereresertesesereesesereseseneneas (1,262.4) (1,623.6) 3,784.6 129.9

Operating iNCOME ......c.coveueruirieieiniiieienteree et 492.2 2,612.3 6,232.4 214.0

Non-operating income and gains ............cccceceeierccnieeenns 119.8 58.3 107.9 3.7

Non-operating expenses and losses (218.2) (106.4) (407.0) (14.0)
Income before INCOME taAX.......covveeerieereeerieereeeeeeereeeree e 393.8 2,564.2 5,933.3 203.7

INCOME tAX EXPENSES. ...iurrirenrenirieeenieteteneeieseeeereeteneeaeseeeenes (5.3) (254.2) (1,185.4) (40.7)
Consolidated net INCOME .........ccevrverieiuereeirieeeeiieeeeieeeeeieeeenns 388.5 2,310.0 47479 163.0
Attributable to:

MINOTILY INEEIESES. c.ueeieiiiititenieie ettt — (7.0) 6.3 0.2

Shareholders of the parent company ............cocceceeveveenenne 388.5 2,317.0 4,741.6 162.8

Fully diluted earnings per share of the parent..................... 2.06 11.82 23.03 0.79

As of December 31,

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions)
Balance sheet data

CASN. e 527.9 1,670.9 5,564.0 191.0
Accounts and notes receivable, net ..........cccoeeeeieiieeneennen. 720.0 835.0 11,998.9 411.9
INVENLOTIES. ... cveeiviiiieieieeiet ettt 1,022.4 971.3 3,055.9 104.9
Total current assets..................ccccvevveeeeieereeeereecieereeeeienens 2,543.3 4,269.4 22,287.0 765.1
Total property, plant and equipment.............ccoeevevereereennne. 5,302.4 5,959.2 17,972.8 617.0
TOtAl ASSELS........cvouieiieieiiieieeeiceeee ettt 8,566.2 10,989.7 41,929.3 1,439.4
Short-term loans (including current portion of long-term

LOANS) ...ttt 2,057.5 1,649.9 3,656.5 125.5
Accounts and notes payable...........coeerererirenieieeneeeene 2,197.9 2,203.5 13,926.5 478.0
Total current liabilities..... . 5,311.6 5,042.4 23,441.1 804.7
Long-term loans (net of current portion)..........ccceccevevevenneee. — 594.9 3,604.5 123.7
Total labilities.............ccoooeivinniiiinicccccene 5,324.0 5,669.9 27,136.4 931.6
Total shareholders’ equity .............ccccocevevirenecinineineee 3,242.2 5,319.8 14,792.9 507.8




Year ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions)

Cash flow data

Net cash provided by operating activities ..............cccceueueuee 2,123.6 3,097.6 5,940.8 203.9
Net cash used in investing activities ..........coccoeeererecerennne (1,751.5) (2,025.7) (11,652.5) (400.0)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. (263.1) 88.2 9,668.4 331.9
Cash increase from acquisition of a subsidiary.................... — — 9.4 0.3
Effect of exchange rate changes ...........ccocoovveveieeveinennene (132.5) (17.1) (73.0) 2.7
Net increase (decrease) in cash.........cccoeveeirencineneninennnn, (23.5) 1,143.0 3,893.1 138.8
Cash at beginning of Year .........cccoceeveenerieinencineneeece 551.4 527.9 1,670.9 52.2
Cash at the end of year.......c..cccecevivieencnieiiniccceeee 527.9 1,670.9 5,564.0 191.0
Capital expenditure™ ..........c.ccoovieieieieiieiiniee e 1,809.2 1,409.2 10,711.2 367.7
Depreciation and amortization ..............cceeeeeereeeerererenennenns 499 .4 699.6 1,059.4 36.4

1

This refers to the amount of cash used in connection with the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

As of December 31,
2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions, except percentages)

Other financial data

Gross Margin® ..........cc.coouovverveeieieieieeeeeeese e 13.6% 22.6% 16.8% 16.8%
Operating margin® 3.8% 14.0% 10.5% 10.5%
Net Margin®® .......co.ooveveiverieieeieie s 3.0% 12.3% 8.0% 8.0%
Adjusted EBITDA®® oo 991.6 3,311.9 7,291.8 250.4
Adjusted EBITDA margin®© . 7.7% 17.7% 12.2% 12.2%

()]
2
3)
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Gross margin represents gross profit divided by net operating revenue.

Operating margin is calculated by dividing operating income by net operating revenue.

Net margin is calculated by dividing net income after taxation by net operating revenue.
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating income, plus depreciation and amortization.

Adjusted EBITDA margin is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net operating revenue.

We have presented Adjusted EBITDA because we consider it an important supplemental measure of our operating performance
and believe it is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies in our industry.
Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA as an additional measurement tool for purposes of business decision-making, including
developing budgets, managing expenditures and evaluating potential acquisitions or divestitures. Other companies in our industry
may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do. Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure of operating performance under ROC
GAAP and should not be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, operating income prepared in accordance with ROC GAAP.
Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of
our results as reported under ROC GAAP. You are encouraged to evaluate these adjustments and the reasons we consider them
appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, you should be aware that in the future we may incur
expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in this presentation. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA
should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items.




RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Bonds involves risks, and you should carefully consider the risks described below before
making an investment decision. In addition, you should also carefully consider all of the information
contained in this offering memorandum, including our financial statements and related notes. You should note
that we are governed in the Cayman Islands, the ROC and the PRC by a legal and regulatory environment
that in some material respects may be different from that prevailing in other countries.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We are highly dependent on the mobile device and other portable device industries which are competitive
and face price decline and other competitive pressures over the life cycles of their products.

We operate in the fast-growing mobile device and other portable device industries. In 2008, 2009 and
2010, sales related to mobile devices accounted for 92.4%, 91.0% and 96.5%, respectively, of our net
operating revenue. Starting from 2010, we have also focused on providing touch solutions for tablets.
Accordingly, we are vulnerable to product life cycle, as well as changes in the global demand and inventory
adjustment for mobile devices and other portable devices. If the global mobile device and other portable
device markets grow more slowly than expected, our business, results of operations and financial condition
would be adversely affected.

The mobile device and other portable device industries are characterized by rapidly changing
technology, including enhancements in hardware functionality and performance, and user preferences, evolving
industry standards and the frequent introduction of new products and enhancements. As a result, the prices of
our products tend to decline over the product life cycle, reflecting product obsolescence, decreased costs of
input components, decreased demand, increased competition as more manufacturers are able to produce
similar products in large quantities and improvement in production yield rate, which places downward
pressure on prices.

As the markets for our products are very competitive, we have continued to experience pressure on our
prices and margins. Rapid technological advances and aggressive pricing strategies by our competitors may
continue to increase competition. In order to remain competitive, we must continue to improve our materials
supply chain, foster productional self-sufficiency, reduce design time, upgrade technology and manufacturing
process and introduce new products to the market in a timely manner. To mitigate the effects of price declines
in our existing products and to sustain margins, we constantly seek to improve production efficiency by
vertical integration, reducing input component costs and lowering operating costs. Our ability to do so
depends on factors both within and outside of our control and may be constrained by the distinct
characteristics and production requirements of individual products. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to continue to improve production efficiency and maintain reasonable margins for all of our existing
products, or that we will be able to successfully introduce new products that are able to command higher
margins.

Some of our competitors may have superior financial, marketing, manufacturing, research and
development and technological resources, greater brand name recognition and larger customer bases than us.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully with such competitors. Our failure to
compete successfully or future declines in product prices and margins could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

Our expansion into the tablets industry entails certain risks.

A tablet produced by one of our key customers has recently gained market popularity, and a portion of
our net operating revenue in 2010 was related to this product. The tablets industry, however, is a newly
emerging industry which is characterized by rapidly changing technology and user preferences, constantly
evolving industry standards and frequent introduction of new products and enhancements. Moreover, the
industry is marked by significant and rapid changes in the technology standards and product specifications
required by touch modules manufacturers. As a result, there is no guarantee that tablets, and in particular,
tablets produced by our customers, will continue to maintain or increase in market popularity. Moreover, if the
demand for such devices increases, it is likely that competition will increase substantially as new entrants
enter the market to capitalize on the expected growth in demand. A number of consumer electronics



companies have begun to introduce tablets in the near- to medium-term. These new entrants may manufacture
products utilizing different or more advanced technologies which may achieve greater market acceptance than
the technologies provided by us. There can be no assurance that our current customers will continue to
maintain their market shares.

We rely heavily on certain key customers in the mobile device and other portable device industries for our
revenues and our results of operations may be adversely affected by a reduction of business from our key
customers.

We rely heavily on a small group of customers for a very substantial portion of our net operating
revenue. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, sales to our largest customer accounted for 49%, 46% and 73% of our net
operating revenue, respectively. In aggregate, sales to our two largest customers accounted for 82%, 66% and
83% of our net operating revenue in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

There is no assurance that we will retain the business of our existing key customers or the desired level
of business from them. Many of our existing key customers’ products are characterized by rapidly evolving
technology that requires different design specifications each time a new product is introduced or an existing
product is enhanced. The loss of or reduction in any key customer’s business as a result of our inability to
meet the design specifications of such key customer, its exclusion from a key product introduction cycle or
any other reason would materially and adversely affect our results of operations. Moreover, as our customers
introduce new products, it may materially reduce the number of shipments of older product modules. Also, we
would have difficulty in securing comparable levels of business from other customers to offset any loss of
revenue from the loss of any of our key customers.

Our profitability also depends on the performance and business of our key customers. Accordingly, risks
that could seriously harm our key customers could harm us as well, including:

° loss of market share for our key customers’ products;

° recession in our key customers’ markets;

° failure of their products to gain widespread commercial acceptance; and

° our key customers’ inability to manage their operations efficiently and effectively.

The launching and market acceptance of particular mobile devices or other portable devices of
individual key customers could have a significant impact on our product and customer mix, resulting in
significant volatility in the demand for our products and our results of operations. It is also possible that this
key customer’s market shares with respect to its most popular mobile and portable devices may decline as its
competitors introduce new products, which could adversely affect our results of operations, particularly if we
are unable to sell our products to such competitors. Furthermore, sales of our key customers’ products are
subject to seasonal fluctuation.

Although we are in the process of diversifying our customer base, we expect that we will continue to
depend on a relatively limited number of customers for a significant portion of our net operating revenue. The
loss of one or more of our key customers or any reduction or delay in their orders could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and future prospects.

Our concentration on touch solutions may not be successful.

We have dedicated all our resources and research and development efforts to the design, development
and provision of integrated touch solutions based on glass-based P-Cap touch technology. This concentration
entails certain risks. In particular, we have incurred significant capital and research and development
expenditures in developing glass-based P-Cap touch technology and production capabilities, and we intend to
invest considerable additional expenditure to expanding our capacity for touch modules as well as major
components including touch sensors and cover glass. There can be no assurance that enough demand will
continue to be generated for the solution and products we offer to recoup the costs incurred in association
with developing these products, facilities and technologies.

Moreover, as the demand for touch solution and products increases, it is likely that new entrants will
enter the market to capitalize on the expected growth in demand. This increase in competitors could result in
more intense price competition and potential oversupply of touch modules and displays. Furthermore, our
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existing customers may accredit additional suppliers, which could reduce the proportion of their business that
they direct to us. Meanwhile, such competitors may offer touch solutions and products that achieve greater
market acceptance than the touch modules and displays we provide. We may also have difficulty in adapting
our production processes if there are alternative technologies and products that achieve market popularity.

There is a risk that new entrants or manufacturers that have previously focused on technologies such as
TFT-LCD panels will begin offering touch solutions and products more quickly than we expect, which could
result in more intense price competition and potential oversupply of touch modules and displays of the type
that we produce or might produce in the future.

Our results of operations depend on our ability to keep pace with product innovations and technological
changes; if we cannot respond rapidly and effectively to technological changes, introduce new products on
a timely basis or if our new products do not gain market acceptance, our profitability will suffer.

Our products have short life cycles due to frequent product introductions, rapidly changing technology
and evolving industry standards. In addition, the life cycles of new products have shortened over time,
reducing the time during which manufacturers can benefit from the higher prices typically associated with the
early phases of a product life cycle. Our success will depend in part on our ability to keep pace with
technological developments and evolving industry standards as well as our ability to respond to evolving
customer requirements by evolving our current products and developing and introducing new products. In
addition, new or alternative technologies including film-based P-Cap touch technology or in- or on-cell touch
technologies may also take away our existing customers or increase the difficulty for us to broaden our
customer base. If glass-based P-Cap touch technology is outperformed or proven less cost-efficient than the
new or alternative technologies, our business, results of operations and financial condition will be materially
and adversely affected.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to develop new products through our
research and development efforts, or that we will be able to keep pace with technological changes in our
market or that new products we introduce will gain market acceptance. Technological advances may lead to
rapid declines in prices and sales volumes for products made with older technologies, which may cause our
products to become less competitive in the marketplace or even obsolete. As a result, we may be required to
make significant expenditures to acquire and develop new technologies and equipment. Failure to anticipate or
respond rapidly to technological advances or to adapt our products appropriately because of our lack of
financial or technical resources, or the failure to gain market acceptance of any new products we introduce,
would have a material adverse effect on our business, competitive position, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our profit margins may decrease in future periods as a result of the prevailing market price of touch
modules and displays and the change of our product mix.

While the rapid growth in demand for touch modules and displays is expected to continue, the
prevailing market prices of touch modules and displays, however, may decrease as the relevant technologies
mature. In addition, as manufacturers of touch modules and displays expand their production capacities, the
supply of touch modules and displays may increase significantly in the near future, therefore further reducing
the prevailing market prices of touch modules and displays. The reduction in the prevailing market prices of
touch modules and displays will have a negative impact on our profit margins.

Our product mix has affected, and is expected to continue to affect the average selling price of our
products and our gross margin. We offer touch modules as well as touch displays, which consist of our touch
module and a display panel sourced from external suppliers. As a result, our touch modules typically have a
lower average selling price but yield a higher gross margin. Sales of touch modules constituted a majority of
our total net operating revenue in each of 2008, 2009 and 2010. If the sales of touch displays as a percentage
of our net operating revenue increase in the future, the shift would have negative impact on our gross
margins, because sales of our touch modules generally yield higher margins than sales of our touch displays.

Our business may be adversely restrained by exclusivity restrictions with our customers.
We may from time to time enter into supply and other agreements which contain restrictive covenants in
relation to the exclusivity of certain of our products and technologies. These restrictive covenants typically

prohibit us from conducting certain actions in the course of our operations, including the application of certain
technologies for products of other customers and the selling or distributing of certain products to other
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customers. These exclusivity restrictions may limit our ability to offer certain products and technologies to our
other customers, which in turn may adversely affect our business and competitiveness. Any failure to comply
with such restrictive covenants will constitute a breach of contract and give rise to claims which may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, there can be no
assurance that we will not enter into similar exclusivity arrangements with other customers in the future in
relation to our other products and technologies.

If our customers place lower than expected orders, our business may be adversely affected.

As is customary in our industry, we do not obtain firm and long-term volume purchase commitments
from our customers. Although we have entered into sales agreements with our key customers which normally
include general terms of sale, specification requirements and pricing policy, such agreements generally do not
specify a minimum purchase volume. The precise terms for each shipment, such as pricing, product
specifications and quantities, are normally confirmed at the time each order is placed. Accordingly, we face
the risk that our customers might place lower than expected orders, if at all, or cancel existing orders.
Although the customers might be contractually obliged to purchase products on specific terms from us for
particular orders, we may be unable to or, for other business reasons, choose not to enforce our contractual
rights if the customers terminate their orders. Cancellations, reductions or instructions to delay production by a
significant customer could materially and adversely affect our results of operations by reducing our sales
volume, as well as by possibly causing a delay in the customers’ repayment of our expenditures for inventory
and resulting in lower utilization of our manufacturing facilities, all of which may result in us realizing lower
gross margins. Furthermore, any real or perceived technical problems, defects or redesign of our customers’
products may have an immediate negative impact on the shipment of such products, which in turn may result
in a decrease in our overall monthly shipment. Consequently, our monthly results of operations may be
adversely affected and subject to fluctuations.

In addition, we make major decisions, including expanding production capacity and determining the
levels of business that we will seek and accept, production schedules, component procurement commitments,
number of personnel and other resource requirements, based on estimations of customer requirements. The
short-term nature of our customers’ commitments and the rapid changes in demand for their products reduce
our ability to accurately estimate future customer requirements. This makes it difficult to schedule production
and limits our ability to maximize the utilization of our production capacity.

Increases in costs for or shortage of supply of our raw materials and components could decrease our
profitability.

The costs of raw materials and components constitute the majority of our cost of sales. The major raw
materials and components used in the production of our touch modules include glass substrate, cover glass
and flexible printed circuits, or FPCs. We currently source our principal raw materials and components from a
number of third-party suppliers. We source our glass substrate from Asahi Glass Co., a flat glass manufacturer
based in Japan, and other glass manufacturers. The major suppliers for our cover glass are Fuji Crystal
Manufactory Limited and Shenzhen Lens Technology Co., Ltd., formerly known as Wingyan Craystal Co.,
Ltd. We also outsource some of the touch sensors used to produce touch module from certain external
suppliers. The FPCs used in our production are sourced from various leading FPC suppliers. While the prices
of the major raw materials and components used in our production process have been relatively stable during
the past several years, there can be no assurance that a significant increase in the price of our raw materials or
components will not occur. Increases in the costs of our raw materials and components would increase our
cost of sales and we may not be able to pass on all or any of such increased costs to our customers. This may
result in decreases in our gross margin and adversely affect our profitability.

In line with industry practice , we do not have long-term supply contracts with our suppliers. A shortage
of any key raw materials or components could limit the number of units we are able to produce, and is likely
to increase the costs of our products, thereby depressing the margins for our products to the extent that we are
not able to pass on the increased costs to the customers. Due primarily to production capacity limitation, we
have, from time to time, experienced shortage in the supply of cover glass. Although we have not experienced
any significant shortage in supply of other raw materials and components, nor do we have significant
concentration or reliance on a single supplier, there can be no assurance that a significant shortage will not
take place in the future. Further, although we produce a number of components in-house, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to continue to do so in a cost-effective manner.
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Our operations and those of our customers and suppliers are vulnerable to natural disasters and other
events beyond our control, the occurrence of which may have an adverse effect on the supply chain of our
customers and suppliers and on our facilities, personnel and results of operations.

Our operations and those of our customers and suppliers are vulnerable to natural disasters including
earthquakes, tsunami, typhoons, droughts, floods, power losses and similar events. We cannot guarantee that
such future events will not cause material damage to our, our customers’ or suppliers’ facilities or property,
including work in progress, or cause significant business interruptions. Although we maintain property and
business interruption insurance for such risks, there is no guarantee that future damages or business loss from
earthquakes will be covered by such insurance, that we will be able to collect from our insurance carriers,
should we choose to claim under our insurance policies, or that such coverage will be sufficient.

In March 2011, Japan was struck by a 9.0-magnitude earthquake. Although the earthquake together with
the resulting tsunami and radiation leak at the Fukushima nuclear power plant have not had an immediate
direct impact on our operations, we cannot assure you that these events will not have any subsequent adverse
effect on our industry. In particular, the extent of existing and potential future radiation release from the
Fukushima nuclear power plant is still in flux and coupled with potential aftershocks from the earthquake,
may result in future additional adverse effects on our operations and those of our customers and suppliers.
Additionally, our supply chain may be adversely affected as the production facilities and operations of our
suppliers (or their suppliers in turn) who are located in Japan may have been affected by these events.
Disruptions or delays in our supply chain may result in shortages of components that we utilize in
manufacturing our products, which may in turn affect our ability to successfully perform manufacturing
services. Any failure on our part to provide our services to customers may have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations. Similarly, our customers (and their customers in turn) with
facilities and operations located in Japan may have been affected by these events and the disruption of their
operations may result in reduced demand for our components, and we can make no assurances that our results
of operation will not be adversely affected.

If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, our business could be adversely affected.

We have experienced, and are expected to continue to experience, growth in the scope and complexity
of our operations and in the number of our employees. In particular, we are in the process of establishing
additional production facilities in Xiamen, PRC. The growth of our business has placed and will continue to
place a strain on our management, personnel, systems and resources. If we are unable to manage our growth
effectively, we may not be able to take advantage of market opportunities, execute our business plan or
respond to competitive pressures. Moreover, if our allocation of resources does not correspond with future
demand for particular products, we could miss market opportunities, and our business, results of operations
and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to manage our growth effectively in the future.

If we fail to expand our production capacity and output, we may lose market share.

Our future success depends on our ability to increase our production capacity and output in line with the
expected growth in demands for touch modules and displays. If we are unable to do so, we may be unable to
meet customer needs and market demand, benefit from economies of scale to decrease our costs, apply capital
efficiently, maintain our competitive position and improve our profitability. Our ability to increase our

production capacity and output is subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including:

° the need to raise additional funds to purchase additional production equipment or to build
additional factories, which we may be unable to obtain on commercially viable terms, if at all;

° failure or inability to acquire necessary land use rights at suitable locations;
° failure to recruit quality workforce at a reasonable cost;

° cost overruns and delays as a result of a number of factors, many of which are beyond our
control, such as problems with equipment delivery;

o delays or denial of required approvals by relevant government authorities;

° failure to obtain production inputs in sufficient quantities or at acceptable cost; and
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° failure to execute our expansion plans effectively, including insufficient managerial capacity or
failure to obtain adequate resources, such as land or buildings that are suitable for our
manufacturing facilities.

As we expand our production capacity, our choice of locations for new factories or decision to expand
existing factories may become less advantageous to our business, economically or otherwise, due to changes
in the market conditions, local government policies or other factors that may be beyond our control. We may
need to halt the construction or to delay the commencement of production and may be unable to recover any
costs that we may have already spent. At times, we may also need to relocate one or more of our factories to
other locations, which will increase our operational costs and cause interruption to our production.

If we fail to manufacture our products within the acceptable range of quality and at the optimal production
yields, our reputation may suffer and our results of operation and financial condition may be adversely
affected.

The manufacturing process for our touch modules is complex and involves a number of precise steps.
Defective production can result from a number of factors, including:

° the level of contaminants in the manufacturing environment;
° equipment malfunction;
° process adjustments made to manufacture new products;

° use of substandard raw materials or component parts;

° interruption in the availability of utilities;

° inability of existing equipment to manufacture new products to certain specification;
° deficiencies in quality control;

° inadequate sample testing; and

° human error.

From time to time, we have experienced, and may in the future experience, lower than anticipated
production yields as a result of the above factors, particularly in connection with the expansion or
reorientation of our capacity, a change in the manufacturing processes or the development of a new product.
In general, the yield on new products will be lower than average as we develop the necessary expertise and
experience to produce those products. If we fail to maintain high quality production standards, our reputation
may suffer and our customers may cancel their orders or return our products for reproduction, which will
materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to implement our vertical integration plan, our results of operation and financial condition may
be adversely affected.

We are in the process of constructing additional manufacturing facilities for cover glass touch sensors
and lamination in Xiamen, PRC. Through such upstream integration, we aim to strengthen our cost structure
and quality control and mitigate the adverse effects of potential supply shortage. In response to the
rapid-changing nature of the industry, we may, from time to time, in strategic acquisitions or make
investments in joint ventures and establish and maintain strategic relationships with third parties. However, we
cannot assure you that any strategic acquisition or integration will be successful. Neither can we assure you
that the expected synergy from any such strategic acquisition or integration can be realized, or that we will be
able to capitalize on such synergy. These investments require a large amount of capital expenditure, and our
operations and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected if such integration fails.

We may have capital requirements in connection with our business strategy and there is no assurance that
we will be able to obtain the financing necessary to fund substantial capital expenditures.

Our business and the nature of the industry in which we operate may require us to make substantial
capital expenditures in the future leading to a higher level of fixed costs. In particular, we are expanding our
production capacity in certain of our existing production facilities to cater to our expected increase in demand
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for our touch module products. These capital expenditures will be spent in advance of any additional sales to
be generated by new or upgraded production facilities as a result of these expenditures. Given the fixed cost
nature of our business, we may in the future incur operating losses if our net operating revenue does not
adequately recover our capital expenditures.

In connection with our business strategy, we have spent NT$10.7 billion (US$367.7 million) on capital
expenditure in 2010, primarily for purchasing touch module production equipment and upgrading our
production facilities for the manufacturing of touch modules. We expect to make capital expenditures of
NT$20 billion to NT$30 billion in 2011. We anticipate funding our capital expenditures with proceeds from
existing cash balances and credit lines, cash inflow from operations, together with the expected proceeds of
this offering and existing and future bank borrowing. However, in the event of adverse market conditions in
the future or changes in our growth plan, manufacturing process, product technologies, prices of machinery
and equipment or interest rates, our actual expenditures may exceed our planned expenditures and we may not
have sufficient sources of liquidity to effect our current operational plan and would need to secure additional
financing from external sources. There can be no assurance that external sources of liquidity will be available
to fund our ongoing operations or our product development. The failure to obtain financing would hinder our
ability to make continued investments in product development, which could materially and adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain and attract key and qualified personnel.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to attract and retain highly qualified management,
engineers and technical personnel. The process of hiring employees with the combination of skills and
characters required to implement our strategy can be extremely competitive and time-consuming. Our strategy
and development have been managed by the chairman of our board of directors, Michael Chiang since we
commenced operation. Our success may depend to a significant extent on, among other factors, our stable
management led by Michael Chiang. There can be no assurance that we will be able to retain the members of
our management team or other key personnel or replace such personnel in the event of their departure. The
loss of the services of key personnel, or the inability to attract additional qualified personnel, could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

Principal shareholders’ interests may differ from those of other shareholders.

As at December 31, 2010, Michael Chiang, together with his wife, Winnie Peng, directly and indirectly,
controlled an aggregate of approximately 25.9% of our issued share capital, while Balda AG controlled
approximately 16.1% of our issued share capital. In addition, Michael Chiang is the chairman of our board of
directors and Winnie Peng is a member of our board of directors, and Balda AG has also appointed a member
of our board of directors. Mr. Chiang and his wife and Balda AG have, and are expected to continue to have,
significant influence in voting relating to certain decisions and transactions at the board of directors, including
those involving an actual or potential change of control. The interests of Mr. Chiang and his wife and Balda
AG may differ from the interests of other shareholders.

If we violate environmental regulations, we may be required to pay significant fines, our operations may be
delayed or interrupted and our business could suffer.

We are subject to environmental regulations relating to our manufacturing processes, including the use,
storage, discharge and disposal of chemical by-products of, and water used in, our production processes. A
failure, or a claim that we have failed, to comply with these environmental regulations could result in the
assessment of damages or imposition of significant fines, delays in production and capacity expansion and
negative publicity, all of which could harm our business. New regulations could also require us to acquire
costly equipment or to incur other significant expenses. In addition, any failure to control the use of, or
adequately restrict the discharge of, hazardous substances could subject us to future liabilities that may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Two of our PRC subsidiaries, TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. and Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen)
Inc. are required to obtain, prior to the commencement of production, the clearance of anti-pollution facilities
by the environmental protection authorities and relevant waste water and pollution discharge permits. These
two subsidiaries have commenced production and expect to obtain such clearance and permits in the third
quarter of 2011. As advised by Leaven, Attorneys-at-Law, our special PRC counsel, there is no legal
impediment in obtaining such approvals or permits. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able
to obtain such approvals and permits. Any failure to timely obtain such approvals or permits may result in us
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being reprimanded by the relevant governmental authorities, which may result in a monetary fine in an
amount no more than RMB 10,000 if we have no illegal gains, subject to the discretion of governmental
authorities. If we are deemed to have materially violated the regulation regarding the discharge of pollutants,
the governmental authorities may order us to rectify the situation of noncompliance within a time limit. If
more stringent regulations are adopted in the future, the related compliance costs could be substantial. Any
failure by us to timely obtain the relevant approval or permit, or to control the use of or to adequately restrict
the discharge of hazardous substances could subject us to potentially significant monetary damages and fines
or suspensions in our business operations, and harm our brand and reputation.

Any outbreak of severe communicable diseases may materially affect our operations and business.

Several places in the world, including Mexico and the US, have recently experiencing outbreak of
influenza A (HIN1), a communicable disease that is potentially lethal. Influenza A (HIN1), together with
other contagious diseases such as severe acute respiratory syndrome or avian flu, may potentially result in a
quarantine of infected employees and related persons and, if uncontrolled, may affect our operations at one or
more of our facilities. We cannot at this time predict the impact that a current or any future outbreak could
have on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The loss, shutdown or suspension of operations at any of our production facilities may have an adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our production facilities are subject to operational risks, such as industrial accidents, which could cause
personal injury or loss of human life, the breakdown or failure of equipment, power supplies or processes,
performance below expected levels of output or efficiency, obsolescence, labor disputes, natural disasters and
the need to comply with relevant regulatory and requirements. From time to time, we need to carry out
planned shutdowns of our various plants for routine maintenance, statutory inspections and testing and may
need to shut down various plants for capacity expansions and equipment upgrades. In addition, due to the
nature of our business, and despite compliance with requisite safety requirements and standards, our
production process is still subject to operational risks, including discharges or releases of hazardous
substances, exposure to particulates and the operation of mobile equipment and manufacturing machinery.
These operational risks may cause personal injury or loss of human life and could result in the imposition of
civil and criminal penalties. The occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse effect on the
productivity and profitability of a particular production facility and on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. Although we have taken precautions to minimize the risk of any significant operational
problems at our production facilities, there can be no assurance that our business, results of operations and
financial condition may not be adversely affected by disruptions caused by operational hazards at our
production facilities. Moreover, our production processes are complex, require advanced and costly
equipments and are continuously being modified and updated. As a result of manufacturing process updates
and difficulties in the manufacturing process, from time to time, we may experience production difficulties
that could cause shutdowns, delivery delays and quality control problems.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights may undermine our competitive position, and
litigation to protect our intellectual property rights or defend against third-party allegations of infringement
may be costly.

As of December 31, 2010, we held 98 patents, including 10 patents in Taiwan, 28 patents in the PRC
and 60 patents in the other foreign countries. Among which, we held 36 invention patents and 62 utility model
patents. In addition, we had 192 pending patent applications worldwide. We rely primarily on patent,
trademark, trade secret, copyright law and other contractual restrictions to protect our intellectual property.
Nevertheless, these afford only limited protection and the actions we take to protect our intellectual property
rights may not be adequate. Third parties may infringe or misappropriate our proprietary technologies or other
intellectual property rights, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

Policing unauthorized use of proprietary technology can be difficult and expensive. Also, litigation may
be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights, protect our trade secrets or determine the validity and
scope of the proprietary rights of others. We cannot assure you that the outcome of such potential litigation
will be in our favor. Such litigation may be costly and may divert management attention and other resources
away from our business. An adverse determination in any such litigation will impair our intellectual property
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rights and may harm our business, prospects and reputation. In addition, we have no insurance coverage
against litigation costs and would have to bear all costs arising from such litigation to the extent that we are
unable to recover them from other parties. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Implementation of PRC intellectual property laws has historically been lacking, primarily because of
ambiguities in the PRC laws and difficulties in enforcement. Accordingly, intellectual property rights and
confidentiality protections in the PRC may not be as effective as in the United States or other countries.

We may be involved in intellectual property disputes which, if determined adversely to us, could cause us to
pay significant damage awards and interrupt our business and operations.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to protect our proprietary right and to operate without
infringing on the proprietary right of third parties. There can be no assurance that any of our or our
subsidiaries’ current or future patent applications will result in issued patents, that the scope of the claims in
any patents currently held by or will be issued to that we will prevent competitors from introducing
competitive product or any patent currently held by or will be issued to that we would be enforceable if
challenged.

We have no means of knowing what patent applications have been filed in the United States or
elsewhere in the world until they are published, as such information is not available until such time. In
addition, there is a possibility that touch modules and other products designed and manufactured by us may
inadvertently incorporate aspects of existing design patents. We may also use or develop components or
technologies which infringe on patents or other intellectual property rights owned by our competitors or other
third parties. If any third party were to make valid intellectual property infringement claims against us or our
customers, we could be required to:

° discontinue using disputed components, technologies or product incorporating those components or
featuring those technologies in certain regions;

° pay substantial monetary damages;

° seek to develop or license non-infringing component or technologies, which may not be feasible;
or
° seek to acquire licenses to the component or technologies, which may not be available on

commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

This could restrict us from making, using, selling or exporting some of our products, which could in
turn materially and adversely affect our business, result of operations, and financial conditions.

The technology industry frequently features disputes over intellectual property. We may in the future be
required to defend our intellectual property rights against infringement, duplication, discovery and
misappropriation by third parties or to defend ourselves against third party claims of infringement. See “Our
Business — Intellectual Property and Licenses.”

Foreign exchange fluctuations may adversely affect our earnings and margins.

As the Shares are listed on the TWSE, our financial statements are required to be presented in NT
Dollars, the lawful currency of the ROC. Therefore, our financial statements presented herein are translated
from US Dollars into NT Dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date, except for the amount issued
common stock with the par value of NT$10 which shall be translated at the historical exchange rate as
required by the ROC regulations.

Most of our sales are denominated in US Dollars, while the majority of our raw materials and
component costs are paid for primarily in US Dollars and Renminbi with a substantial portion of our labor
cost in Renminbi. In 2010, 88.4% and 10.1% of our raw materials and component costs were paid in US
Dollars and Reminbi, respectively. In 2009, 85.0% and 13.7% of our raw materials and component costs were
paid in US Dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Accordingly, our operations are exposed to fluctuations among
US Dollar, Renminbi and NT Dollar exchange rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates between other
currencies.

The value of the Renminbi is subject to changes in the PRC government’s policies and depends to a
large extent on domestic and international economic and political developments as well as supply and demand
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in the local market. Effective from July 21, 2005, the Renminbi is no longer pegged solely to the US Dollars.
Instead, it is pegged against a basket of currencies, determined by the People’s Bank of China, or PBOC,
against which its value can rise or fall by as much as 0.3% each day. Under the new policy, the Renminbi is
permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and managed range in relation to a basket of specified foreign
currencies. Since then, the PRC government has made, and may in the future make, further adjustments to the
exchange rate system. On June 19, 2010, the PRC government announced its intention to further relax its
currency policy, and the Renminbi slightly appreciated against US Dollars. We cannot assure you that the
Renminbi will not experience significant appreciation against US Dollars again. There remains significant
international pressure on the PRC government to adopt a more flexible currency policy, which could result in
a further and more significant appreciation of the Renminbi against US Dollars. Fluctuations in exchange rates
may adversely affect the value, translated or converted into US Dollars, of our net assets, earnings or any
declared dividends.

In addition, under the current foreign exchange regime in the PRC, there can be no guarantee that
sufficient foreign currency will be available at a given exchange rate to satisfy the demands of a particular
enterprise in full. There can also be no assurance that shortages in the availability of foreign currency will not
restrict our ability to obtain sufficient foreign currency to satisfy our foreign currency needs.

The impact of future exchange rate fluctuations among these currencies on our results of operations and
financial condition cannot be accurately predicted, and there can be no assurance that our attempt to mitigate
the adverse effects of exchange rate fluctuations will be successful or that such exchange rate fluctuations will
not in the future have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against certain operating and other hazards which
may have an adverse effect on our business.

We believe that the coverage from our insurance policies for our production facilities is in line with
industry norms, adequate for our present operations and includes adequate coverage for risks relating to fires,
business interruptions and public liability. However, there can be no assurance that any claim under the
insurance policies maintained will be timely honored in full or at all. To the extent that we suffer loss or
damage that is not covered by insurance or exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, results of operations
and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected. There can also be no assurance that
insurance will continue to be available to provide reasonable, or any, coverage on reasonable commercial
terms.

Restrictive covenants in loan agreements could limit our subsidiaries’ ability to distribute dividends.

Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to restrictive covenants contained in certain bank credit facilities,
to which they are a party. Such covenants include provisions restricting our subsidiaries’ ability to distribute
dividends to us before the repayment of the relevant loans. As we rely on dividends distributed to us from our
operating subsidiaries, such restriction may materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

RISKS RELATING TO THE ROC
The value of the Shares may be adversely affected by the volatility of the ROC securities market.

The ROC securities market is smaller and more volatile than the securities markets in the United States
and in certain European and other countries. The TWSE has experienced substantial fluctuations in the prices
and volumes of sales of listed securities and there are currently limits on the range of daily price movements
on the TWSE. In 2010, the TWSE Weighted Index reached a low of 7,071.67 on June 9, 2010 and peaked at
8,972.50 on December 31, 2010. The daily closing values of the Shares which are listed on the TWSE, ranged
from NT$473 per share to NT$740 per share since the listing of the Shares on October 29, 2010 until the end
of 2010. On April 13, 2011, the TWSE Weighted Index closed at 8,780.20 and the daily closing value of the
Shares was NT$812 per Share. The TWSE has experienced problems such as market manipulation, insider
trading and payment defaults. The recurrence of these or similar problems and restrictions on price
movements could adversely affect the market price and liquidity of the securities listed on the TWSE,
including the Shares.

In response to major past declines and volatility in the securities markets in Taiwan, and in line with
similar activities by other countries in Asia, the ROC government formed the National Stabilization Fund in
2000, which has purchased, and may from time to time purchase, shares listed on the TWSE to support these
securities markets in Taiwan. In addition, other funds associated with the ROC government have in the past
purchased, and may from time to time purchase, shares listed on the TWSE or other securities markets in
Taiwan. In the future, market activity by government entities, or the perception that such activity is taking
place, may take place or has ceased, may cause fluctuations in the market prices and liquidity of the Shares.

18



We are subject to risks associated with the political status and international relations of the ROC.

A small portion of our assets and operations are located in Taiwan, and the Shares are listed on the
TWSE. Accordingly, our business, results of operations and financial condition and the market price of the
Shares may be affected by changes in the ROC governmental policies, law, taxation, inflation, interest rates,
social instability and other political, economic, diplomatic or social developments in or affecting the ROC
which are outside our control. Taiwan has a unique international political status. Both the governments of the
PRC and the ROC assert sovereignty over Taiwan. The ROC asserts that the ROC and the PRC are equal
political entities which should enter into “state to state” relations while the PRC claims that it is the sole
government in China and that Taiwan is part of China. Although significant economic and cultural relations
have been established in the past decade between Taiwan and the PRC, the PRC has refused to renounce the
possibility that it may use force to gain control over Taiwan if Taiwan declared independence or if a foreign
power interfered in Taiwan’s domestic affairs. Relations between the PRC and the ROC have at times been
strained. Strained relations could result in future military actions or economic sanctions or other disruptive
activities undertaken by either government. Past tensions between the PRC and the ROC have from time to
time adversely affected the value of securities listed on the TWSE, including the price of the Shares. In recent
years, there have been indications of improved relations between the PRC and the ROC due to increased
dialogue between the PRC and the ROC, among other factors, which is expected to have a positive effect on
the property market and the economy in general in the ROC. However, there is no assurance that any
improvement in relations between the PRC and the ROC will materialize, or that relations between the PRC
and the ROC will not deteriorate further. Tension between the ROC and the PRC and other factors affecting
political or economic conditions in the ROC could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition, as well as the market price and liquidity of the Shares.

Further, if relations between the ROC and the PRC worsen, it could also have a material adverse effect
on the ROC’s economy, the availability of the PRC as an export market for our products and our ability to
manage and operate our production facilities in the PRC and to implement future plans for the expansion of
our existing PRC production facilities or the establishment of new production facilities in the PRC. There can
be no assurance that the present tensions will not worsen, which could have a significant adverse impact on
our financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

The imposition of foreign exchange restrictions may have an adverse effect on foreign investors’ abilities to
acquire ROC securities, including the Shares, or to repatriate the interest, dividends or sale proceeds from
those securities.

The ROC government may impose foreign exchange restrictions in certain emergency situations,
including situations where there are sudden fluctuations in interest rates or exchange rates, where the ROC
government experiences extreme difficulty in stabilizing the balance of payments or where there are
substantial disturbances in the financial and capital markets in Taiwan. These restrictions may require foreign
investors to obtain the ROC government’s approval before acquiring ROC securities, repatriating the interest
or dividends from those securities or repatriating the proceeds from the sale of those securities. There can be
no assurance that these restrictions, if imposed, will not adversely affect, among other things, the secondary
market price of the Bonds.

Financial reporting and accounting standards in the ROC differ from those in certain other countries.

We are subject to financial reporting requirements in Taiwan that differ in significant respects from those
applicable to companies in certain other countries, including the United States. In addition, our financial
statements are prepared in accordance with ROC GAAP, which differ in certain significant respects from
generally accepted accounting principles in certain other countries, such as US GAAP. Potential investors
should consult their own professional advisers for an understanding of such differences and how they might
affect the financial information contained herein.

Our adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, or IFRS, effective January 1, 2013, as
required by the Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan, ROC, or the FSC, may adversely affect
our financial statements thereaffter.

According to the announcement of the FSC on May 14, 2009, we are required to adopt IFRS for the
preparation of our financial statements effective January 1, 2013 and to restate our financial statements for
each of the comparative corresponding periods for the year ending December 31, 2012 with the adjusted
opening IFRS balances as of January 1, 2012. As ROC GAAP differ in certain significant respects from IFRS
and the adoption of IFRS requires the retrospective application of the most recent standards to the financial
statements of prior years, subject to certain exemptions and exceptions, the impact from the retrospective
adjustments may adversely affect our retained earnings as of January 1, 2012 and our financial statements
thereafter.
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RISKS RELATING TO THE PRC
We are subject to the political and economic environments in the PRC.

Currently, most of our production facilities are located in the PRC and we may make further
investments in the PRC in the future. Accordingly, our results of operations, financial condition and future
prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to the political and economic environments and legal
developments in the PRC. There can be no assurance that our investments in the PRC and our production
operations in the PRC will not be adversely affected if relations between the PRC and the ROC are further
strained.

Prior to 1978, the PRC had adopted a central economic planning system. All production and economic
activities in the country were governed by the economic goals set out in the five-year plans and annual plans
adopted by central authorities. Since 1978, the PRC government has permitted foreign investment and
implemented economic reforms, gradually changing from a planned economy towards a market-oriented
economy. However, many of the reforms and economic policies adopted or to be adopted by the PRC
government are unprecedented or experimental in nature and may have unforeseen results, which may have an
adverse effect on enterprises with substantial business in the PRC, including us.

The PRC government has broad discretion and authority to regulate the technology industry in the PRC
and the government has implemented policies from time to time to regulate economic expansion in the PRC.
Although in recent years the PRC government has implemented measures emphasizing the use of market
forces for economic reform, it continues to play a significant role in regulating industrial development. It also
exercises significant control over PRC’s economic growth through the allocation of resources, controlling
payment of foreign currency-denominated obligations, setting monetary policy and providing preferential
treatment to particular industries or companies.

While the PRC’s economy has experienced significant growth in the past 30 years, growth has been
uneven, both geographically and among various sectors in the economy. The PRC government has
implemented various measures to encourage economic growth and guided the allocation of resources. Some of
these measures benefit the overall economy of the PRC, but may have a negative effect on us. For example,
our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected by governmental control
over capital investments or changes in tax regulations.

Uncertainties in the PRC legal system could adversely affect our business and result of operations.

Since 1979, many new laws and regulations covering general economic matters have been promulgated
in the PRC. However, since these laws and regulations are relatively new and the PRC legal system continues
to rapidly evolve, interpretations of laws, regulations and rules are not always uniform and enforcement
involves uncertainties. Despite the development of the legal system, the PRC’s system of laws is not yet
complete. Even where laws and regulations exist in the PRC, there may be laws and regulations at the
national level or local level, which are peculiar to the PRC and not commonly seen in developed countries
and may impose additional procedural or compliance requirements on those subject to such laws and
regulations (in certain cases, including us). Furthermore, the recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments
are provided for under the PRC Civil Procedural Law. PRC courts may recognize and enforce foreign
judgments in accordance with the requirements of the PRC Civil Procedural Law based either on treaties
between the PRC and the country where the judgment is made or on reciprocity between jurisdictions.

Therefore, in the case a foreign judgment is rendered by a foreign court where the country and the PRC
do not have any treaties or other agreements that provide for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of
foreign judgments, such a judgment may not be enforced by a PRC court. The relative inexperience of the
PRC’s judiciary in many cases creates additional uncertainty as to the outcome of any litigation. In addition,
interpretation of laws and regulations of the PRC may be subject to government policies reflecting domestic
political changes.

Our activities in the PRC will be subject to administrative review and approval by various national and
local agencies of the PRC government. Due to the changes occurring in the legal and regulatory structure of
the PRC, we may not be able to secure the required governmental approval for our activities. In addition,
local government authorities may adopt their own policies and practices. Failure to obtain the requisite
governmental approval or to comply with the local government’s policies or practices for any of our activities
could adversely affect our business and operating results.

We cannot predict the effects of future developments of the PRC legal system, including the
promulgation of new laws, changes to existing laws or the interpretation or enforcement thereof, the
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pre-emption of local regulations by national laws or the overturn of local governments’ decisions by the
central government. These uncertainties may limit the legal protections available to us. In addition, any
litigation in the PRC may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources and
management’s attention.

Avadilability of credit and fluctuations in the interest rates of bank borrowings and other loans may affect
our business expansion or financial performance.

Due to the economic stimulus plan implemented by the PRC government and the global economic crisis,
the one-year RMB benchmark loan rate was reduced several times in 2008. On October 20, 2010, this interest
rate was increased by 0.25%, which will increase our interest expenditure and have a material and adverse
effect on our financial performance. In addition, the PRC government has recently adopted a number of
measures in its monetary policy, including increasing the reserve ratio of commercial banks, which may have
the effect of restricting money supply and the availability of credit. If these measures result in PRC banks
reducing their volumes of commercial loans, our access to financing to fund our working capital may be
adversely affected.

Changes in the favorable taxation treatment to our PRC subsidiaries may adversely affect our profitability.

Our PRC subsidiaries are subject to the Enterprise Income Tax, or EIT, on the taxable income as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC income tax laws. Because of
the location in the economic and technology development zones to which preferential tax rates apply, under
the PRC Law of Enterprise Income Tax for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises, or
FIE Income Tax Law, the applicable EIT rates for one of our PRC subsidiaries, TPK Touch Solutions
(Xiamen) Inc., which was established prior to 2008, is 15%. Furthermore, starting from 2007, TPK Touch
Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. was entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first two years and a 50% reduction
in EIT for the next three years, commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all tax losses carried
forward from the previous five years.

However, on March 16, 2007, the National People’s Congress of the PRC passed the Enterprise Income
Tax Law, or EIT Law, which replaced the FIE Income Tax Law, and adopted an uniform income tax rate of
25% for most domestic enterprises and foreign investment enterprises. The EIT Law became effective on
January 1, 2008. The EIT Law provides a five-year transition period from its effective date for enterprises
established before the promulgation date of the EIT Law and which were entitled to preferential tax rates and
treatments under the then effective tax laws or regulations. During the transition period, those foreign invested
enterprises eligible for tax exemption or reduction shall be subject to the gradually increased income tax rate
and after this transition period they shall generally be subject to uniform income tax rate of 25%.

Profits from our PRC operating subsidiaries available for distribution are determined under PRC GAAP.

We derive a portion of our profits from the operating subsidiary companies established in the PRC. The
profit available for distribution are therefore dependent on, to a significant extent, the profit available for
distribution by the PRC subsidiaries to us which is determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and financial regulations in the PRC, or PRC GAAP. In addition, under the relevant
PRC financial regulations, profit available for distribution is determined after offset its losses in previous
years and set aside a legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits left over.

Dividends we receive from our PRC subsidiaries may be subject to PRC withholding tax.

The EIT Law provides that a maximum income tax rate of 20% may be applicable to dividends payable
to non-PRC investors that are “non-resident enterprises,” to the extent such dividends are derived from
sources within the PRC, and the State Council has reduced such rate to 10% through the implementation of
the EIT Law. Under the Arrangement between the PRC and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion, or the Double Taxation Arrangement,
which became effective on January 1, 2007, dividends from our PRC subsidiaries paid to our Hong Kong
subsidiary will be subject to a withholding tax at a rate of 5%, subject to the confirmation of the in-charge
local tax authorities. Thus, dividends paid to our Hong Kong subsidiary by our PRC subsidiaries may, subject
to the confirmation of the in-charge local tax authorities, be lowered to 5% income tax if the Hong Kong
subsidiary is considered as a “real operating business other than only holding function and is beneficial owner
of such dividend” under the EIT Law.

Labor laws in the PRC may adversely affect our results of operations.
On June 29, 2007, the PRC government promulgated a new labor law, namely the Labor Contract Law

of the PRC, or the New Labor Contract Law, which became effective on January 1, 2008. The Implementation
Rules of the New Labor Contract Law were subsequently promulgated and became effective on September 18,
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2008. The PRC government also promulgated the Law on Mediation and Arbitration of Labor Disputes on
December 29, 2007, which came into effect on May 1, 2008. The New Labor Contract Law imposes stricter
requirements in terms of signing labor contracts, paying remuneration, stipulating probation and penalties and
dissolving labor contracts. It also requires the terms of employment contracts to be placed in writing within
one month of the commencement of an employment relationship, which may make hiring temporary workers
more difficult. These newly enacted labor laws and regulations impose greater liabilities on employers and
may significantly increase the costs to an employer if it decides to reduce its workforce. In the event we
decide to significantly change or decrease the workforce of our PRC subsidiaries, the New Labor Contract
Law could adversely affect our ability to enact such changes in a manner that is most advantageous to the
business of our PRC subsidiaries or in a timely and cost-effective manner, which may materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to offset increased labor costs, our business could be materially and adversely affected and
there can be no assurance that we will not experience strikes by our labor force in the future.

Currently, a substantial majority of our total workforce is employed in the PRC. The average wages paid
for manufacturing labor in the PRC have increased recently and may continue to increase. If we are unable to
offset the increase in our labor costs or pass along these increased labor costs to customers, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Recently, factories in the PRC have been experiencing an increase in strikes and workplace stoppages by
their labor force. Although we have not experienced such strikes or stoppages to date, there can be no
assurance that we will not experience such strikes or stoppages by our labor force in the future, which could
adversely affect our operations.

Our production facilities in the PRC are subject to risks of power shortages.

Many cities and provinces in the PRC have suffered serious power shortages since the second quarter of
2004. Many of the regional grids do not have sufficient power generating capacity to fully satisfy the
increased demand for electricity driven by continual economic growth and persistent hot weather. Many local
governments in the PRC have a history of requiring local factories to temporarily shut down their operations
or reduce their daily operational hours in order to reduce local power consumption levels. Although our
operations in the PRC have not been affected by such administrative measures, there is no assurance that our
PRC operations will not be affected by those administrative measures in the future, thereby causing material
production disruption and delay in delivery schedule. In such event, our business, results of operations and
financial conditions could be materially and adversely affected.

Risks Relating to Ownership of the Bonds and Our Shares
There are limitations on the Bondholders’ ability to exercise conversion rights.

The Bondholders will not be able to exercise conversion rights during any Closed Period (as defined in
— Description of the Bonds). Under the current ROC law, regulations and policy, PRC persons are not
permitted to convert the Bonds or to register as our shareholders unless it is a qualified domestic institutional
investor, or a QDIIL.

Shares or any securities that are substantially similar to the Shares including, but not limited to any
securities that may be convertible into, or exchangeable for, the Shares that are eligible for future sale by
us or our current shareholders may adversely affect the value of your investment.

The market prices of the Bonds and the Shares could decline as a result of sales of a large number of
our shares or any securities that are substantially similar to the Shares including, but not limited to any
securities that may be convertible into, or exchangeable for, the Shares after this offering or the perception
that such sales could occur. A number of our shareholders who in aggregate held directly 42.0% of the Shares
as of December 31, 2010, have agreed for a period of 90 days after April 13, 2011, subject to certain
exceptions, not to sell or otherwise dispose of our shares without the prior written consent of the joint
bookrunners. See “Plan of Distribution.” Except for such restrictions, there is no restriction on our ability to
issue, sell or otherwise dispose of and these shareholders’ ability to sell or otherwise dispose of, the Shares,
and we cannot assure you that we will not issue, sell or otherwise dispose of, or that any of these shareholders
will not sell or otherwise dispose of, the Shares. If our shareholders sell a large number of the Shares after
this offering, the market price of the Bonds and the Shares could be depressed and the value of your
investment could substantially decrease. The market prices of the Shares and the Bonds could also decline if
substantial amounts of the Shares or securities convertible or exchangeable into the Shares are sold after the
closing of this offering, or if there is a perception that these sales could occur.
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A liquid market for the Bonds may not develop, and the market for the Shares may not be liquid.

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for the Bonds. We have received approval in-principle
for the listing of the Bonds, but not the Shares, on the SGX-ST. An active trading market for the Bonds might
not develop.

The Bonds have not been registered under the securities laws of the United States or elsewhere and
cannot be publicly offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred in any jurisdiction where such registration
may be required. The Bonds may not be publicly offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the ROC.
Furthermore, there has been no trading market for the Shares outside the ROC, and the only trading market
for the Shares is the TWSE.

Holders of the Bonds will bear the risk of fluctuations in the price of the Shares.

The market price of the Bonds at any time will be affected by fluctuations in the price of the Shares. It
is impossible to predict how the price of the Shares will change. Trading prices of the Shares will be
influenced by, among other things, our results of operations and political, economic, financial and other
factors that affect capital markets generally. Any decline in the price of the Shares would adversely affect the
market price of the Bonds.

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the NT Dollar and the US Dollar may have a material adverse
effect on the value of the Bonds in US Dollar terms.

Although the principal amount of the Bonds is denominated in US Dollars, the Shares are listed on the
TWSE, which quotes and trades the Shares in NT Dollars. As a result, fluctuations in the exchange rate
between the NT Dollar and the US Dollar will affect, among other things, the market price of the Bonds and
the US Dollar equivalent of the Shares received upon conversion of the Bonds.

Holders of the Bonds will have no rights as shareholders until they acquire the Shares upon conversion of
the Bonds.

Unless and until the holders of the Bonds acquire the Shares upon conversion of the Bonds, the holders
of the Bonds will have no rights as shareholders, including any voting rights or rights to receive any
dividends or other distributions with respect to the Shares. Subject to the indenture and other applicable ROC
laws, holders of the Bonds who acquire the Shares upon the exercise of their Conversion Rights will be
entitled to exercise the rights of shareholders only as to actions for which the applicable record date occurs
after the Conversion Date.

Holders of the Bonds are subject to government-imposed requirements of appointing a tax guarantor and
local agent in the ROC.

When a non-ROC person converts the Bonds or registers as our shareholder, such non-ROC person will
be required under the current ROC law and regulations to appoint an agent, or a tax guarantor, in the ROC for
filing tax returns and making tax payments. A tax guarantor must meet certain qualifications set by the
Ministry of Finance of the ROC and, upon appointment, becomes a guarantor of your ROC tax obligations.
We cannot assure that such non-ROC person will be able to appoint and obtain approval for a tax guarantor in
a timely manner, if at all.

In addition, under current ROC law, if a non-ROC person is an overseas Chinese or foreign national or
entity having not been registered with the TWSE, when exercising the conversion right, such non-ROC person
will be required to first register with the TWSE and then appoint a local agent to, among other things, open a
general securities trading account with a local securities brokerage firm to hold or trade the common shares,
remit funds and exercise shareholders’ rights. Under existing ROC laws and regulations, without satisfying
these requirements, a non-ROC person will not be able to hold or to sell or otherwise transfer our shares on
the TWSE or otherwise.

In addition, under the current ROC law, a non-ROC person is required to appoint a local bank to act as
custodian for handling confirmation and settlement of trades, safekeeping of securities and cash proceeds, and
reporting and declaration of information.

Our public shareholders may have more difficulty in protecting their interests than they would as a
shareholder of a corporation of other jurisdictions.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our memorandum and articles of association governing Cayman
Islands companies. The rights of our shareholders to bring shareholders’ suits against our board of directors
under Cayman Islands laws are much more limited than those of the shareholders of corporations of some
other jurisdictions. Therefore, our public shareholders may have more difficulty in protecting their interests in
connection with actions taken by our management, members of our board of directors or controlling
shareholders than they would as shareholders of corporations of other jurisdictions.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from this offering will be approximately US$397.3 million, representing gross
proceeds of US$400.0 million, deducting underwriting discounts and concession and other offering expenses
of US$2.7 million. We will use the net proceeds of this offering to fund, through capital increases in and
shareholder loans to TPK Glass Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. and Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc., the
expansion of production facilities for cover glass and touch sensors and acquisition of relevant machinery and
equipment.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION
The Shares have been listed on the TWSE since October 2010.

The table below shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low closing prices and the average daily
volume of trading activity on the TWSE for the Shares and the highest and lowest of the daily closing values
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Weighted Index.

Average daily Closing of the Taiwan Stock

Closing price per Share” Exchange Weighted Index

Trading
High Low volume® High Low
(in thousands
(NT$) (NT$) of shares)
2010
October (since our listing on
October 29, 2010) .....cccvevvenrennne. 505 505 9,659,750 8,287.09 8,287.09
NOVEMDET .....eoviviiiieiieeieeiieeieeiee 664 473 2,488,705 8,240.65 8,450.63
December .......cccooveevienciieniiiiecene 740 650 1,679,017 8,520.11 8,972.50
2011
January .....cccoevieiiniiie 719 648 1,305,850 8,782.72 9,145.45
February ......cccocvvvievieniiiiienieeieee 818 699 2,642,780 8,528.94 9,111.46
March ...occoovieviiiieeeee e 837 719 1,584,385 8,784.40 8,234.78
April (through April 13) .....ccceeee 836 797 991,152 8,901.72 8,705.13

(1) As reported.
(2) As adjusted retroactively for cash and stock dividends, right issues and stock splits, but excluding new shares offered in IPO

Source: Bloomberg.

The TWSE has experienced substantial fluctuations in the prices of listed securities and there are
currently limits on the range of daily price movements. See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the ROC —
The value of TWSE may be adversely affected by the volatility of the ROC securities market” and “Appendix
A — The Securities Markets of the ROC — The Taiwan Stock Exchange.”
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DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association, our board of directors
may, subject to the approval of the shareholders by an ordinary resolution adopted at a shareholders’ meeting,
declare and distribute dividends. In addition, subject to our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, we may distribute profits in accordance with a
proposal prepared by our directors and resolved by our shareholders. When appropriating the profits, we will
first offset our losses from previous years and set aside a legal capital reserve at 10% of the remaining profits,
until the accumulated legal capital reserve equals our total capital; then we will set aside a special capital
reserve in accordance with the applicable public company rules or as requested by the authorities in charge;
and we then may set aside between 1% to 1.5% of the remaining amount as bonus to directors and between
5% to 10% of the remaining amount as bonus to our employees.

The 2010 shareholders’ meeting was held on April 13, 2010, and our shareholders adopted a resolution
to distribute US$47.1 million in the form of cash and US$2.9 million (equivalent to 9 million new shares) in
the form of shares. At the same shareholders’ meeting, a resolution was adopted to issue 7,067,522 new shares
to employees as stock bonus.
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EXCHANGE RATES

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between NT Dollars and US Dollars will affect the US Dollar
equivalent of the NT Dollar price of the Shares on the TWSE and, as a result, will likely affect the market
price of the Bonds. Such fluctuations will also affect the conversion of NT Dollars proceeds you will receive
from any sale of Shares represented by Bonds.

The following table sets forth the average, high, low and period-end average spot rates for buying and
selling published by Bank of Taiwan between NT Dollars and US Dollars (in NT Dollars per US Dollar) for
the periods indicated:

NT Dollars per US Dollar

Average High Low Period-End
2010 (March through December) ............c......... 31.42 32.46 29.13 29.13
MaAICh .t 31.86 32.04 31.72 31.80
APLILceiiiiiiiie e 31.49 31.77 31.33 31.38
MaAY o 31.87 32.30 3143 32.05
JUNC .o, 32.21 32.46 31.80 32.15
JULY o 32.14 32.25 32.01 32.01
AUZUSE...eoiiiiieeiieieeeeeece e 31.91 32.05 31.73 32.05
SEePEMDET ....onviiieiiiiieieiieeieee e 31.73 32.04 31.26 31.26
OCLODLT .ttt 30.84 31.15 30.66 30.67
NOVEMDET ....oooiiiieiiieiie e 30.33 30.50 30.05 30.49
December.......coovveiiiiiieiecieeeee e 29.88 30.44 29.13 29.13
2011
January ... 29.10 29.36 29.01 29.04
February ......cooeeviiiiiicee 29.32 29.77 28.78 29.74
MarCh v 29.50 29.65 29.36 29.40
April (through April 13) ..o 29.04 29.28 28.94 29.02

Source: Bank of Taiwan
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth under ROC GAAP our audited consolidated capitalization as of December
31, 2010. There has been no material change in our capitalization since December 31, 2010.

The following table should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes thereto

included elsewhere herein.

Short-term loans (including current portion of
long-term debt) .......cccueevieriieniienieiiieieeeeeae

Long-term loans

Long-term loans, net of current portion............

Convertible bond payable ..........ccccceeviierieninnns

Shareholders’ equity
Common Shares ..........cccceeeeveneeeeneneencneeiennn.
Capital SUIPIUS....cccveeiiiiieeiieiienieeieeiee e
Retained earnings .......ccccceeeveeviveneeeeeenieenieneennne
Cumulative translation adjustment.....................
Net loss not recognized as pension cost ...........
Total shareholders’ equity of parent
COTMPAIY .....oviiiiiiiieieeeieseeeteiesee et st seeneenees

Total capitalization ................ccocoeveeiinniennnnns

Note:

As of December 31, 2010

Pro forma, as adjusted for

Audited this offering
(consolidated)
NT$ US$ NT$ US$
(in millions)
3,656.5 125.5 3,656.5 125.5
3,604.5 123.7 3,604.5 123.7
— — 11,573.3 397.3
2,240.7 69.7 2,240.7 69.7
6,473.2 222.2 6,473.2 222.2
5,667.8 194.6 5,667.8 194.6
4174 21.5 4174 21.5
6.1) 0.2) 6.1) 0.2)

14,793.0 507.8 14,793.0 507.8
22,054.0 757.0 33,627.3 1,154.3

(1) Translations of amounts from U.S. Dollars into NT Dollars has been made at the rate prevailing on

December 31, 2010 of NT$29.13 = US$1.

(2) As of December 31, 2010, TPKH issued common shares was NT$2,240.7 million divided into 224.1

million Shares with par value NT$10 each.

(3) Total capitalization is short-term loans, long-term loans plus total shareholders’ equity of parent

company.

(4) Convertible bond payable of NT$11,573.3 million (US$397.3 million) includes the Bonds of

NT$11,652.0 million (US$400.0 million) after deducting issuance cost of approximately NT$78.7
million (US$2.7 million) related to this offering. In addition, the fair value of the exchange option
related to the Bonds has not been determined at this time.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
The Touch Revolution

We believe that the rapid proliferation of touch interfaces is revolutionizing the way that users interact
with electronics devices. Consumer receptivity to touch interfaces is evidenced by the popularity and
widespread demand for touch-enabled devices. As users become increasingly accustomed to the intuitive
interaction and convenience offered by touch interfaces, the feature is becoming an important attraction for
consumer purchasing decisions. Touch interface is proliferating across an increasing number of consumer
devices, including mobile phones, tablets, all-in-one PCs, personal navigation devices (PNDs) and portable
media players (MP3 players and video players), or PMPs, among others. Developers for touch screen devices
are afforded much greater flexibility than traditional devices in which user controls are limited to a keypad or
mouse/touchpad. We believe that as developers increasingly create applications that take advantage of touch
features, consumers will enjoy meaningful benefits, and touch will become a “must-have” feature in
electronics devices.

Applications for Touch

We believe that the convenience and intuitive nature of touch interface make it a natural choice for a
large and diverse number of potential applications. According to DisplaySearch estimates, mobile phones
represent the largest application for touch modules, accounting for 66% of touch module shipments in 2010.
While touch is becoming an increasingly common feature of mobile phones, there remains significant room
for further growth and according to DisplaySearch, touch penetration of mobile phone shipments increased
from 16% in 2008 to 26% in 2009 and 33% in 2010. Touch mobile phone shipments are estimated to grow at
a CAGR of 22% from 2010-2013, from 531 million units in 2010 to 965 million units in 2013.

Touch Penetration of Mobile Phones (%) Touch Module Phone Global Shipments (millions)
100% - 1250 -
75% - 1,000 -
50% - 139 7501 5y
26% ’ 500 -
25% - 16%
250 -
0% - 0 -
2008 2009 2010E 2010E  2011E  2012E  2013E

Source: DisplaySearch, July 2010
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Debuted in 2007, Apple’s iPhone revolutionized the industry and introduced a new category of mobile
device by applying a touch interface with feather-like, intuitive and multi-touch-enabled user experiences.
iPhone’s market success set the new industry norm and consumer expectation for human-machine interface.
Building upon iPhone’s success, the introduction of the iPad pioneered the tablet industry and continues to
dominate the market. As iPhone and iPad have become increasingly popular globally, other consumer device
leaders are releasing and promoting their own competing mobile products to capture the fast growth in this
segment. Gartner'" forecasts a 27.4% CAGR in sales of premium communication devices® from 2010-2013,
increasing from 269 million units in 2010 to 555 million units in 2013. Furthermore, Gartner® forecasts a
102.9% CAGR in media tablet production from 2010-2013, increasing from 19 million units in 2010 to 155
million units in 2013.

Premium Communication Device® Sales (millions) Media Tablet Production (millions)

2010E 2011E 2012E 2013E

2010E 2011E 2012E 2013E

Source: Gartner'” Source: Gartner'®

(D) Based on Gartner, Inc.’s “Forecast: Mobile Devices, Worldwide, 2008-2015, 1Q11 Update” report authored by Carolina Milanesi,
Annette Zimmermann, Roberta Cozza, Hugues J. De La Vergne, Anshul Gupta, CK Lu, Tuong Huy Nguyen, and Atsuro Sato and
published on March 17, 2011, with the premium communication device sales chart created by the Company. The Gartner Report
described herein, (the “Gartner Report™) represents data, research opinion or viewpoints published, as part of a syndicated
subscription service, by Gartner, Inc. (“Gartner”), and are not representations of fact. Each Gartner Report speaks as of its original
publication date (and not as of the date of this offering memorandum) and the opinions expressed in the Gartner Report are
subject to change without notice.

2) Gartner defines a Premium Communication Device as a device that offers a rich communication experience beyond voice such as
integrated email, social networking support and VoIP.

3) Based on Gartner’s “Market Trends: Worldwide, EMS/ODM Production of Media Tablets, 2011” report authored by Jamie Wang
and Ben Lee and published on March 23, 2011, with the media tablet production chart created by us.

In addition to mobile phones and media tablets, there are a diverse and growing number of other
applications of touch technology. Other devices featuring small to medium size touch screens include PMPs,
PNDs, portable gaming devices and digital cameras. Devices featuring large size touch screens include
all-in-one PCs, laptop monitors, desktop monitors, point of sale systems, point of information systems, kiosks
and others.

Comparison of Touch Technologies

While there are many touch technologies, projected capacitive, or P-Cap, and resistive are the most
commonly adopted, and according to DisplaySearch, accounted for an aggregate of 98% of touch module
shipments in 2010. Resistive touch has historically been the most common touch technology, primarily due to
their lower cost relative to P-Cap and the ease in manufacturing process. However P-Cap’s advanced features
are making it increasingly common as the preferred choice for mid- to high-end small to medium sized touch
consumer electronics.

Resistive touch screens include two layers of ITO coated substrates separated by an air gap and micro
dot spacers. When the upper ITO substrate is pressed by a finger or stylus, the two ITO substrates are
connected, and the electrical current goes through the point of contact. The controller IC detects and calculates
the touch position.

P-Cap touch sensors feature electrodes etched into the substrate in long strips to form patterned
electrodes, which are covered by a cover glass surface. As the finger approaches the surface, the controller
can quickly detect the change of capacitance and determine the touch location.
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Key advantages of P-Cap touch relative to resistive touch include the following:

° Multi-touch capability. P-Cap touch is able to accurately detect multiple touch signals simultaneously,
greatly increasing the potential range of user controls;

° Higher sensitivity. Unlike resistive touch modules, P-Cap touch modules can be activated without
significant pressure and enable the user to exercise more effortless and accurate control; and

° Greater durability. Protection by cover glass and the ability of users to activate P-Cap touch modules
with light touch can prevent scratches and reduce wear and tear, ultimately extending the product life.

According to DisplaySearch, multi-touch modules are expected to increase from 35% of 2010 total
touch module shipments to 57% in 2013.

Multi-touch % of Touch Module Shipments (%)

57%
52%

46%

35%

2010E 2011E 2012E 2013E

Source: DisplaySearch, July 2010

P-Cap touch screens come in many variations which can be based on either glass or film substrates.
Glass-based P-Cap generally offers superior performance and making it the best suited technology for
high-end devices. The key advantages of glass-based P-Cap are its greater sensitivity, higher optical
transparency, greater image clarity and better durability. Meanwhile, film-based P-Cap solutions are generally
lighter with lower cost. We believe that glass-based solutions will remain the technology of choice for the
high-end market, while film-based solutions will maintain a meaningful market position in mid-end devices.

Growth in Demand for P-Cap Touch Modules

Due to P-Cap’s technology advantages, greater consumer awareness and increasing availability in
production capacity, DisplaySearch forecasts the P-Cap market to grow faster than the overall touch module
market, expanding from US$3.2 billion in 2010 to US$5.6 billion in 2013, representing a CAGR of 20.8%. As
such, P-Cap touch modules are expected to represent an increasing share of the overall touch module market,
growing from 36% in 2010 to 46% in 2013, according to DisplaySearch.

P-Cap Touch Module Market Size (US$ millions) Touch Module Shipment by Technology (%)
2010E 2013E
Other 2% Other 10%
$3.161 P-Cap P-Cap
36% 46%
Resistive Resistive
62% 44%

2010E 2011E 2012E 2013E

Source: DisplaySearch, July 2010
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OUR BUSINESS
Overview

We are the leading provider of glass-based P-Cap touch solutions. We believe our competitive strengths
result from our technological leadership, vertically integrated production capabilities, high standard of
operating discipline, and economies of scale. Having maximized these competitive strengths, we have
solidified our first-mover advantage and forged long-term collaborative relationships with most of our major
customers, many of them are leading mobile and consumer electronics devices innovators in the world. We
are in the forefront of the technology revolution whereby touch technologies, in particular, P-Cap, are
increasingly integrated into mobile and consumer electronics devices, such as smart phones and tablets. Our
P-Cap touch solutions offer feather-like, intuitive and multi-touch enabled user experiences, which are the key
features that are increasingly desired by end-users. As P-Cap touch modules are expected to increase from
US$3.2 billion in 2010 to US$5.6 billion in 2012, according to DisplaySearch, we believe we are well
positioned to capitalize on the increasing demand for touch solutions and in particular, demand for glass-based
P-Cap touch solutions.

Since our inception, we have exclusively devoted our resources to design, develop and market
glass-based P-Cap touch solutions. Our undivided focus on the glass-based P-Cap touch technology has
enabled us to formulate our technology roadmap and make strategic and operational decisions based solely on
our customer requirements. We believe that our focused efforts have enabled us to establish our leadership in
the glass-based P-Cap touch solutions, and achieve industry-leading yield rate and manufacturing efficiency.
Due primarily to our comprehensive understanding of the touch manufacturing process and in-house
equipment-building capability, we are able to make accurate and timely capital investment decisions to expand
our capacity. We will continue to dedicate our resources to further advancing P-Cap touch solutions, such as
manufacturing process improvement, production technology enhancement, new product structure and
alternative raw materials, with the aim to stay ahead of technology roadmap and widen our product offerings.

Our vertically integrated production capabilities have enabled us to provide our customers with
comprehensive and efficient product solutions. Leveraging on our ability to provide total solutions, we are
able to meet our customers’ specific demand while reducing the time-to-market of their products. Our
customers are also benefitted from the economies of scale of our large-scale and centrally located
manufacturing facilities, which provide highly efficient and cost-effective solutions to our customers. Our
monthly module lamination capacity for glass-based touch modules increased from 1.8 million units of
3.5-inch modules as of December 2007 to 8.0 million units of 3.5-inch modules and 2.0 million units of
10-inch modules as of December 2010. We plan to expand our monthly module lamination capacity for
glass-based touch modules to 14.0 million units of 3.5-inch modules and 6.0 million units of 10-inch modules
by the end of June 2011.

We have enjoyed rapid growth in recent years. Our net operating revenue increased from NT$12,942.3
million in 2008 to NT$59,598.8 million (US$2,046.0 million) in 2010, representing a compound annual
growth rate, or CAGR, of 114.6%. Our consolidated net income attributable to shareholders of the parent
company increased from NT$388.5 million in 2008 to NT$4,741.6 million (US$162.8 million) in 2010,
representing a CAGR of 249.4%.

Our Shares have been listed on the TWSE since October 2010 under the stock code “3673.” On April
13, 2011, the closing price per Share on the TWSE was NT$812 per Share and our market capitalization was
NT$181,942.8 million (US$6,259.9 million).

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe our leading position in the glass-based P-Cap touch solutions market is to a large extent
attributable to the following strengths:

Pure Play Touch Solutions Provider

We invented fully transparent glass-based P-Cap touch technology and are in the forefront of the
technology revolution whereby touch technologies, in particular, P-Cap, are increasingly integrated into mobile
and consumer electronics devices, such as smart phones and tablets. Since our inception in 2005, we have
dedicated our resources research and development efforts and capital expenditure plans on glass-based P-Cap
touch solutions. Our undivided focus on the glass-based P-Cap touch technology has enabled us to formulate
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our technology roadmap and make strategic and operational decisions based solely on our commitment to this
technology and our customer requirements. We believe that our focused efforts have enabled us to establish
our leadership in the glass-based P-Cap touch solutions, and achieve industry-leading yield rate and
manufacturing efficiency. As a result, we increased our net operating revenues from NT$12,942.3 million in
2008 to NT$59,598.8 million (US$2,046.0 million) in 2010, representing a CAGR of 114.6%. Leveraging our
technology leadership and large-scale manufacturing capacity, we are well-positioned to continue to capitalize
on the rapidly growing demand for such touch solutions.

Vertical Integration to Provide Total Solutions

Our vertically integrated manufacturing platform offers a full range of services, including initial product
design, cover glass and sensor manufacturing, and touch module/display lamination. Our thorough
understanding of and accumulated experience in these services allow us to seamlessly integrate these services
and provide our customers customized total solutions. We believe our vertical integration allows us to extract
value associated with each service offering hence maximizing our profitability. Our vertical integration also
allows us to achieve production efficiency, thus reducing time-to-market, which is essential as the life cycles
for consumer electronics products continue to shorten. In addition, our vertically integrated manufacturing
platform centrally located in a production facility in Xiamen, PRC, enhances our ability to control production
costs and ensure product quality.

Proprietary and Efficient Production Process

Our ability to design proprietary and efficient processes and maintain a high standard of manufacturing
discipline is key to our success. We have applied our extensive knowledge and experience in manufacturing
processes to customize our production equipment and processes. Our proprietary and efficient production
processes, advanced technology know-how and stringent process management have enabled us to produce
high-quality touch modules in a large scale at yield rates among the best in our industry. For example, our
ability to design and manufacture lamination equipment in-house has differentiated ourselves from our
competitors and created an entry barrier. In addition, we have devoted significant efforts to improving
production process control by the implementation of sophisticated proprietary IT systems. We conduct
real-time process monitoring and error tracking, allowing us to instantly react to any production related issues.

Close Collaboration with Industry Leaders

We have built long-term and strategic customer relationships by delivering innovative and high-quality
touch solutions. Our customer base is comprised of leading companies known for product innovation with
proven track records of product success. These customers require strategic relationships with touch solution
providers who can synchronize product roadmaps with them to quickly develop highly customized solutions.

As an integral part of our customers’ product development processes, we are able to jointly develop
innovative and industry-defining products and maintain our first mover advantages. Further, our collaboration
with our customers from the initial product design phase reinforces our customer relationships and fosters high
entry barriers.

Experienced Management Team with Proven Technology and Operational Record

We have an experienced management team that has successfully led our operations and increased our
capacity, revenues and profits through rapid organic growth. We believe our management team has extensive
knowledge of our industry, and are passionate and dedicated to our business and visionary about technology
innovation. Many members of our senior management have been involved in the development of touch
technology for more than ten years. We believe that our management has successfully guided our rapid
expansion while enhancing our core competence, allowing us to become the leading provider of P-Cap touch
solution. In particular, Michael Chiang, our founder and the chairman of our board of directors, has over 25
years of experience in the consumer electronics industry. In addition, Tom Sun, our director and president,
possess strong industry experience and expertise accumulated through his more than 20 years of experience
with Motorola.
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Business Strategy

We plan to continue to implement the following strategies to further strengthen our leading position in
the touch solutions industry:

Enhance Partnerships with Existing Major Customers while Diversifying Customer Base

Our key customers are primarily industry leaders in mobile and consumer electronics devices. We intend
to enhance our relationships with our existing major customers by continuing to strategically collaborate on
critical research, design and new product development. In addition, we plan to further diversify our customer
base by offering innovative and customized touch solutions to new customers. Furthermore, we plan to further
continue developing new applications for our touch solutions to expand into new end-markets and further
drive the proliferation of touch technology. We intend to increase investments in research and development to
continue developing advanced solutions that allow our customers to differentiate their products, proliferate
touch solutions into new applications and significantly reduce their time-to-market and overall product costs.
We intend to expand our product suite to include touch modules ranging from 3.5 inch to 32 inch.

Strengthen Our Vertical Integration

We aim to enhance our core competence and expand our profit margin by further strengthening our
vertical integration. Vertical integration allows us to secure a reliable supply of quality raw materials and
components at competitive costs, and reduce our reliance on external suppliers. We plan to increase the
percentage of touch sensors and cover glass produced in-house by establishing additional production facilities.
Meanwhile, we may engage in selective strategic acquisition focusing on targets that can strengthen our
vertical integration and supplement our organic growth. As we further strengthen our vertical integration, we
believe we would further improve our profitability by extracting value associated with each service offering
more effectively. We would also be able to further improve our production efficiency and reduce
time-to-market.

Expand Our Addressable Market

Currently, despite its various desirable features, glass-based P-Cap touch solution is primarily applied in
premium mobile devices and other portable devices as a result of limited production capacity and the
associated higher production cost. By expanding our production capacity, we aim to grow our addressable
markets beyond current scale and thereby capitalize on the fast growing demand for our solutions. In addition,
economies of scale from a larger production capacity lower our production cost. We are in the process of
constructing additional module lamination facilities. By the end of the second quarter of 2011, we plan to
reach a monthly module lamination capacity of 14 million units of 3.5-inch modules and 6 million units of
10-inch modules for glass-based P-Cap touch modules, and 3 million units of 3.5-inch modules for film-based
P-Cap touch modules.

Optimize Our Cost Structure

We control our overall manufacturing costs through the use of our proprietary and efficient equipment
and manufacturing processes, as well as the establishment of operations in relatively low cost locations in the
PRC. In addition, we will continue to seek ways to improve our manufacturing processes, enhance production
technology, develop new product structure, explore substitute raw materials, increase automation and
maximize the benefits of economies of scale. Furthermore, as our production cost decreases, we believe we
will be in a better position to expand our addressable markets beyond the premium mobile devices and other
portable devices market.
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Products and Services

We are the inventor of fully transparent glass-based P-Cap touch technology. We offer our customers
P-Cap touch solutions, including glass-based P-Cap touch modules and touch displays and since 2010, we also
offer film-based P-Cap touch solutions. We design, develop and produce our touch solutions using our
proprietary production process know-how . Our touch module consists of a touch sensor made of indium tin
oxide, or ITO glass, and cover glass that protects the touch sensor. Our touch display consists of display panel
laminated to touch module.

The graphics below illustrate the structure of our major products:

Touch Module

Touch Display

~ Lamination
FPCB / ASIC

Bonding Glue

il

> Lamination

Note: OCA stands for optical clear adhesive, FPCB stands for flexible printed circuit board, and ASIC stands for application specific
integrated circuit.

A touch display integrates completely into one unit the input function through the touch module and the
output function through the display panel. As a result, the touch display equips portable electronics devices
with better optical performance in terms of transparency and clarity, and also minimize refraction, as the
air-gap between touch module and display panel is replaced with OCA. Our touch solutions are widely
applied in portable electronic devices including smartphones, tablets, electronic book readers, portable media
players and portable navigation devices.

Our touch solutions are based on P-Cap technology. Our P-Cap touch sensor is made of glass substrate
coated with ITO, in which the plates are overlapped in a grid pattern. A P-Cap touch sensor does not need to
be directly touched, allowing a cover glass to be applied on top of the touch sensor to increase durability.
Moreover, a P-Cap touch sensor can support multi-touch and has higher sensitivity than a resistive touch
sensor. Glass-based touch sensors in particular have greater sensitivity, transmission capacity and transparency
than the film-based touch sensors.

In addition to the design, development, manufacturing and sale of glass-based P-Cap touch modules, we
also offer ITO glass and provide our customers with lamination services as part of our vertically integrated
one-stop solutions. Our lamination services include the lamination of touch sensor, cover glass, touch module
and display panel. Lamination is a complex technical process, in which proprietary know-how is essential, and
a key factor affecting production yield rate. We have leveraged our P-Cap production expertise to develop
proprietary lamination equipment in-house, which enables us to customize highly specialized and efficient
lamination processes. Our proprietary lamination technologies and equipment as well as our expertise in
process management, we are able to consistently maintain high yield rates, thereby reducing our costs and the
product manufacturing lead time.
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The table below sets forth the breakdown of our net operating revenue by product, each expressed as a
percentage of our net operating revenue, for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010
NT$ %o NT$ %o NT$ US$ %
(in millions, except percentages)
Glass-based touch module™ ... 12,517.0 96.7 18,333.9 98.0 56,324.2 1,933.6 94.5
Film-based touch module........... — — — — 2,164.7 74.3 3.6
ITO glass......cccoceueieueuciciciciine 160.5 1.2 145.2 0.8 524.9 18.0 0.9
Others........coeevivecnienciiccene 264.8 2.1 229.7 1.2 585.0 20.1 1.0
Total ...c.oviiiiiiiiiicce 12,942.3 100.0 18,708.8 100.0 59,598.8 2,046.0 100.0

(1) Includes sales of touch modules and touch displays.

The table below sets forth the average realized unit sales prices for our products, by principal product
categories, for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)
Glass-based touch module™ ..........cccccoovvvviierererireeennnns 574.3 476.1 872.2 29.9
Film-based touch module...........cccceviriiiiiininiiiiiiiccee — — 470.8 16.2
TTO lASS..evieieiieieitieieiet ettt 279.5 286.1 283.4 9.7

(1) Includes sales of touch modules and touch displays.
Production Process

The production of P-Cap touch modules includes ITO deposition and patterning, metal trace and
insulation processes. We vertically integrated our touch module production in order to enhance the quality of
our products and manage our costs effectively. We carry out all production processes and manufacture a
portion of key components in-house. We also utilize proprietary technologies and/or self-designed equipment
in the essential stage of touch modules production. For example, for the production of touch sensors, we
employ our proprietary ITO sputtering technology and photo etching technology. We also employ proprietary
glass cutting, FPC bonding and lamination technology for the production of our touch modules. Our
self-designed lamination equipment and our proprietary know-how for the lamination process enable us to
achieve an industry-leading yield rate and reduce costs.

Raw Materials and Components

The major raw materials and components used in the production of our touch modules include glass
substrate, cover glass and FPCs. We source our raw materials and components from a number of third-party
suppliers. We source our glass substrate from Asahi Glass Co., a flat glass manufacturer based in Japan, as
well as other glass manufacturers. The major suppliers for our cover glass are Fuji Crystal Manufactory
Limited and Shenzhen Lens Technology Co., Ltd., formerly known as Wingyan Crystal Co., Ltd. We also
source touch sensors used in some of our touch modules from certain external suppliers. The FPCs used in
our production are principally sourced from various leading FPC suppliers. Due primarily to production
capacity limitation, we have, from time to time, experienced shortage in the supply of cover glass. We have
not experienced any significant shortage in the supply of any other major raw materials or components used in
our production. In line with the industry practice, we do not have long-term supply contracts with our
suppliers, but typically provide them with annual estimates and monthly rolling forecasts.
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We are in the process of expanding our in-house production capacity for key components, such as touch
sensors and cover glass, allowing us to further optimize our cost structure and ensure sufficient of quality
components.

Sales and Marketing

We sell and market our products through our in-house sales team located in North America, Taiwan,
China, Japan and Korea. As of December 31, 2010, our sales team comprised of 157 members.

A substantial portion of our products are custom designed to meet our customers’ requirements and
specifications. Our product development team works closely with our customers from the initial design stage
to the mass production stage. This process usually takes approximately three to nine months, depending on the
specifications of the product, the qualification processes of individual customers and the availability of certain
raw materials and components. We believe that our vertical integration has improved our development and
production efficiency and reduced the lead time from design to mass-production of a specific product, which
is essential for us to sustain our competitive advantages as the life cycles for electronic products continue to
shorten.

The following table sets out a breakdown of our net operating revenue by geographical region for the
periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010
NT$ % NT$ % NT$ US$ %
(in millions, except percentages)
North America ........ccoceeveveeuenennne 6,654.5 51.4 11,694.6 62.5 45,273.8 1,554.2 76.0
ASIA e 6,241.7 48.2 7,014.2 375 14,325.0 491.8 24.0
Others...cc.oevveveneeieneneeieereen 46.1 0.4 — — — — —
Net operating revenue................ 12,942.3 100.0 18,708.8 100.0 59,598.8 2,046.0 100.0

Historically, sales of our products to two major customers account for a substantial portion of our net
operating revenue. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, sales to our largest customer accounted for 49%, 46% and 73% of
our net operating revenue, respectively. In aggregate, our two largest customers accounted for 82%, 66% and
83% of our net operating revenue in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. Our key customers include
internationally renowned mobile devices and consumer electronics companies. We do not enter into sales
contracts that specify minimum purchase amounts and fixed prices for a fixed term, but our key customers
would provide us annual estimates and monthly or quarterly rolling forecasts. The purchase amounts, pricing
terms and delivery terms depend on the actual purchase order.

Production Facilities

Our principal production facilities for touch modules, touch sensors, cover glass and thin-film touch
modules are located in Xiamen, PRC where we are in the process of establishing additional production
facilities for touch modules and glass processing. The following table sets forth the location, gross floor area
and principal function or products of our production facilities:

Location Gross Floor Area Principal function or products

(square meters)

TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. ............... Xiamen 132,560 Glass-based touch modules

Optera Technology (Xiamen) Co. Ltd............. Xiamen 16,000 ITO glass

TPK Lens Solution InC......c.ccocevevevinerininennennn. Xiamen 16,000 Cover glass

TPK Touch Systems (Xiamen) Inc.................. Xiamen 56,000 Systems and film-based touch modules
Ray-Star Optical Solutions (Xiamen) Inc........ Xiamen 35,200 Optical glass

Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc................. Xiamen 302,088 Glass-based touch modules and glass processing
TPK Glass Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. ................ Xiamen 370,000® Cover glass

(1) Phases 3 and 4 are under construction and expected to be completed by the end of 2011.

(2) Phases 1 and 2 are under construction and expected to be completed by the end of June and December, 2011, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the production capacity and utilization rate of the production facilities for
our principal products in 2008, 2009 and 2010:

2008 2009 2010
Production Production Utilization Production Production Utilization Production Production Utilization
Capacity  Volume Rate Capacity  Volume Rate Capacity  Volume Rate
(Thousand units) (%) (Thousand units) (%) (Thousand units) (%)
Glass-based touch
module.........ccvennnnn.. 27,455 22,180 80.8 45,475 38,360 84.4 74,715 64,778 86.7
Film-based touch
module..........ccoeuen.... — — — — — — 6,328 4,763 75.3
ITO glass.....cccovveverinennee 1,632 1,207 74.0 1,632 1,010 61.9 2,143 1,892 88.3

Upon completion of our expansion plan by the end of second quarter of 2011, we expect our monthly
module lamination capacity of 3.5-inch module and 10-inch module to reach 14.0 million units and 6.0
million units, respectively.

Research and Development

We place significant emphasis on research and development of new products, technologies and designs.
In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we recorded research and development expenses of NT$538.6 million, NT$638.7
million and NT$1,574.3 million (US$54.0 million), respectively, which accounted for 4.2%, 3.4% and 2.6% of
our net operating revenue for the respective years. Currently, our research and development team consist of
995 dedicated staff, among which 81 has a master or doctorate degree in the related fields.

We have focused our research and development efforts on technological innovation in connection with
P-Cap touch sensors as well as improving the efficiency of the production of P-Cap touch sensor. We have
developed, launched and successfully incorporated a number of innovative products or production processes,
including:

° Glass-based P-Cap touch sensor;

° Laser glass cutting technology for chemical strengthened glass;

° Double-sided FPC bonding process;

o Mobile devices cover glass production process; and

° Full lamination with OCA for P-Cap touch module and display panel.

We believe our research and development projects and initiatives will enable us to further improve our
efficiency and drive future product innovation, including:

° Full strength touch-on-lens technology, which enables us to produce glass-based P-Cap touch
modules that are thinner and lighter with better clarity, sensitivity and energy consumption at a
lower cost;

° Different production technology for large-sized touch modules with better cost structure;

° Alternative materials and components; and

° In-house coding firmware capabilities for controllers to optimize ITO pattern design and offer
faster time-to-market and better services.
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Quality Assurance

We believe that the strict quality assurance procedures we implemented have been an important factor in
our success. Quality assurance procedures are implemented throughout the production process, and products
are subject to a number of inspections and control tests. Our output quality assurance system helps to ensure
that all final products pass visual inspection and functional testing before being packaged and sold. We work
closely with our costumers to ensure the quality of our products, and quarterly evaluation is conducted to
identify and address areas to be improved in our quality assurance systems.

Our quality assurance procedures include quality assurance of raw materials and components, which
includes careful selection of reputable suppliers globally, sourcing critical components from leading
manufacturers, quarterly evaluation of our major suppliers and inspection of raw materials and components
upon their arrival at our factories. Raw materials that fail our inspection are returned to the suppliers. For
certain key components, we also station our quality control staff to our suppliers’ sites.

We have received ISO 9001:2000 certification for our quality assurance. More importantly, we have
received quality assurance certification from each of our key customers who we believe have imposed a
higher and stricter standard than the industry practice.

Competition

The touch solutions industry has significant barrier to entry. We compete primarily with Taiwanese
producers of touch modules, including Chimei Innolux Corporation and Wintek Corporation.

The competitive factors include price, quality, lead time, service, technical support, the ability to offer
total solutions and the size and reach of the sales and marketing network. We believe that our strong
technology and production capabilities in relation to touch solutions afford us competitive advantages relative
to our competitors. See also “ — Competitive Strengths.”

Employees
We had 34,453 employees as of December 31, 2010, including 14,699 employees from service
dispatching company. The following table sets forth the number of our employees in each of our areas of

operations and as a percentage of our total workforce as of December 31, 2010:

As of December 31, 2010

Employees Percentage (%)
Management and admMiNISITALIVE .........ccuecieuiriiiiinieieiiteieeee ettt 275 0.8
Sales and MArKEHNE .........c.cooviiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiece ettt 157 0.5
Research and development...........ccccuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 995 29
Operations and qUALILY CONLIOL.......c.oiuiriiiiiiriiiierieietcet ettt 6,066 17.6
Manufacturing and assembILY ............ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiii 12,261 35.6
Others — employees from service dispatching COMPANY.........cccevveerierieirrerieireieeeeeeeseeas 14,699 42.6

TOLAL 1. 34,453 100%

Our success depends on a significant extent upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified
personnel, and our personnel are selected through a rigorous process. We recruit graduates from colleges and
universities. We also recruit employees through various other channels, including postings on job recruitment
websites and human resource agents. From time to time, we employ senior technical and managerial personnel
through executive search firms.

As of December 31, 2010, 10.1% of our employees held college or higher degrees. A number of our
employees have overseas education and industry experience. We provide continuous in-house and on-site
training to our employees.

We are required to make contribution to employee pension plans in the USA, the PRC and the ROC. In

particular PRC subsidiaries are required under the PRC law to make contributions to our employee benefit
plans including pension, work-related injury benefits, maternity insurance and medical and unemployment
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insurance. Our contributions are made based on specified percentages of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of our employees. In 2008, 2009 and 2010 we incurred expenses in connection with such
employee benefits required by applicable regulations in the amount of NT$68.3 million, NT$83.2 million and
NT$139.2 million (US$4.8 million), respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, we have granted employee stock option for an aggregate of 8,756,000
Shares. In addition, our employee stock option plan for the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares has been
approved by the ROC government authority. We have not granted any option under such plan as of the date of
this offering memorandum.

Our employees are not covered by any collective bargaining agreement. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we did
not experience any major disputes with our employees and we believe that we maintain good working
relationships with our employees.

Legal Proceedings

We have not been involved in, and we are not aware of, any material litigation or other proceedings the
outcome of which might, individually or taken as a whole, affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

Intellectual Property and Licenses

As of December 31, 2010, we held 98 patents, including 10 patents in Taiwan, 28 patents in the PRC
and 60 patents in the other foreign countries. Among which, we held 36 invention patents and 62 utility model
patents. In addition, we had 192 pending patent applications worldwide.

With respect to, among other things, proprietary know-hows that are not patentable and processes for
which patents are difficult to enforce, we rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to
safeguard our interests. Many elements of the production process of our touch modules involve proprietary
know-how, technology or data that are not covered by patents or patent applications, including our proprietary
technologies and designs in touch module manufacturing and glass processing equipment, technical processes,
algorithms and procedures. We have taken security measures to protect these elements.

All of our research and development personnel have entered into confidentiality and proprietary
information agreements with us. These agreements address intellectual property protection issues and require
our employees to assign to us all of the inventions, designs and technologies they develop during their
employment with us. We also require our customers and business partners to enter into confidentiality
agreements before we disclose any sensitive aspects of our touch modules, technologies or business plans.

We maintain 29 trademark registrations, including 17 in Taiwan and 12 in the PRC. As our brand name
is becoming more recognized in the touch modules market, we are working to increase, maintain and enforce
our rights in our trademark portfolio, the protection of which is important to our reputation and branding.

Environmental, Health and Safety Issues
Acidic emissions and wastewater are by-products of the production processes for our products and these
pollutants are treated in accordance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. We believe that

our operations are in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations.
We have received ISO14001 certification for environment management.
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Two of our PRC subsidiaries, TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. and Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen)
Inc. are required to obtain, prior to the commencement of production, the clearance of anti-pollution facilities
by the environmental protection authorities and relevant waste water and pollution discharge permits. These
two subsidiaries have commenced production and expect to obtain such clearance and permits in the third
quarter of 2011. See “Risk Factors — If we violate environmental regulations, we may be required to pay
significant fines, our operations may be delayed or interrupted and our business could suffer.”

Our health and safety standards and our implementations of such are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Our
operations are also subject to periodic inspections by the government.

Insurance

We have insurance policies covering risks of typhoon, flooding, damage to buildings and machinery due
to earthquakes or explosions, land and sea delivery and business interruption which we consider adequate and
in line with industry norms. We also have in place a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy.

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

We have established subsidiaries to carry out different operations, including research and development
and the manufacture of certain key components. The diagram below illustrates our corporate structure as of
December 31, 2010:

TPK Holding Co., Ltd. ‘

lloo.o% l 100.0% 100.0% 99.9% 100-0%l
v
TPK Technology Improve Idea Ray-Star Universal Upper Year Optera TPK
International Inc. Investments Ltd. Solutions Limited Holdings Limited Holding Pte. Ltd.
100.0% /00.0% l 100.0% 100.0% l
100.0%
Greatec Precision TPK Asia Pacific TPK Touch TPK Universal 100.0% o |TPK Touch Solutions|
Solution Corp. Sdn. Bhd Solutions Inc. ions Limi ic g
P utions Inc Solutions Limited (Xiamen) Inc. TPK US.A. LLC
1000% ]
New Strategy 0.1% 100.0% | TPK Lens
Investment Ltd. Solutions Inc.

100.0% |TPK Touch Solutions|
> (Xiamen) Inc. 100.0%

Optera Technology
— (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.

55.0% Ray-Star Technology 45.0%
> "(Xiamen) Inc.  [*

Ray-Star Optical P
| Solutions (Xiamen) 45.0%
> Inc.

55.0%

te—

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2010, regarding our subsidiaries and
affiliates in which we hold a significant equity interest (all issued shares in these subsidiaries and affiliates are
fully paid and non-assessable):

Book value of our  Percentage of common
investments as of shares owned by us as

Name and registered address December 31, 2010  of December 31, 2010V Main business
(in NT$ thousands) %

Optera TPK Holding Pte. Ltd. (Singapore)® ........cccccovevunnne. 2,037,061 100.00 Holding company

Improve Idea Investments Ltd. (Samoa)® ...........ccccccovvrrennn. 1,281,077 100.00 Holding company

Upper Year Holdings Limited (Samoa)®.........c.ccccoeververurene. 12,166,996 100.00 Holding company and

international trade

TPK Technology International Inc. (Samoa)® 291,174 100.00 International trade

41



Name and registered address

Book value of our
investments as of
December 31, 2010

Percentage of common
shares owned by us as
of December 31, 2010V

Main business

TPK Touch Solutions Inc. (Taiwan)®..........ccccoevevereuene.

TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. (PRC)? ...................

TPK Lens Solutions Inc. (PRC)® ......covvieeveeeeeeeean.

TPK Touch Systems (Xiamen) Inc. (PRC)®..........co.........

Optera Technology (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (PRC)®...............

Ray-Star Optical Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. (PRC)@...........

Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc. (PRC)®....................

TPK U.S.A. LLC® ..o
New Strategy Investment Ltd. (Samoa) ®........c..ccocevven...

Greatec Precision Solution Corp. (Taiwan)® .................

Ray-Star Universal Solutions Limited (Hong Kong)®®

TPK Asia Pacific Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) @ ...................

TPK Universal Solutions Limited (Hong Kong)®®

(in NT$ thousands)

1,287,157

9,376,579

823,353

680,383

1,478,080

472,436

1,776,093

14,905

5,826

44,200

640,860

%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Research, development
and sales

Touch module research,
development,
manufacturing and sales

Optical glass
manufacturing and sales

Touch display and
system research,
manufacturing and sales

ITO glass research,
development and sales

Optical glass research,
development and sales

ITO glass research,
development and sales

International trade

Holding company

Machinery producing and
sales

Holding company and
international trade

Holding company

Holding company and
international trade

(1) Including common shares held directly by us and indirectly through our subsidiaries. See footnote 2 to our financial statements.

(2) Subsidiaries whose results of operation and financial position have been consolidated in to our results of operation and financial

conditions.

3) Registered on December 17, 2010.

4) Registered on December 3, 2010. Capital not received as of December 31, 2010.
(@) Registered on December 23, 2010. Capital not received as of December 31, 2010.

In February 2011, we established TPK Glass Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. at Xiamen, PRC, as our
wholly-owned subsidiary for the production of cover glass.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
Directors

Our board of directors has ultimate responsibility for the management of our business and affairs. Our
memorandum and articles of association provide for a nine-member board of directors. The following tables
contain certain information about each of our directors and senior executive officers. Each of our directors and
senior executive officers listed below can be reached at our representative office located at No. 13-18, Section
6, Min Quan East Road, Taipei, Taiwan, ROC.

Name Position Since
Michael Chiang.........cccceveevvenereencnnen. Chairman October 20, 2006
Max Fang ......cccccoveeviiniiniiniiicceee Director January 8, 2010
Winnie Peng(]) ..................................... Director November 21, 2005®
Frank Lin@ ..oooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen Director January 8, 2010

Tom SUN oo Director, President January 8, 2010

Alan Chen™ ..o Director February 25, 2011©
SImon Lin....ocoveeiinieiiniiieceeee Independent Director January 8, 2010
Jonathan Chang.........ccccoecvevenenencnen. Independent Director January 8, 2010

C.H. Tong....coocoveeiinieiieeceeee Independent Director January 8, 2010

(1) Representative of Max Gain Management Limited.

(2) Representative of Capable Way Investments Limited.

3) Representative of High Focus Holdings Limited.

4) Representative of Balda Investments Singapore Pte. Ltd.

5) Resigned on October 20, 2006 and reelected on January 8, 2010.

(6) Replacing Michael Sienkiewicz, who was appointed by Balda Investments Singapore Pte. Ltd on January 8, 2010.

Michael Chiang, aged 58, is the chairman of our board of directors and our founder. Prior to founding
our company, Mr. Chiang was the chairman of TVM Corp. and the president of Taiwan Video & Monitor
Corp. He received a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Fu Jen Catholic University in 1975.
Mr. Chiang is the husband of Winnie Peng.

Max Fang, aged 59, is a member of our board of directors. He was first appointed to our board in
January 2010. Mr. Fang founded Maxima Capital Management in May 2002. From 1990 to 2001, Mr. Fang
served as the region director and Asia Pacific supply chain manager at Dell Computer, and was the first
employee in Taiwan who pioneered, established and managed Dell’s Asia Pacific Supply Chain Management.
Mr. Fang has over 20 years of experience in logistics management and procurement. Mr. Fang received his
bachelor’s degree in management science from National Chiao Tung University in 1975 and joined the EMBA
program of National Cheng Chi University in 1998.

Winnie Peng is a member of our board of directors. Prior to joining our company, Ms. Peng was a
supervisor of Taiwan Video & Monitor Corp from 2007 to 2010. She has a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Shih Chien University in 1973. Ms. Peng is the wife of Michael Chiang.

Frank Lin, aged 59, is a member of our board of directors. He is also the managing partner of PKF
Taiwan, Certified Public Accountants & Advisers. From 1990 to 1998, he was the deputy managing partner of
Grant Thornton. Mr. Lin received a master’s degree in accounting from National Cheng Chi University in
1978 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting from National Chung Hsing University, now known as National
Taipei University, in 1976 .

Tom Sun, aged 59, is a member of our board of directors and our president. Mr. Sun joined our
company in 2007 and was first appointed to our board in January 2010. Prior to joining our company, Mr.
Sun was the chief representative of Motorola China Region from 2005 to 2007. He has accumulated rich
experience in customer management, quality management, human resources development, consultancy and
asset management during his 20 years of experience in the United States, Taiwan and the PRC. From 1986 to
2005, he served several positions in Motorola, including sector director of Motorola Communications Sector
in USA from 1986 to 1993, corporate VP of logistic operations at Motorola Asia from 1993 to 1997, as well

43



as president and chairman of Motorola Taiwan Region from 1997 to 2005. Before joining Motorola, Mr. Sun
had worked at St. Paul Company and Zenith Electronics for eight years. Mr. Sun graduated with a master’s
degree in Industrial Engineering from the Illinois State University in 1978 and a bachelor’s degree in
industrial engineering from the Feng Chia University in Taiwan in 1974.

Alan Chen, aged 49, is a member of our board of directors. He has also been a member of the
supervisory Board of Balda AG since 2010. Mr. Chen has also been the president of Touch Video Monitor
Corp. since 2007 and TVM Corp. since 2010. He received a bachelor’s degree of science in electrical
engineering from Tatung University in 1984.

Simon Lin, aged 59, is an independent director of our company. He is the chairman and the chief
executive officer of Wistron Co. Mr. Lin also serves as the chairman for AOpen Inc., Wistron NeWeb, and
Wistron Information and Technology Services Co. Prior to the formation of Wistron, Mr. Lin was the
president of Acer, Inc. He received a bachelor’s degree in engineering from the National Chiao Tung
University in 1975.

Jonathan Chang, aged 54, is an independent director of our company. Mr. Chang is currently an
associate professor at the Department of Communications Management at Shih Hsin University. He has a
MBA degree in finance and advanced professional certificate in accounting from St. John University.

C.H. Tong, aged 75, is an independent director our company. Mr. Tong is also the chairman of Ability
Investment Co., Ltd. He received a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from the Waseda University
in 1965.

Senior Management

The following table contains certain information about each of our senior executive officers.

Name Position Position held since
Michael Chiang.........ccooceevvevvirvienneene Chairman October 20, 2006
Tom Sun.......ooovvvvviiiieeeeeeeeeeee, Director, President January 8, 2007
Eric Chang ........ccccevevvieenienieiieeieene Senior Vice President January 1, 2004
ANN WU e Senior Vice President November 21, 2005
Ted TSaAL.ccooviviieieeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeee Vice President November 6, 2006
CM. HU oot Vice President December 1, 2004
David Lai ......oooovvvviiiiiiiieieeeeeeee, Vice President November 15, 2004
Sammy Lill...oooceniiinienieniieiceieeeee Vice President January 2, 2006
Freddie Liu......coooviviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee, Vice President September 1, 2009
Jimmy Chen ......cooceevviiiienieniiiicccene Vice President August 31, 2009
D A = Vice President June 22, 2009
Jonson Hsieh ......cooooveiiviviiiiiiiiieninnn, Vice President August 1, 2008
C.Y. Chang ......cccoeveeveeriieenienieeieeeens Vice President November 1, 2009
Akira Nakanishi ........ccccceeevveviiireniieens Vice President March 1, 2009
Claude HSU.......ooovvvviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee, Vice President June 1, 2010

Sam Huang .....cccccevvevieviienienieeieens Vice President December 1, 2010

Eric Chang, aged 45, is our senior vice president since January 1, 2004. He has also been the director of
Greatec Precision Solution Corp. since 2009. He received a master’s degree in mechanical engineering from
China University of Science and Technology in 2010.

Ann Wu, aged 49, is our senior vice president. Ms. Wu received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Tunghai University in 1985.

Ted Tsai, aged 45, has served as our vice president since 2006. Mr. Tsai received a bachelor’s degree in
mechanical engineering from Feng Chia University in 1990.

C.M. Hu, aged 52, has served as our vice president since 2004. Dr. Hu was the vice president of Ever

Skill Co. before joining us. He received a Ph.D. degree in chemical engineering from Tatung University in
1989.

44



David Lai, aged 55, has served as our vice president since 2004. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Lai
served as factory chief of LiteOn Technology Co. in Czech Republic and factory chief of Foxconn Group in
Houston, TX.

Sammy Liu, aged 44, has served as our vice president since 2006. Mr. Liu was an associate vice
president of Amkor Technology before joining us.

Freddie Liu, aged 47, has served as our vice president since 2009. Mr. Liu was the vice president in
finance of ASE Group from 1997 to 2009. Before that, Mr. Liu served as the vice president of Citibank. He
received a master’s degree in business administration from the University of Michigan in 1990.

Jimmy Chen, aged 43, has served as our vice president since 2009. Mr. Chen is also a vice president of
Cheng Uei Precision Industry Co., Ltd. He has a master’s degree in industrial engineering from State
University New York in Buffalo in 1997.

T.Y. Lee, aged 54, has served as our vice president since 2009. Mr. Lee was the general manager of the
greater China area of Waffer Technology Corp. from 2006 to 2009. He was the vice president of LiteOn
Technology Co. from 2003 to 2006. He received a bachelor’s degree from National Taipei University of
Technology in 1980.

Jonson Hsieh, aged 44, has served as our vice president since 2008. Mr. Hsieh was a manager of
Dupont, Inc. and Dell, Inc. He received a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from National Sun
Yat-sen University in 1992.

C.Y. Chang, aged 51, has served as our vice president since 2009. He received a bachelor’s degree in
mechanical engineering from National Taiwan University of Technology in 1986.

Akira Nakanishi, aged 64, has served as our vice president since 2009. Mr. Nakanishi was the general
manager of Kyoten Corp. and Nakanishi Corp. He received a bachelor’s degree in accounting in Osaka
College of Foreign Trade in 1965.

Claude Hsu, aged 54, has served as our vice president since 2010. Mr. Hsu served as the chief operation
officer of Balda Solutions (Beijing) Ltd. in 2006. He was the assistant vice president of LiteOn Technology
Corp. in 2000. He received a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Chung Yuan Christian
University in 1988.

Sam Huang, aged 45, has served as our vice president since 2010. Mr. Huang was the vice president of
HannStar Display Corporation from 1998 to 2010. He received a master’s degree in mechanical engineering
from Chung Yuan Christian University in 1990.

Share Ownership, Related Party Transactions and Compensation

As of December 31, 2010, our directors (including the corporate shareholders for whom certain of our
directors are representatives), together with members of their immediate families, owned of record
approximately 94.7 million Shares, or 42.3% of the total issued share capital as of that date, and owned no
options with respect to the shares. See “Our Principal Shareholders.”

The aggregate remuneration paid and benefits in kind granted by us or any of our subsidiaries to our
directors and executive officers in these capacities as a group for 2010 was NT$139.8 million (US$4.8
million). There are no outstanding loans granted by us or any of our subsidiaries to any of the members of the
board or executive officers, and there are no outstanding guarantees provided by us or any of our subsidiaries
for the benefit of any of our directors or executive officers.

None of our directors who are not representatives of our controlling shareholders, or executive officers
have or have had interests in transactions which are or were unusual in their nature or conditions or
significant in relation to our business or any of our subsidiaries and which were effected by us during the
current or immediately preceding fiscal year or were effected during an earlier year and remain in any respect
outstanding or unperformed.
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OUR PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The names of our principal shareholders of record and their share ownership as of December 31, 2010,
the most recent record date, are as follows:

Numbers of Percentage of total
Name Shares held issued shares
1. Balda Investments Singapore Pte. Ltd. " .........cocooiiiiiiiieieeeeee. 35,998,365 16.1%
2. Max Gain Management Limited® ...........cc.cooovrivirrieeesreeeceeeee e 18,536,928 8.3%
3. Capable Way Investments Limited® ..............cccocoovieiiroeeiieeeeienn, 17,006,220 7.6%
4. Appollo Forum Limited™ ............ccccocooimiieeieeeeeeeeee e 14,580,594 6.5%
5. Michael ChIiang .......c.ccooveriiiiieiiiniieienie et 12,707,573 5.7%
6. Wealth Faith Enterprise Inc'™............ccccoooioiiiieieieeeeeee e 12,484,206 5.6%

(1) Wholly-owned by Balda AG, a public company in German.

2) Wholly-owned by Champ Great International Corporation.

3) Wholly-owned by Digitalking Technology Limited, an entity owned by Winnie Peng, the spouse of Michael Chiang.
4) Wholly owned by MPF Wealth Management Limited, an entity owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited.

(5) Wholly-owned by Loyal Best Int’l Group Inc., and entity owned by Bhooshan Sowumber.

As of December 31, 2010, our directors and executive officers, together with members of their
immediate families, owned of record 99.3 million Shares, or approximately 44.3% of our total issued shares.
As of December 31, 2010, our directors and executive officers held outstanding options in respect of
3,136,000 shares.
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CHANGES IN ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

According to our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association, we have only one
class of capital stock, common shares with a par value of NT$10 per share. Currently, our Amended and
Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that our authorized share capital is
NT$3,000,000,000, divided into 300,000,000 shares. There are no Shares issuable upon exercise of options
within 60 days of the date of the offering memorandum. All issued shares are in registered form.

The following table sets forth the changes in our issued share capital as at the dates indicated:

Number of
Number of total issued shares

Date Description shares issued after issue
November 2005......ccccevevvuunnnnns Issuance of common shares for cash 250,000,000 250,000,000
August 2000.......ccccereeieniennne Issuance of common shares for cash 58,261,400 308,261,400
February 2010 ......ccccceeeeeennne. (1)  Authorized share capital increased 180,000,000 180,000,000

from US$50,000,000 to

NT$3,000,000,000;

(2) Converted issued shares of
308,261,400 (with par value of
US$0.10 each) to 100,000,000
(with par value of NT$10.0 each)
shares; and
(3) Capitalization of capital reserve of
80,000,000 Shares
July 2010 ..o (1) Issuance of 9,000,000 Shares as 16,067,522 196,067,522
dividend; and
(2) Issuance of 7,067,522 Shares as
bonus to employees.
October 2010.....ccuuveveeeeeeeeenn... Issuance of Shares for cash 28,000,000 224,067,522
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
From time to time we have engaged in a variety of transactions with our affiliates. Our policy on
transactions with affiliates is that they must be conducted on terms that are substantially the same as those for
comparable transactions with non-affiliates on an arm’s-length basis. Set forth below is a summary of our
transaction with related parties for the periods indicated.

Sales and Purchases of Goods

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we purchased raw materials and components from our related parties in the
aggregate amount of NT$14.0 million, NT$23.7 million and NT$224.3 million (US$7.7 million), respectively.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we sold our products to our related parties in the aggregate amount of NT$47.0
million, NT$39.2 million and NT$957.5 million (US$32.9 million), respectively.

Leases

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, rental disbursement paid to our related parties that was accounted as overhead
amounted to an aggregate of nil, NT$3.2 million and NT$86.4 million (US$3.0 million), respectively.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, rental disbursement paid to our related parties that was accounted as operating
expenses amounted to an aggregate of nil, NT$6.9 million and NT$58.4 million (US$2.0 million),
respectively.

Sales and Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we purchased property, plant and equipment from our related parties in the
aggregate amount of nil, NT$0.6 million and NT$5.0 million (US$0.2 million), respectively.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we sold fixed assets to our related parties in the aggregate amount of NT$12.4
million, NT$0.9 million and nil, respectively.

Accounts Receivable and Payable
In 2008, 2009 and 2010, accounts receivable due from our related parties but accounted for under
accounts receivable amounted to NT$1.9 million, NT$5.7 million and NT$164.2 million (US$5.6 million),

respectively.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, accounts payable due to our related parties but accounted for under accounts
payable amounted to NT$6.9 million, NT$0.5 million and NT$37.3 million (US$1.3 million), respectively.

Deposit of Cash

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we deposited cash for our related parties in the aggregate amount of nil,
NT$61.4 million and NT$81.5 million (US$2.8 million), respectively. The cash was used as deposit for lease
of factory and manufacturing facilities for our related parties.
Amounts due to Related Parties

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, amounts due to our related parties amounted to an aggregate
of NT$164.0 million, nil and nil, respectively, and incurred interests expense of NT$6.8 million, NT$0.6
million and nil. The interest rates for these borrowing ranged from 0% to 7.4%.
Guarantee

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, our related parties provided guarantee for our short-term and

long-term loan of NT$813.0 million, NT$535.0 million and NT$4,084.9 million (US$140.2 million),
respectively.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

The Bonds are to be issued under an indenture, to be dated as of April 20, 2011 (the “Indenture”);
between TPK Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Issuer” or the “Company”) and Citicorp International Limited, in its
capacity as trustee (the “Trustee”). The following summary of certain provisions of the Bonds and the
Indenture does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the
provisions of the Bonds and Indenture, including the definitions of certain terms therein. Whenever particular
Sections or defined terms of the Indenture not otherwise defined herein are referred to, such Sections or
defined terms are incorporated herein by reference. Copies of the Indenture will be available for inspection by
any Holder on or after the Closing Date (as defined below) at the office of the Trustee.

General
Except in certain limited circumstances, Bonds will only be issued in book-entry form.

The Bonds will be issued on or about April 20, 2011 (the date on which the Bonds are issued under the
Indenture being referred to herein as the “Closing Date”) as direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, limited, in aggregate principal amount to US$400,000,000 and will
be redeemed on April 20, 2014 (the “Maturity Date”) unless earlier redeemed, repurchased and canceled, or
converted pursuant to the terms thereof and of the Indenture.

The Bonds will not bear interest.

Each Bond will be convertible, subject to compliance with certain conditions and procedures (see “—
Conversion — Procedures; Conversion Notice; Taxes and Duties” below), at the Holder’s election on any
Business Day during the period (the “Conversion Period”) commencing May 31, 2011 (the 41st day following
the Closing Date) and ending at the close of business on April 10, 2014 (the 10th day prior to the Maturity
Date) in the location of the applicable Paying Agent (as defined below) or if the Bonds are called for
redemption prior to the Maturity Date, on the date seven days prior to the redemption date. The Conversion
Period shall not include any Closed Period (as defined below).

The principal of and other amounts on the Bonds will be payable in U.S. Dollars by the Issuer pursuant
to the Indenture, and the Bonds may be presented for registration of transfer or conversion, at the office or
agency of the Issuer maintained for such purpose (the “Paying Agent”) located in Dublin, Ireland.

The Issuer reserves the right, subject to the provisions of the Indenture, at any time to vary or terminate
the appointment of any Paying Agent and to appoint further or other Paying Agents, provided that the Issuer
will at all times maintain a Paying Agent having offices in Dublin, Ireland or London, England. Notice of any
such termination or appointment and of any changes in the specified offices of the Paying Agents will be
given promptly by the Issuer to the Holders (and other applicable parties) in accordance with the notice
provisions of the Indenture as described below under “— Notices.”

The Bonds will be issued only in fully registered form, without interest coupons, in denominations of
US$100,000 and any integral multiple thereof. See “— Book Entry; Delivery and Form” below. No service
charge will be payable for any registration of transfer of the Bonds, for the conversion thereof or for the
charges of the Paying Agents in connection therewith, but the Issuer may require payment by a Holder of a
sum sufficient to cover any transfer or stamp tax or other similar governmental charge payable in connection
therewith.

The Issuer and its Affiliates may at any time, subject to applicable law, purchase the Bonds in the open
market or otherwise at any price. The Bonds which are purchased (including the purchase by the Issuer and/or
its Affiliates in the open market), redeemed, or converted will be canceled and will not be re-issued.

Book Entry; Delivery and Form

The Bonds will only be represented by a permanent global bond in fully registered book-entry form
without interest coupons (the “Global Bond”) and will be deposited with a common depositary (the “Common
Depositary”) for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Euroclear”) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme
(“Clearstream”) and registered in the name of a nominee of the Common Depositary. If (i) at any time the
Common Depositary advises the Company in writing that it is unwilling or unable to continue as a depository
for the Global Bond and a successor depository is not appointed by the Company within 90 days, (ii) either
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Euroclear or Clearstream or any alternative clearing system on behalf of which the Bonds evidenced by the
Global Bond may be held is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of
holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or in fact does so,
or (iii) an event of default has occurred and is continuing with respect to the Bonds and the Trustee notifies
the Company in writing that any of the Bonds have become immediately due and payable pursuant to the
Indenture and the Trustee has received a written request from more than 25% in aggregate principal amount of
Bonds outstanding to issue individual certificated bonds, the Company shall issue individual certificated bonds
in registered form in exchange for the Global Bond in any authorized denominations and in an aggregate
principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global Bond. The Bonds will have minimum
denominations of US$100,000 and any integral multiple of US$100,000 in excess thereof.

The Bonds are not issuable in bearer form.

Transfers of interests in the Bonds evidenced by the Global Bond will be effected in accordance with the
rules of the relevant clearing systems. In addition, transfers of the Bonds and Common Shares are subject to
certain restrictions. See “Transfer Restrictions of the Bonds”.

Ranking

The Bonds will (i) be direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, (ii)
rank pari passu without any preference or priority among themselves and with all other direct, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated Debt (as defined below) of the Issuer now or hereafter outstanding except as
may be required by mandatory provision of law, and (iii) be senior in right of payment to all Debt of the
Issuer that is expressed to be subordinated in right of payment to the Bonds.

The Bonds will be effectively subordinated to all secured obligations but subject to the negative pledge
as described in “— Negative Pledge”, of the Issuer with respect to claims against the assets securing such
obligations (“Secured Debt”). As of March 31, 2011, the Issuer had no outstanding Secured Debt.

Sinking Fund
The Bonds will not be entitled to the benefit of a sinking fund.

Transfer of Certificated Bonds and Delivery of New Certificated Bonds
In the event Certificated Bonds are issued, the following provisions will apply:
(i)  Transfer of Certificated Bonds

A Certificated Bond may be transferred upon the surrender at the specified office of any Paying Agent
of the Certificated Bonds to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed thereon (the “Form of
Transfer”) duly completed and executed and any other evidence that such Paying Agent may reasonably
require. In the case of a transfer of only part of a holding of Certificated Bonds, a new Certificated Bond shall
be issued to the transferee in respect of the part transferred and a further new Certificated Bond in respect of
the balance of the holding not transferred shall be issued to the transferor. The Form of Transfer will be
available at the specified office of the Paying Agent.

(ii) Delivery of New Certificated Bonds

Each new Certificated Bond shall be available for delivery upon receipt by the Paying Agent at its
specified office of the relevant Certificated Bond and the Form of Transfer. Delivery of the new Certificated
Bonds shall be made at the specified office of such Paying Agent to whom the relevant Certificated Bond and
the Form of Transfer shall have been surrendered or delivered or, at the option of the Holder making such
delivery or surrender as aforesaid and as specified in the relevant Form of Transfer or otherwise in writing, be
mailed by uninsured post at the risk of the holder entitled to the new Certificated Bond to such address as
may be so specified, unless such Holder requests otherwise and pays in advance to the relevant Paying Agent
the costs of such other method of delivery and/or such insurance as it may specify.
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(iii) Formalities Free from Charge

Transfers of the Certificated Bonds will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the Issuer or any
Paying Agent, but only upon confirmation of payment (or the giving of such indemnity as such Paying Agent
may require in respect) of any tax or other governmental charges which may be imposed in relation thereto.

(iv) Restricted Transfer Periods

No Bondholder may require the transfer of a Certificated Bond to be registered (i) during the period of
15 days ending on (and including) a Redemption Date, (ii) after such Bond has been selected by the Issuer or
the Bondholder for redemption, pursuant to the terms of the Indenture or (iii) after such Bondholder has
exercised its Conversion Right.

Additional Amounts

All payments of the principal of and other amounts on the Bonds and all deliveries of Common Shares
(as defined below) made on conversion of the Bonds are to be made free and clear of, and without
withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties, assessments or other governmental charges (“Taxes”) imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or within the Cayman Islands, the ROC or any other jurisdiction in
which the Issuer is organized or resident for tax purposes or from which any payment on the Bonds is made
(or any political subdivision or Taxing Authority (as defined below) thereof or therein), unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law or by regulation or governmental policy having the force of law.
In the event that any such withholding or deduction is so required, the Issuer will pay such additional amounts
on the Bonds (all such additional amounts being referred to herein as “Additional Amounts™) as will result in
receipt by the Holder of each Bond of such amounts as would have been received by such Holder had no
such withholding or deduction been required, except that no Additional Amounts shall be payable for or on
account of:

(i) any Taxes that would not have been imposed but for:

(A) the existence of any present or former connection between the Holder of such Bond and the
Cayman Islands, the ROC or any other jurisdiction in which the Issuer is organized or
resident for tax purposes, other than merely holding such Bond, including such Holder being
or having been a national, domiciliary or resident of or treated as a resident thereof or being
or having been present or engaged in a trade or business therein or having had a permanent
establishment therein;

(B) the presentation of such Bond (if presentation is required) more than 30 days after the later
of the date on which the payment of the principal of and other amounts on such Bond
became due and payable pursuant to the terms thereof or the date that such payment was
made or duly provided for, except to the extent that the Holder thereof would have been
entitled to such Additional Amounts if it had presented such Bond for payment on any date
within such 30 day period; or

(C) the presentation of such Bond for payment in the Cayman Islands or in the ROC, unless
such Bond could not have been presented for payment elsewhere;

(i) any estate, inheritance, gift, sale, transfer, stamp, personal property or similar tax, assessment or
other governmental charge; or

(iii) any combination of Taxes referred to in the preceding clauses (i) and (ii),

The Issuer will not pay Additional Amounts if the registered Holder of the Bond is a fiduciary,
partnership or person other than the sole beneficial owner of any payment to the extent that the beneficiary,
partner or settler with respect to such fiduciary, partnership or person, or the beneficial owner of that payment,
would not have been entitled to the Additional Amounts if it had been the registered Holder of the Bonds.

Whenever there is mentioned, in any context, (i) the payment of principal of and other amounts on any
Bond, or (ii) the delivery of Common Shares or cash payments (if any) on conversion of any Bond, such
mention shall be deemed to include the payment of Additional Amounts to the extent that, in such context,
Additional Amounts are, were or would be payable with respect thereto.
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Redemption for Taxation Reasons

The Bonds may be redeemed, in whole but not in part (subject to the provision of the paragraph below),
at the option of the Issuer, at any time, upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable) and upon written notice to the Trustee, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof on the Redemption Date (as defined below), if the Issuer
determines and certifies to the Trustee in an officer’s certificate immediately prior to the giving of such notice
that, as a result of any change in, or amendment to the laws (including any regulations or rulings promulgated
thereunder) of the Cayman Islands, the ROC or such other jurisdiction in which the Issuer is then organized
or resident for tax purposes (or any political subdivision or Taxing Authority thereof or therein), affecting
taxation, or any change in official position regarding the application, interpretation or administration of such
laws, regulations or rulings (including a holding, judgment or order by a court of competent jurisdiction),
which change, amendment, application, interpretation or administration is proposed and becomes effective on
or after the Closing Date (or, in the case of any jurisdiction other than the Cayman Islands and the ROC, the
date on which the Issuer first becomes organized or resident for tax purposes in such other jurisdiction) with
respect to any payment due or to become due on the Bonds, the Issuer is required to pay Additional Amounts
in connection therewith and such requirement to pay Additional Amounts cannot be avoided by the taking of
reasonable measures by the Issuer; provided that such right cannot be exercised earlier than 45 days prior to
the first date on which the Issuer would be obligated to make an Additional Amounts payment with respect to
all or substantially all of the outstanding Bonds were a payment then due. Prior to the giving of any such
notice of redemption, the Issuer is required to deliver to the Trustee (i) an officer’s certificate stating that such
change or amendment has occurred, describing the facts related thereto and stating that such requirement
cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures and (ii) an opinion of counsel or written advice of
a qualified tax expert that the circumstances referred to in the preceding sentence exist as a result of such
change, amendment, application, interpretation or administration.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Issuer has given a redemption notice for taxation reasons in
accordance with the paragraph above, each Holder of the Bonds will have the right to elect, and the
redemption notice will state that each Holder will have the right to elect, that all or a portion of its Bonds
should not be redeemed. Upon the exercise of such right by the holder, the provisions set forth in “—
Additional Amounts” will not apply to any payment in respect of such Bonds that is due after the relevant
Redemption Date, and such payment will be made subject to the deduction of any Cayman Islands or ROC
tax (or tax of such other jurisdiction in which the Issuer is then organized or resident for tax purposes)
required to be withheld or deducted. To exercise such right the holder must give notice to the Issuer in the
manner set out in the Indenture no later than 15 days prior to the relevant Redemption Date.

Redemption at the Option of the Issuer

The Issuer may redeem the Bonds, in whole but not in part, at any time, on not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ notice, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof on the
Redemption Date if more than 90% in principal amount of the Bonds originally issued has been redeemed,
repurchased and canceled, or converted; provided that the applicable Redemption Date does not fall within a
Closed Period.

Notice of any such redemption will be given by the Issuer to the Holders (and other applicable parties)
in accordance with the notice provisions of the Indenture as described below under “— Notices”.

Redemption at Maturity

Unless the Bonds have been previously redeemed, repurchased and canceled, or converted, the Issuer
will redeem the Bonds on the Maturity Date at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal
amount thereof. The Bonds may be redeemed prior to the Maturity Date only as described herein.
Redemption of the Bonds in the Event of Delisting

In the event that the Common Shares cease to be listed or admitted to trading on the TWSE (a

“Delisting”) each Holder shall have the right (the “Delisting Put Right”), at such Holder’s option to require
the Issuer to redeem all (or any portion of the principal amount thereof which is US$100,000 or any integral
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multiple thereof) of such Holder’s Bonds on the 20th Business Day after the Paying Agent mails to each
Holder such notice regarding the Delisting referred to under “— Redemption Procedures” below (the
“Delisting Put Date”) at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof on the
Delisting Put Date (the “Delisting Put Price”).

Redemption of the Bonds in the Event of Change of Control

If a Change of Control (as defined below) occurs with respect to the Issuer, each Holder shall have the
right (the “Change of Control Put Right”), at such Holder’s option, to require the Issuer to redeem all (or any
portion of the principal amount thereof which is US$100,000 or any integral multiple thereof) of such
Holder’s Bonds on the date set by the Issuer for such redemption (the “Change of Control Put Date”), which
shall be not less than 30 nor more than 60 days following the date on which the Issuer notifies the Trustee
and the Paying Agent in writing of the Change of Control, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
outstanding principal amount thereof on the Change of Control Put Date (the “Change of Control Put Price”).

Redemption Procedures

Not more than ten days promptly after becoming aware of a redemption event, the Issuer will provide
sufficient information to the Trustee and the Paying Agent in sufficient time to permit the Trustee and the
Paying Agent to mail to each Holder a notice regarding such redemption event, which notice shall state, as
appropriate:

(A) other than the Maturity Date, the relevant Redemption Date;

(B) in the case of a Delisting, the date of such Delisting and, briefly, the events causing such
Delisting;

(C) in the case of a Change of Control, the date of such Change of Control and, briefly, the events
causing such Change of Control;

(D) in the case of other redemption events, the events causing such redemption;
(E) the date by which the Holder Redemption Notice (as defined below) must be given;

(F) the Delisting Put Price or the Change of Control Put Price, as the case may be, and the method by
which such amount will be paid;

(G) the names and addresses of all Paying Agents;

(H) briefly, the Conversion Right (as defined below) of the Holders of the Bonds and the then current
Conversion Price;

(I)  the procedures that Holders must follow and the requirements that Holders must satisfy in order to
exercise their redemption rights and Conversion Right; and

(J)  that a Holder Redemption Notice, once validly given, may not be withdrawn.
To exercise its right to require the Issuer to redeem its Bonds, the Holder must deliver a written
irrevocable notice of the exercise of such right (a “Holder Redemption Notice”) to any Paying Agent on any

Business Day prior to the close of business at the location of such Paying Agent on such day and which day
is not less than ten (10) Business Days prior to the Redemption Date.
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Payment of the relevant redemption price for a Certificated Bond is conditioned upon delivery of such
Bond (together with necessary endorsements) to any Paying Agent. Payment of the relevant redemption price
for any Bond will be made on the Redemption Date or, if such Bond is a Certificated Bond and has not been
so delivered on or prior to the Redemption Date, at the time of delivery of such Bond. If the Paying Agent
holds, in accordance with the terms of the Indenture, cash sufficient to pay the relevant redemption price of
such Bond on the Redemption Date, then, immediately after such Redemption Date, such Bond will cease to
be outstanding, whether or not such Bond is delivered to a Paying Agent, and all other rights of the Holder
shall terminate (other than the right to receive the relevant redemption price).

Certain Definitions

Set forth below is a summary of certain of the defined terms used in the covenants and other provisions
of the Indenture. Reference is made to the Indenture for the full definition of all such terms, as well as any
other capitalized terms used herein for which no definition is provided.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person (the “Specified Person”), (i) any Person other than the
Specified Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under direct or indirect common control
with, the Specified Person or (ii) any Person who is a director or executive officer (A) of the Specified
Person, (B) of any Subsidiary of such Specified Person or (C) of any Person described in clause (i) above. For
purposes of this definition, the term “control” when used with respect to any Person means the possession,
directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such
Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities or by contract or otherwise.

“Agent” means any registrar, paying agent, conversion agent and transfer agent.

“Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in
Taipei, Hong Kong, London, England and the City of New York (or, if applicable, in the city where the
relevant Paying Agent is located) are authorized by law to close or are otherwise not open for business.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any Person, any and all shares, ownership interests, participation
or other equivalents (however designated), including all common stock and all preferred stock, of such Person.

“Certificated Bonds” means the individual certificated Bonds executed and delivered by the Issuer and
authenticated by or to the order of the Trustee, which may be delivered in exchange for the Global Bond in
certain circumstances.

“Change of Control” means when:

(1) any Person or Persons (as defined below) acting together acquires Control of the Issuer if such
Person or Persons does not or do not have, and would not be deemed to have, Control of the
Issuer on the Closing Date; or

(2) the Issuer consolidates with or merges into or sells or transfers all or substantially all of the
Issuer’s assets to any other Person, unless the consolidation, merger, sale or transfer will not result
in the other Person or Persons acquiring Control over the Issuer or the successor entity.

“Closing Price” means for any Trading Day (a) with respect to the Common Shares, the closing sales
price of the Common Shares on the TWSE on such day or, if no reported sales take place on such day, the
average of the reported closing bid and offered prices, in either case as reported by the TWSE for such day as
furnished by a leading independent securities firm in Taiwan selected from time to time by the Issuer and
notified to the Paying Agent for this purpose, and (b) with respect to Capital Stock of the Issuer (other than
Common Shares), the closing bid price for such Capital Stock (other than Common Shares) on the Selected
Exchange (as defined under “Trading Day” below).

“Common Shares” means shares of the common stock of the Issuer, par value NT$10.0 per share.

“Control” means (i) the right to appoint and/or remove all or the majority of the members of the
Issuer’s Board of Directors or other governing body, whether obtained directly or indirectly, and whether
obtained by ownership of share capital, the possession of voting rights, contract or otherwise; or (ii) the
acquisition or control of more than 50% of the voting rights of the issued share capital of the Company.
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“Conversion Price” means the price at which the Shares will be issued upon conversion, which will
initially be NT$1,071.84 per Common Share, subject to adjustment in the manner provided in “— Conversion
— Adjustments to the Conversion Price” below.

“Debt” means, with respect to any Person at any date, without duplication, (i) all obligations of such
Person for borrowed money, (ii) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other
similar instruments, (iii) all obligations of such Person to pay the deferred purchase price of property or
services, except trade accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of business, (iv) all obligations of such
Person as lessee which are capitalized in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to such Person, (v) all Debt secured by a Lien on any asset of such Person, whether or not such
Debt is otherwise an obligation of such Person, (vi) all obligations of such Person to purchase securities or
other property that arise out of or in connection with the sale of the same or substantially similar securities or
property, (vii) all non-contingent obligations of such Person to reimburse any bank or other Person in respect
of amounts paid under a letter of credit or similar instrument and (viii) all Debt of others guaranteed by such
Person.

“Default” means any condition or event which, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, would
become an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture).

“FSC” means the Financial Supervisory Commission of the ROC.

“Holder”, “holder” and “Bondholder” in relation to a Bond means the person in whose name a Bond is
registered in the Bond register.

“Lien” means, with respect to any property or asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest
or encumbrance of any kind in respect of such property or asset, including, without limitation, the right of a
vendor, lessor or similar party under any conditional sales agreement, capital lease or other title retention
agreement relating to such property or asset, and any other right of or arrangement with any creditor to have
its claims satisfied out of any property or assets, or the proceeds therefrom prior to any general creditor of the
owner thereof.

“Market Value” means (i) in the case of Common Shares, the average of the Closing Prices of the
Common Shares for the most recent 30 Trading Days, (ii) in the case of Capital Stock (other than Common
Shares) which is listed on the Selected Exchange, the average of the Closing Prices of such Capital Stock
(other than Common Shares) for the most recent 30 Trading Days and (iii) in the case the market value cannot
be determined pursuant to the procedures above, the market value determined by an opinion of an
independent, internationally recognized investment banking firm selected by the Issuer at the expense of the
Issuer.

“Person” means any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, undertaking,
association, organization, trust, state or agency of a state (in each ease whether or not being a separate legal
entity), limited liability company, government or political subdivision or agency or instrumentality thereof, or
any other entity or organization, provided that in the context of a Change in Control, a Person does not
include the Issuer’s Board of Directors or any other governing board and does not include the Issuer’s
wholly-owned direct or indirect subsidiaries.

“Principal Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any Subsidiary (i) whose net sales, as shown
by the latest audited financial statements (consolidated in the case of a Subsidiary which itself has
Subsidiaries) of such Subsidiary, constitute at least 10% of the consolidated net sales of such Person and its
consolidated Subsidiaries as shown by the latest audited consolidated financial statements of such Person or
(i) whose gross assets, as shown by the latest audited financial statements (consolidated in case of a
Subsidiary which itself has Subsidiaries) of such Subsidiary constitute at least 10% of the gross assets of such
Person and its consolidated Subsidiaries as shown by the latest audited consolidated financial statements of
such Person.

“Redemption Date” means, with respect to any Bond, (i) the date fixed for redemption of such Bond
pursuant to a notice of redemption given by the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture or
(i1) the Maturity Date of such Bond if such Bond has not been redeemed, repurchased and canceled, or

converted in accordance with its terms prior to the Maturity Date.

“Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any entity which is controlled or of which more than
50% of its Capital Stock is owned directly or indirectly by such Person,

“Taxing Authority” means any government or political subdivision or any authority or agency thereof,
having the legal power and authority to levy a mandatorily payable charge, assessment or tax.

“Trading Day” means (a) with respect to the Common Shares, a day when the TWSE is open for
business, provided, however, if no transaction price or closing bid and offered prices are reported by the
TWSE in respect of the Common Shares for one or more Trading Days, such day or days will be disregarded
in any relevant calculation and will be deemed not to have existed when ascertaining any period of
consecutive Trading Days and (b) with respect to Capital Stock of the Issuer (other than Common Shares), a
day on which any securities exchange or quotation system selected by the Issuer (the “Selected Exchange”) on
which shares of such Capital Stock (other than Common Shares) are quoted or traded is open for trading or
quotation; provided, however, if no bid price is reported by the Selected Exchange in respect of such Capital
Stock (other than Common Shares) for one or more Trading Days, such day or days will be disregarded in
any relevant calculation and will be deemed not to have existed when ascertaining any period of consecutive
Trading Days.

“TWSE” means Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Certain Covenants
Negative Pledge

So long as any Bond remains outstanding, the Issuer shall not, and shall procure that none of its
Principal Subsidiaries will, create or permit to subsist any Lien on any of its or, as the case may be, such
Principal Subsidiary’s, property, assets or revenues, present or future, to secure for the benefit of the holders
of any International Investment Securities (as defined below) (i) payment or any sum owing in respect of any
such International Investment Securities, (ii) any payment under any guarantee of any such International
Investment Securities or (iii) any payment under any indemnity or other like obligation relating to any such
International Investment Securities, unless contemporaneously therewith effective provision is made to secure
the Bonds (a) equally and ratably with such International Investment Securities with a similar Lien on the
same property, assets or revenues securing such International Investment Securities for so long as such
International Investment Securities are secured by such Lien or (b) with such other security as shall be
approved by registered holders holding not less than 50% of the principal amount of the outstanding Bonds.

As used herein, “International Investment Securities” means bonds, debentures, notes or other similar
investment securities of the Issuer or any other person evidencing indebtedness with a maturity of not less
than one year from the issue date thereof, or any guarantees thereof, which (i) either (A) are by their terms
payable, or confer a right to receive payment, in any currency other than NT Dollars or (B) are denominated
in NT Dollars and more than 50% of the aggregate principal amount thereof is initially distributed outside the
ROC by or with the consent of the Issuer and (ii) are for the time being, or are intended to be, quoted, listed,
ordinarily dealt in or traded, in each case primarily, on a stock exchange or over-the-counter or other
securities market outside the ROC.

Consolidation, Amalgamation or Merger

The Issuer shall not consolidate with, merge or amalgamate into or transfer or convey all or
substantially all of its properties and assets to, any Person (the consummation of any such event, a “Merger”),
unless:

(i)  the corporation formed by such Merger or the Person that acquired such properties and assets shall
expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental to the Indenture, all obligations of the Issuer
under the Indenture and the performance of every covenant and agreement applicable to it
contained therein;

(i) immediately after giving effect to any such Merger, no Default or Event of Default shall have
occurred or be continuing or would result therefrom;
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(iii) the Issuer at least 20 Business Days prior to the Merger has delivered to the Trustee an officer’s
certificate stating that such Merger complies with the provisions of the Indenture relating to this
matter and that all conditions precedent therein provided for or relating to such Merger have been
complied with;

(iv) the corporation formed by such Merger, or the Person that acquired such properties and assets,
shall expressly agree to (A) indemnify each holder of a Bond against any tax, assessment or
governmental charge payable by withholding or deduction thereafter imposed on such holder
solely as a consequence of such Merger with respect to the payment of principal of and other
amounts on the Bonds and (B) if organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the Cayman
Islands, to deliver a substitute undertaking to the Trustee to pay any additional amounts as may be
necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Bonds, after any
withholding or deduction of any such tax, assessment or other governmental charge shall equal the
respective amounts of principal and Additional Amounts, which would have been receivable in
respect of the Bonds in the absence of such Merger. No successor corporation or other Person
shall have the right to redeem the Bonds unless the Issuer would have been entitled to redeem the
Bonds pursuant to the Indenture in the absence of the Merger; and

(v) the Issuer shall as soon as practicable on or prior to the Merger, deliver to the Trustee an opinion
satisfactory to the Trustee of counsel(s) of recognized standing as to the legality and validity of
the Merger.

In the event of any such Merger, the provisions described under “— Additional Amounts” and “—
Redemption for Taxation Reasons” above will be applicable to the corporation formed by such Merger or the
Person acquiring such properties and assets as appropriate.

Conversion
Conversion Right

Each Holder will have the right (the “Conversion Right”) during the Conversion Period to convert its
Bonds (being US$100,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple thereof), at the option of such
converting Holder, upon delivery of an irrevocable notice (the “Conversion Notice”) at the office of any
Paying Agent, on any Business Day prior to the close of business at the location of the Paying Agent to which
such Conversion Notice is delivered, into Common Shares; provided, however, that the Conversion Right
during any Closed Period (as defined below) shall be suspended and the Conversion Period shall not include
any such Closed Period. “Closed Period” means (i) the 60-day period immediately prior to the date of any of
the Company’s ordinary shareholders’ meetings; (ii) the 30-day period immediately prior to the date of any of
the Company’s extraordinary shareholders’ meetings; (iii) the period from the fifteenth Trading Day prior to
the fifth day before the record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to the receipt of
dividends, subscription of new Common Shares due to capital increase or other benefits and bonuses to such
record date; (iv) and the period from the record date for the determination of the shareholders participating in
any capital reduction to the first Trading Day immediately prior to the date on which the Common Shares
resume trading after such capital reduction; and (v) such other periods during which the Company may be
required to close its stock transfer books under Cayman Islands and/or ROC laws and regulations applicable
from time to time. The Issuer shall procure that Holders (and other applicable parties) are given at least seven
days’ but not more than 60 days’ prior notice of any Closed Period in accordance with the provisions of the
Indenture.

The number of Common Shares to be issued upon conversion will be determined by dividing the
aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds to be converted by such Holder (translated into NT Dollars at the
fixed rate of NT$29.065 = US$1.00 (the “Exchange Rate™)) by the Conversion Price in effect on the
Conversion Date (as defined below). Fractions of Common Shares will not be issued on conversion, and the
Issuer will pay in US Dollars for any fraction of a Common Share not issued as aforesaid, net of remittance
fees, rounding to one US Dollar with US$0.50 being rounded upwards.

The Conversion Price shall at all times be subject to Antidilution Adjustment (as defined below).
Restrictions on Shareholdings by PRC Persons

Under current ROC laws, regulations and policy, a PRC person is not permitted to convert the Bonds
and to register as shareholders of the Issuer unless it is a qualified domestic institutional investor (“QDII”),
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provided that the total shareholding of the QDIIs with respect to the Issuer cannot exceed 30%. In addition,
there are restrictions on the amount remitted to Taiwan for investments by QDIIs, separately and jointly.
Accordingly, the qualification criteria for a PRC person to make investment and the investment threshold
imposed by the FSC and the TWSE might cause a Bondholder who is a PRC person to be unable to convert
and hold the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Bonds. Under current ROC laws, “PRC
person” means an individual holding a passport issued by the PRC, a resident of any area of China under the
effective control or jurisdiction of the PRC (but not including a special administrative region of the PRC such
as Hong Kong and Macau, if so excluded by applicable laws of the ROC), any agency or instrumentality of
the PRC and any corporation, partnership or other entity organized under the laws of any such area or
controlled by, or directly or indirectly having more than 30% of its capital owned by, or beneficially owned by
any such person, resident, agency or instrumentality.

ROC Procedures for Foreign Nationals Holding Common Shares

Under the existing ROC law, a non-ROC converting Holder, before exercising the Conversion Right, is
required to register with the TWSE for making investments in the ROC securities market. Such non-ROC
converting Holder is also required to appoint a local agent in Taiwan which meets the qualifications that are
set from time to time by the FSC to open a securities trading account with a local brokerage firm and a bank
account to remit funds, pay taxes, exercise shareholders’ rights and perform such other functions as may be
designated by such Holder. In addition, such non-ROC converting Holder must also appoint a custodian bank
in Taiwan to hold the securities and any cash proceeds for safekeeping, to make confirmation and settlement
of trades and to report all relevant information. Furthermore, such non-ROC converting Holder is required to
appoint an agent, referred to as a Tax Guarantor, in Taiwan which meets the qualifications that are set from
time to time by the Ministry of Finance of the ROC for filing tax returns and making tax payments on their
behalf. Without meeting such requirements, such non-ROC converting Holder would not be able to hold or
sell or otherwise transfer Common Shares into which the Bonds may be converted on the TWSE or otherwise.

Delivery of Common Shares upon Conversion

Upon a converting Holder exercising its Conversion Right, the Issuer shall as promptly as practicable
issue Common Shares upon conversion of Bonds in accordance with the Cayman Islands and ROC law.

The Issuer’s delivery to the Bondholder of the number of Common Shares into which the Bonds are
convertible will be deemed to satisfy the Issuer’s obligation to pay the principal amount of such Bonds.

See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Ownership of the Bonds and our Shares — A liquid market for
the Bonds may not develop, and the market for the Shares may not be liquid.”

Procedures; Conversion Notice; Taxes and Duties

In order to effect a conversion, each Holder must complete, execute and deliver at such Holder’s
expense during the Conversion Period to the office of any Paying Agent, a Conversion Notice, in the form
then obtainable from the office of any Paying Agent, together, in the case of Certificated Bonds, with the
certificate representing the Bonds to be converted, and any certificates and other documents as may be
required under applicable law and any expenses or other payments required to be paid by the Holder pursuant
to the terms of the Indenture. The Conversion Notice shall contain, inter alia, an appointment of a local agent
by such converting Holder and the name and address of such local agent.

A Conversion Notice once so delivered may not be withdrawn without the consent in writing of the
Issuer. Holders who deposit a Conversion Notice during a Closed Period will not be permitted to convert their
Bonds until the first Business Day which is a Trading Day following the last day of that Closed Period which
(if all other conditions to conversion have been fulfilled) will be the Conversion Date for such Bonds. Such
Holders will not be registered as holders until the Conversion Date. The price at which such Bonds will be
converted will be the Conversion Price in effect on the Conversion Date.

As conditions precedent to conversion, the Holder must confirm to the applicable Paying Agent that all
stamp, issue, registration and similar taxes and duties (if any) arising on conversion in the country in which
the Bond is deposited for conversion, or payable in any jurisdiction consequent upon the issue and delivery of
Common Shares or any other property or cash upon conversion to or to the order of a person other than the
converting Bondholder have been paid to the relevant authority. Except as aforesaid, the Issuer will pay the
expenses arising in the Cayman Islands and the ROC on the issue of Common Shares on conversion of Bonds
and all charges of the Paying Agents in connection therewith as provided in the Indenture. The date on which
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any Bond and the Conversion Notice (in duplicate) relating thereto, together with any certificates and other
documents as may be required under applicable law, are deposited with a Paying Agent and the payments, if
any, required to be paid by the Bondholder are made is hereinafter referred to as the “Deposit Date”. The
“Conversion Date” applicable to a Bond shall mean the next Business Day following the Deposit Date (or the
first Business Day following the last day of a Closed Period if the related Conversion Notice was deposited
during such Closed Period), where such conversion day must be a Trading Day and must fall within the
Conversion Period. The Holder must therefore satisfy all such conditions on or before the Business Day prior
to the end of the Conversion Period.

Conversion Notices shall be deposited at the office of any Paying Agent on any Business Day prior to
the close of business at the location of the Paying Agent to which such Conversion Notice is delivered. Upon
receipt of such Conversion Notices, the Paying Agent shall have not more than one full Business Day to
process and transmit such Conversion Notices to the Issuer.

With effect from the opening of business in the ROC on the Conversion Date, the Issuer will deem the
person designated in the Conversion Notice as the person in whose name the Common Shares to be issued
upon such conversion are to be registered as the holder of record of the number of Common Shares
(disregarding any retroactive adjustment of the Conversion Price referred to below prior to the time such
retroactive adjustment shall have become effective), and at such time the rights of such converting Holder as a
Holder with respect to the Bonds deposited for conversion shall cease.

On the Conversion Date, the Issuer will register the converting Holder (or its designee) in the Issuer’s
register of shareholders as the owner of the number of Common Shares to be issued upon conversion of such
Bonds and, subject to any applicable limitations then imposed by Cayman Islands and/or ROC laws and
regulations, according to the request made in the relevant Conversion Notice, procure that, as soon as
practicable, and in any event within five Trading Days from the Conversion Date (subject to changes to
Cayman Islands and/or ROC laws and regulations), there be delivered to the local agent appointed by the
converting Holder through book-entry system of Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation (“TDCC”) or
through physical delivery of a certificate or certificates for the relevant Common Shares, registered in the
name specified for that purpose in the relevant Conversion Notice, together with any other property or cash
required to be delivered upon conversion and such assignments and other documents (if any) as may be
required by law to effect the delivery thereof.

Adjustments to the Conversion Price

Antidilution. The Conversion Price will be subject to adjustment (“Antidilution Adjustment”) in the
circumstances described below:

(i)  If the Issuer shall issue Common Shares as a dividend in Common Shares or make a distribution
of Common Shares which is treated as a capitalization issue for accounting purposes (including
but not limited to capitalization of retained earnings or capital reserves), then the Conversion Price
in effect on the record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to receive such
dividend and/or distribution shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [N/ (N + n)]

where:

NCP = the Conversion Price after such adjustment.

OoCP = the Conversion Price before such adjustment.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding at the time of issuance of such
dividend and/or distribution (or at the close of business in Taipei on such record
date, as the case may be).

n = the number of Common Shares to be distributed to the shareholders as a

dividend and/or distribution.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

If the Issuer shall (a) subdivide its outstanding Common Shares, (b) combine its outstanding
Common Shares into a smaller number of Common Shares, or (c) re-classify any of its Common
Shares into other securities of the Issuer, then the Conversion Price shall be appropriately adjusted
so that the holder of any Bond, in respect of the Conversion Date which occurs after the coming
into effect of the adjustment described in this subsection (ii), shall be entitled to receive the
number of Common Shares and/or other securities of the Issuer which it would have held or have
been entitled to receive after the happening of any of the events described above had such Bond
been converted immediately prior to the happening of such event (or, if the Issuer has fixed a
prior record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to receive any such securities
issued upon any such subdivision, combination or reclassification, immediately prior to such
record date), but without prejudice to the effect of any other adjustment to the Conversion Price
made with effect from the date of the happening of such event (or such record date) or any time
thereafter.

If the Issuer shall issue Common Shares as employee stock bonuses, then the Conversion Price in
effect on the record date shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [N +Vv)/ (N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding at the close of business in the ROC
on the date the Issuer fixes the said issuance.

n = the number of Common Shares to be issued in connection with such issuance.

v = the number of Common Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by
the Issuer would purchase at the Market Value specified therein.

Such adjustment shall, immediately upon the approval of the shareholders’ meeting for the
employee stock bonuses, become effective retroactively to immediately after the record date.

If the Issuer shall grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares rights entitling them to
subscribe for or purchase Common Shares, which expression shall include those Common Shares
which are required to be offered to employees and persons other than shareholders in connection
with such grant, issue or offer, at a consideration per Common Share receivable by the issuer
which is fixed:

(a) on or prior to the record date mentioned below and is less than the Market Value per
Common Share on such record date; or

(b) after the record date mentioned below and is less than the Market Value per Common Share
on the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration,

then the Conversion Price in effect (in the case of (a) above) on the record date for the
determination of the shareholders entitled to receive such rights or (in the case of (b) above) on
the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration shall be adjusted in accordance with the following
formula:

NCP = OCP x [N +Vv)/ (N + n)]

where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding at the close of business in the ROC
(in the case of (a) above) on such record date or (in the case of (b) above) on
the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration.
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)

n = the number of Common Shares to be issued in connection with such rights issue
at the said consideration.

v = the number of Common Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by
the Issuer would purchase at such Market Value specified in (a) or, as the case
may be, (b) above.

Such adjustment shall become effective immediately after the latest date for the submission of
applications of such Common Shares by shareholders entitled to the same pursuant to such rights
or (if later) immediately after the Company fixes the said consideration but retroactively to
immediately after the record date mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares of rights entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Common Shares, any Common Shares which are not subscribed
for or purchased by the persons entitled thereto are purchased by other persons after the latest date
for the submission of applications for such Common Shares, an adjustment shall be made to the
Conversion Price in accordance with the above provisions which shall become effective
immediately after the date the Company receives the consideration in full, from such other persons
but retroactively to immediately after the record date mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares of rights entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Common Shares, any such Common Shares which are not
subscribed for or purchased by such other persons as referred to above or by the persons entitled
thereto (or persons to whom shareholders have transferred such rights) who have submitted
applications for such Common Shares as referred to above are offered to and/or subscribed by
others, no further adjustment shall be made to the Conversion Price by reason of such offer and/or
subscription.

If the Issuer shall grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares warrants entitling them to
subscribe for or purchase Common Shares at a consideration per Common Share receivable by the
Issuer which is fixed:

(a) on or prior to the record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to receive
such warrants and is less than the Market Value per Common Share at such record date; or

(b) after the record date mentioned above and is less than the Market Value per Common Share
on the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration,

then the Conversion Price in effect (in a case within (a) above) on the record date for the
determination of the shareholders entitled to receive such warrants or (in a case within (b) above)
on the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration shall be adjusted in accordance with the
following formula:

NCP = OCP x [N +vVv)/ (N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding at the close of business in the ROC
(in the case of (a) above) on such record date or (in the case of (b) above) on
the date the Issuer fixes the said consideration.

n = the number of Common Shares initially to be issued upon exercise of such
warrants at the said consideration where no applications by shareholders
entitled to such warrants are required. Where applications by shareholders
entitled to such warrants are required, n equals the number of such Common
Shares that equals (A) the number of warrants which underwriters have agreed
to underwrite as referred to below or, as the case may be, and (B) the number
of warrants for which applications are received from shareholders as referred to
below except to the extent already adjusted for under (A).
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(vi)

v = the number of Common Shares which the aggregate consideration receivable by
the Issuer would purchase at such Market Value per Common Share specified
in (a) or, as the case may be, (b) above.

Such adjustment shall become effective, where applications by shareholders entitled to the same
are required as aforesaid, immediately after the latest date for the submission of such applications
or (if later) immediately after the Company fixes the said consideration but retroactively to
immediately after the record date mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares warrants entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Common Shares, any warrants which are not subscribed for or
purchased by the persons entitled thereto are purchased by other persons after the latest date for
the submission of applications for such warrants, an adjustment shall be made to the Conversion
Price in accordance with the above provisions which shall become effective immediately after the
date the Company receives the consideration in full, from such other persons but retroactively to
immediately after the record date mentioned above.

If, in connection with a grant, issue or offer to the holders of Common Shares warrants entitling
them to subscribe for or purchase Common Shares, any such warrants which are not subscribed
for or purchased by such other persons as referred to above or by the persons entitled thereto (or
persons to whom shareholders have transferred such rights) who have submitted applications for
such warrants as referred to above are offered to and/or subscribed by others, no further
adjustment shall be made to the Conversion Price by reason of such offer and/or subscription.

If the Issuer or any Subsidiary of the Issuer shall distribute to the holders of Common Shares, any
shares of Capital Stock of the Issuer other than Common Shares, evidences of its indebtedness or
other assets (other than cash distributions described below) of the Issuer, or rights or warrants to
subscribe for or purchase any Capital Stock of the Issuer (other than Common Shares), then the
Conversion Price in effect on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to
receive such distribution shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [M - fmv) / M]
where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

M = the Market Value per Common Share on the record date for the determination
of shareholders entitled to receive such distribution.
fmv = the fair market value (as determined by an independent financial institution

selected by the Issuer, at the expense of the Issuer and promptly notified in
writing to the Trustee) of the portion of Capital Stock other than Common
Shares, evidences of indebtedness or other assets so distributed applicable to
one Common Share less any consideration payable for the same by the relevant
Shareholder.

(vii) In case the issuer shall, by dividend or otherwise, distribute to all holders of Common Shares cash

then, in such case, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted (with such adjustment to be effective on
the record date for the determination of the shareholders entitled to receive such distribution) in
accordance with the following formula;

NCP = OCPx [(M -C)/M]
where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.
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the Market Value per Common Share on such record date.
C = the amount of cash so distributed applicable to one Common Share.
If such dividend or distribution is not so paid or made, the Conversion Price shall again be

adjusted to be the Conversion Price which would then be in effect if such dividend or distribution
had not been approved.

(viii) If the Issuer shall reduce its share capital other than by means of canceling any Common Shares

(ix)

or repurchasing any Common Shares and for the purposes of holding such Common Shares in
treasury, then the Conversion Price in effect on the record date for the determination of the
shareholders participating in such capital reduction shall be adjusted in accordance with the
following formula:

NCP = OCP x (N /n)

where:

NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to such capital
reduction.

n = the number of Common Shares outstanding immediately after such capital
reduction.

For the avoidance of doubt, no adjustment to the Conversion Price under this subsection will be
required if the Company cancels any Common Shares or redeems any Common Shares for the
purposes of holding such Common Shares in treasury.

Such adjustment shall become effective immediately on the record date for the determination of
the shareholders participating in such capital reduction.

In case a tender or exchange offer made by the Issuer or any Subsidiary of the Issuer for all or
any portion of the Common Shares shall expire and such tender or exchange offer shall involve
the payment by the Issuer or such Subsidiary of consideration per Common Share having a Fair
Market Value (as determined by an independent financial institution selected by the Company, at
the expense of the Company and promptly notified in writing to the Trustee) at the last time (the
“Expiration Date”) tenders or exchanges could have been made pursuant to such tender or
exchange offer (as it shall have been amended) that exceeds the Market Value per Common Share,
as of the Expiration Date, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted in accordance with the following
formula:

NCP = OCPx [Nx M)/ (a+ [(N-n)x M]]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding (including any tendered or
exchanged Common Shares) on the Expiration Date.

M = Market Value per Common Share as of the Expiration Date.

a = the Fair Market Value of the aggregate consideration payable to the holders of
Common Shares based on the acceptance (up to a maximum specified in the
terms of the tender or exchange offer) of all Common Shares validly tendered
or exchanged and not withdrawn as of the Expiration Date (the Common Shares
deemed so accepted up to any such maximum, being referred to as the
“Purchased Shares”).
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)

(xi)

n = the number of Purchased Shares.

such reduction to become retroactively effective immediately prior to the opening of business on
the day following the Expiration Date.

If the Issuer is obligated to purchase Common Shares pursuant to any such tender or exchange
offer, but the Issuer is permanently prevented by applicable law from effecting any such purchase
or all such purchases are rescinded, the Conversion Price shall again be adjusted to be the
Conversion Price which would then be in effect if such tender or exchange offer had not been
made.

In case the Issuer issues Common Shares (other than Common Shares based on any of the
circumstances described in subsections (i), (ii) and (iii)) or the Issuer or any Subsidiary of the
Issuer shall issue any securities initially convertible into or exchangeable for Common Shares at a
price per Common Share less than the Market Value per Common Share determined as of the date
on which the Board of Directors or shareholders’ meeting of the Issuer or such Subsidiary, if
applicable, approves such issuance, the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to the date of
issue of such Common Shares or convertible or exchangeable securities shall be adjusted and
become effective in accordance with the following formula:

NCP = OCP x [N +Vv)/ (N + n)]
where:
NCP and OCP have the meanings ascribed thereto in subsection (i) above.

N = the number of Common Shares outstanding on the date of issuance of such
Common Shares or initially convertible or exchangeable securities,
immediately prior to such issuance.

n = the number of Common Shares issued or issuable upon conversion or exchange
of such initially convertible or exchangeable securities.

v = the number of Common Shares which the aggregate consideration issue price of
the total amount of Common Shares would purchase at Market Value; in the
case of convertible or exchangeable securities, the number of Common Shares
which the conversion price or exchange price of the newly issued securities
multiply by n would purchase at Market Value; provided that if the new
Common Shares are issued by the Issuer to exchange for the total outstanding
shares of an entity to be consolidated with, merged or amalgamated into the
Issuer, such “aggregate consideration issue price of the total amount of
Common Shares” shall mean the aggregate amount of the net worth per
common share on the latest reviewed or audited financial statement of such
entity multiplied by “n” and further multiplied by the applicable share swap
ratio under such consolidation, merger or amalgamation.

If the conversion or exchange right of any such convertible or exchangeable securities expires
prior to exercise, the Conversion Price shall be readjusted to reflect the actual securities converted
or exchanged.

In case of a Merger of the Issuer, each Bond then outstanding shall, without the consent of any
Bondholders, become convertible only into the kind and amount of securities, cash and other
property receivable upon such Merger by a holder of the number of Common Shares, into which
such Bonds could have been converted immediately prior to such Merger. The corporation formed
by such Merger or the Person that acquired such properties and assets shall enter into a
supplemental indenture with the Trustee to provide for the continuation of the Conversion Rights
to continue after such Merger and such supplemental indenture shall provide for adjustments to the
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Conversion Price which shall be as nearly equivalent as practicable to the adjustments provided in
the Indenture provided that where there has been a Change of Control pursuant to such a Merger,
a Holder may exercise its Change of Control Put Right as set forth in “— Redemption of Bonds
in the Event of Change of Control”.

If any event or circumstance analogous to the events and circumstances described in subsections (i)
through (x) occur, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted as set forth in the analogous subsection in the
Indenture.

Provisions Applicable to All Conversions and Adjustments of Conversion Price

No adjustment of the Conversion Price will be required to be made until cumulative adjustments,
required to be made in the circumstances set forth above, amount to 1.0% or more of the Conversion Price as
last adjusted. However, any adjustment, required to be made in the circumstances set forth above, which is not
made because of failure to meet the 1.0% threshold, will be carried forward. Except as otherwise described
below, the Conversion Price may at any time be reduced by the Issuer.

The Issuer will not take any action which would reduce the Conversion Price per Common Share below
the par value of the Common Shares (currently NT$10 per share), unless, under applicable law then in effect,
the Bonds could be converted at such reduced Conversion Price into legally issued, fully-paid and
non-assessable Common Shares.

All calculations relating to conversion, including adjustments of the Conversion Price, will be made to
the lower 0.001 of a share of securities or other property or nearest cent, as the case may be.

Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted, the Issuer will promptly file with the Paying Agent an
officer’s certificate setting forth the date on which such adjustment became effective, the Conversion Price
after such adjustment and prior to such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring
such adjustment. Promptly after receipt of such certificate, the Paying Agent will prepare a notice of such
adjustment of the Conversion Price setting forth the adjusted Conversion Price, the Conversion Price prior to
such adjustment, a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment and the date on which such
adjustment became effective and shall give such notice of such adjustment of the Conversion Price to each
Holder of a Bond.

Neither the Trustee nor the Agents shall be under any duty to monitor whether any event or
circumstance has happened or exists which may require an adjustment to be made to the Conversion Price or
any calculation (or verification thereof) in connection with the Conversion Price and will not be responsible to
Holders for any loss arising from any failure by them to do so. All adjustments to the Conversion Price shall
be determined by the Issuer, and neither the Trustee nor the Agents shall be responsible for verifying such
determinations.

Events of Default; Notice and Waiver

The Indenture provides that, if an Event of Default as defined therein shall have occurred and be
continuing, either the Trustee (provided that it has been indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction) or the
Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal and other amounts in respect of the Bonds then
outstanding may declare the principal amount to be immediately due and payable. In the case of certain events
of bankruptcy or insolvency, the principal amount shall automatically become and be immediately due and
payable. Under certain circumstances, the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding Bonds may rescind any such acceleration with respect to the Bonds and its consequences.

Under the Indenture, Events of Default include:

(i)  default in payment of the principal of any Bond, as and when the same becomes due and payable,
and continuance of such default for five Business Days;

(i) default in the payment of Additional Amounts upon any Bond as and when the same becomes due
and payable, and continuance of such default for five Business Days;

(iii) failure by the Issuer to deliver the Common Shares as and when such Common Shares are

required to be delivered following conversion of a Bond, and continuance of such default for five
Trading Days;
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(iv) failure on the part of the Issuer duly to observe or perform any of the covenants or agreements
provided in the Bonds or the Indenture (other than those referred to in clauses (i), (ii) or (iii)
above) which failure cannot be remedied or, if such failure can be remedied, is not remedied
within 30 days after the date on which written notice thereof requiring the Issuer to remedy the
same shall have been given to the Issuer by the Trustee or the Holders or at least 25% in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding;

(v) there shall have been entered against the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries a final
judgment, decree or order by a court of competent jurisdiction for the payment of money in excess
of US$10 million with respect to the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries (or its equivalent in
any other currency or currencies) and 30 days shall have passed since the entry of the order
without it being bonded, satisfied, discharged or stayed;

(vi) (A) the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries shall fail to make any payment with respect to
present or future Debt (other than the Bonds) in an aggregate principal amount in excess of US$10
million with respect to the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries (or its equivalent in any other
currency or currencies) when and as the same shall become due and payable, if such failure shall
continue for more than the period of grace, if any, originally applicable thereto or (B) the Issuer or
any of its Subsidiaries shall fail to perform or observe any covenant or agreement to be performed
or observed by the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries contained in any agreement or
instrument evidencing Debt (other than the Bonds) in an aggregate principal amount in excess of
US$10 million with respect to the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries (or its equivalent in
any other currency or currencies) and such failure results in the acceleration of the maturity of any
amount owing thereunder;

(vii) a decree or order by a court having jurisdiction shall have been entered under any applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law (A) adjudging the Issuer or any of its
Principal Subsidiaries as bankrupt or insolvent, or approving as properly filed a petition seeking
reorganization of the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries or (B) appointing a receiver or
liquidator or trustee or assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of the Issuer or any of its Principal
Subsidiaries or of its property or (C) ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the
Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries and in any such case such decree or order shall have
continued undischarged and unstayed for a period of 60 days; or

(vii) the Issuer or any of its Principal Subsidiaries shall voluntarily commence proceedings to be
adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent, or shall consent to the filing of a bankruptcy or insolvency
proceeding against it, or shall file a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization under any
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or shall consent to the filing
of any such petition, or shall consent to the appointment of a receiver or liquidator or trustee or
assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of it or its property, or shall make an assignment for the
benefit of creditors.

If an event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, interest shall accrue on the overdue sum at
the rate of 5.00% per annum from the due date and ending on the date on which payment is made to the
holders of the Bonds in respect thereof (both dates inclusive). Such default interest shall accrue on the basis
of the actual number of days elapsed and a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each.

The Trustee shall, within 30 days after the occurrence of any Default, mail to all Holders of the Bonds
notice of all Defaults of which the Trustee shall have received written notice, unless such Defaults shall have
been cured or waived and the Trustee shall have been notified so in writing before the giving of such notice.

The Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds may direct the time,
method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any
trust or power conferred on the Trustee; provided that such direction shall not be in conflict with any law or
the Indenture and subject to certain other limitations. The Trustee may refuse to perform any duty, exercise
any right or power, extend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability, unless it receives
indemnity and/or security satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or expense. No Holder of a Bond will
have the right to pursue any remedy with respect to the Indenture or the Bonds, unless:

(i)  such Holder shall have previously given the Trustee written notice of a continuing Event of
Default;
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(i) the Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds shall have
made a written request to the Trustee to pursue such remedy;

(iii) such Holder or Holders shall have offered to the Trustee security and/or indemnity against any
loss, liability or expense satisfactory to it;

(iv) the Trustee shall have failed to comply with the request within 60 days after receipt of such
notice, request and offer of security or indemnity; and

(v) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds shall not have
given the Trustee a direction inconsistent with such request within 60 days after receipt of such
request.

The right of any Holder (i) to receive payment of the principal of the Bonds, Additional Amounts, the
Delisting Put Price upon exercise of the Delisting Put Right or the Change of Control Put Price upon exercise
of the Change of Control Put Right, or to receive Common Shares on or after any Redemption Date, Purchase
Date or Conversion Date, as the case may be, (ii) to convert its Bonds or (iii) to bring suit for the
enforcement of any such right, shall not be materially impaired or materially adversely affected without such
Holder’s consent.

The Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds at the time outstanding may waive
any existing Default and its consequences, except (i) any default in any payment on the Bonds, (ii) any
default with respect to the Conversion Rights of Holders of the Bonds or (iii) any default with respect to
certain covenants or provisions in the Indenture which may not be modified without the consent of the Holder
of each Bond as described in “— Meeting of Bondholders; Modification and Waiver” below. When a Default
is waived, it is deemed cured and shall cease to exist, but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or
other Default or impair any consequent right.

The Issuer will be required to furnish to the Trustee annually, and at any time at the request of the
Trustee, a statement concerning the performance and observance of its obligations under the Bonds or the
Indenture. In addition, the Issuer is required to file promptly with the Trustee written notice of the occurrence
of any Default or Event of Default.

Prescription

Claims in respect of payment of principal of or other amounts on the Bonds will be prescribed unless
made within a period of six years from the relevant date of payment in respect thereof.

Meeting of Bondholders; Modification and Waiver

The Indenture contains provisions for convening meetings of the Holders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the approval of certain amendments or modifications of the Bonds or the
provisions of the Indenture upon either the written consent of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of
the outstanding Bonds or the approval at a meeting of the Holders duly called by persons entitled to vote a
majority in principal amount of the outstanding Bonds. The quorum at any such meeting shall be two or more
persons entitled to vote a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Bonds.

Modifications and amendments of the Indenture or the Bonds may be made by the Issuer and the
Trustee with the written consent of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the outstanding Bonds; provided that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the
Holders of 75% of aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds:

(i) change the Maturity Date of the principal of any Bond;

(i) reduce the principal amount of or other amounts on any Bond or increase the then current
Conversion Price (except as required by the antidilution provisions of the Indenture);

(iii) change the place or currency of payment of principal of or other amounts on any Bond or the
method of calculating any such payment;

(iv) impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or after the Maturity Date
(or, in the case of a redemption, on or after the Redemption Date) of any Bond;
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(v) alter the obligations of the Issuer under “— Certain Covenants — Negative Pledge”, Certain
Covenants — Consolidation, Amalgamation or Merger” or “— Additional Amounts” above;

(vi) materially adversely affect the Conversion Right, Delisting Put Right or Change of Control Put
Right;

(vii) modify the obligations of the Issuer to maintain an office or agency in Dublin, Ireland or London,
England;

(viii) reduce the above-stated percentage of outstanding Bonds the consent of whose Holders is
necessary to modify or amend the Indenture;

(ix) reduce the percentage or aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds the consent of whose
Holders is necessary for waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the Indenture or for
waiver or certain Defaults;

(x) modify any of the percentage voting and quorum provisions described under “— Meeting of
Bondholders; Modification and Waiver”; or

(xi) release the Issuer from any obligation under the Indenture other than in accordance with the
provisions of the Indenture, or amend or modify any provision relating to such release in a manner
that materially adversely affects the rights of the Holders.

Neither the Issuer nor any of its Subsidiaries will, directly or indirectly, pay or cause to be paid any
consideration, whether by way of interest, fee or otherwise to any Holder of any Bonds for or as an
inducement to any consent, waiver or amendment of any of the terms or provisions of the Indenture or the
Bonds, unless such consideration is offered to be paid or agreed to be paid to all Holders of the Bonds that
consent, waive or agree to amend in the time frame set forth in the solicitation documents relating to such
consent, waiver or amendment.

Without the consent of any Holder of Bonds, the Issuer together with the Trustee may amend the
Indenture to:

(i)  cure any ambiguity, defect, manifest errors or inconsistency in the Indenture or the Bonds;

(i) provide for the assumption of the Issuer’s obligations under the Bonds and the Indenture by the
surviving Person in a Merger effected in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture described
under “— Certain Covenants — Consolidation, Amalgamation or Merger” above;

(iii) make any other change that does not materially adversely affect the rights of any Holder of Bonds;

(iv) make any change necessary to comply with applicable Cayman Islands and ROC laws and
regulations; or

(v) add to the covenants or obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture or decrease the Conversion
Price at the discretion of the Issuer or surrender any right, power or option conferred by the
Indenture on the Issuer.

Notices

Whenever the Indenture provides for notice to be given to Holders, such notice will be validly given
(except as otherwise expressly provided) if in writing and mailed, first-class postage prepaid, to each Holder
entitled thereto, at such Holder’s address as it appears on the Bond register. Any such notice shall be deemed
to have been given on the seventh day after being so mailed, and shall be irrevocable unless waived by the
Holders receiving such notice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Bonds are represented by the
Global Bond and the Global Bond is held on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, notice to Holders may be
given by delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and Clearstream or their successor clearing systems for
communication by them to entitled accountholders in substitution for notification as required by the foregoing
sentence.
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Concerning the Trustee

The Indenture provides that, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee will not be
liable except for the performance of such duties as are specifically set forth in such Indenture. If an Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee will be obligated to use the same degree of care and skill
as a prudent person would exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of such person’s own affairs.

Disclosure Obligations

The Indenture provides that the Issuer may have certain disclosure obligations and reporting obligations
under ROC law:

(i)  the person to be registered as a shareholder of the Company is a “related party” of the Company
under Statements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 6 of the ROC and such person beneficially
owns Common Shares converted from the Bonds; or

(i) the person to be registered as a shareholder owns Common Shares issued upon conversion of the
Bonds and the Common Shares so issued on conversion exceed 10%, of the total number of
Common Shares expected to be issued upon conversion of the Bonds based on the conversion
price at the time of issue of the Bonds.

Due to these obligations, if so instructed by the Issuer, the Paying Agent may ask the converting
Holders to disclose the name of the person to be registered as the shareholder and to provide proof of identity
and genuineness of any signature and other documents before it will convert the Bonds. The conversion of
Bonds may be delayed until the Paying Agent receives the requested information and satisfactory evidence of
the compliance with all laws and regulations by the Holders. The information the Holder is required to
provide may include the name and nationality of the person to be registered as a shareholder of the Company
and the total number of Common Shares such person is converting or has converted in the past.

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Indenture and the Bonds are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of
the State of New York. In relation to any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with the
Indenture and the Bonds, the Company has in the Indenture irrevocably submitted to the jurisdiction of the
New York State and United States Federal courts sitting in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York.
The Company has appointed Law Debenture, now at 400 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10017, as
its agent for service of process.

Bondholders should note that exercise of a Conversion Right is subject not only to the provisions of the
Indenture but also to the applicable Cayman Islands and ROC law.
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THE GLOBAL BOND
Global Bond

The Global Bond will be deposited with, and registered in the nominee name of, a common depositary
for Euroclear and Clearstream, and Euroclear and Clearstream will credit their respective accountholders with
the respective amounts of individual interests represented by the Global Bond. Such accounts will initially be
designated by or on behalf of the joint bookrunners. Ownership of beneficial interests in the Global Bond will
be limited to persons who have accounts with Euroclear or Clearstream or persons who hold interests through
such accountholders. Ownership of beneficial interests in the Global Bond will be shown on, and the transfer
of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by Euroclear and Clearstream (with
respect to interests of their respective accountholders) and the records of such accountholders (with respect to
interests of persons other than such accountholders).

Payments in respect of the Global Bond will be made to the common depositary or its nominee as the
registered owner. Neither we nor the trustee will have any responsibility or liability for the accuracy of any of
the records relating to, or payments made on account of, ownership interests in the Global Bond or for any
notice permitted or required to be given to holders of the Bonds or any consent given or actions taken by such
registered holder of the Bonds. We expect that the common depositary, upon receipt of any payment in respect
of the Global Bond, will immediately credit Euroclear and Clearstream with payments in amounts
proportionate to their respective interests in the principal amount of the Global Bond shown as shown on its
records.

Transfers between accountholders in Euroclear and Clearstream will be effected in accordance with their
respective rules and operating procedures.

The laws of certain jurisdictions require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of
such securities in definitive form. Accordingly, the ability of beneficial owners to own, transfer or pledge
beneficial interests in the Global Bond may be limited by such laws.

Conversion of Bonds through participants in Euroclear and Clearstream will be effected in the ordinary
way in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.

Euroclear and Clearstream each holds securities for participating organizations and facilitates the
clearance and settlement of securities transactions between their respective participants through electronic
book-entry changes in accounts of such participants. Euroclear and Clearstream provide to their respective
participants, among other things, services for safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of
internationally traded securities and securities lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream participants
are financial institutions throughout the world, including underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks,
trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. Indirect access to Euroclear and
Clearstream is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies which clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear or Clearstream participant, either directly or
indirectly.

Individual Definitive Bonds

If (i) either Euroclear or Clearstream or a successor clearing system is closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces an
intention permanently to cease business or does in fact do so or (ii) an event of default under the Bonds or the
indenture has occurred and is continuing, we will issue individual definitive Bonds in registered form in
exchange for the Global Bond. Upon receipt of such notice from Euroclear, Clearstream or the trustee, as the
case may be, we will make arrangements for the exchange of interests in the Global Bond for individual
definitive Bonds and cause them to be executed and delivered to the registrar in sufficient quantities and
authenticated by the trustee for delivery to holders. Persons exchanging interests in the Global Bond for
individual definitive Bonds will be required to provide to the trustee, through the relevant clearing system,
written instructions and other information required by us and the registrar to complete, execute and deliver
such individual definitive Bonds and individual definitive Bonds delivered in exchange for interests in the
Global Bond or beneficial interests therein will be registered in the names, and issued in any approved
denominations, requested by the relevant clearing system.
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DESCRIPTION OF OUR SHARE CAPITAL

We are a Cayman Islands exempted company with limited liability and our affairs are governed by our
memorandum and articles of association, and the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
which is referred to as the Companies Law below. As of the date of this offering memorandum, our
authorized share capital is NT$3,000,000,000 divided into 300,000,000 shares of a par value of NT$10.00
each. As of the date of this offering memorandum, there are 224,067,522 shares issued and outstanding. All of
our shares issued and outstanding prior to the completion of the Offering are and will be fully paid, and all of
our shares to be issued in the Offering will be issued as fully paid. The following are summaries of material
provisions of our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, and the Companies Law
insofar as they relate to the material terms of our shares.

Shares
General

Subject to the Companies Law, the memorandum and articles of association and to any resolution of the
Members to the contrary, and without prejudice to any special rights previously conferred on the holders of
any existing shares or class of shares, the Board of Directors shall have the power to issue any of our
unissued shares on such terms and conditions as it may determine and any shares or class of shares (including
the issue or grant of options, warrants and other rights, renounceable or otherwise in respect of shares) may be
issued with such preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions, whether in regard to dividend,
voting, return of capital, or otherwise as we may by resolution of the Members prescribe.

Dividends

The holders of our shares are entitled to such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors
subject to the Companies Law and to the articles of association.

Voting Rights

Every Member who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for each share of which it is a
holder. An ordinary resolution to be passed by the shareholders requires the affirmative vote of a simple
majority of votes attached to the shares cast in a general meeting, while a special resolution requires the
affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of votes cast in a general meeting. A supermajority resolution
requires the affirmative vote of two-thirds or more of all issued and outstanding shares of our company, or by
at least two-thirds of the shareholders present who represent a majority of all issued and outstanding shares of
our company. A Special Resolution will be required for matters such as a change of name or making
amendments to our memorandum and articles of association and a supermajority resolution will be required
for matters such as the removal or any director of our company.

Our board of directors may determine that the voting power of a Member at a general meeting may be
exercised by way of a written ballot or by way of electronic transmission; provided, however, that if a general
meeting is to be held outside of Taiwan, we shall provide the Members with a method for exercising their
voting power by means of a written ballot or electronic transmission.

Transfer of Shares

Subject to the requirements of applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, transfers of uncertificated shares
which are traded on the TWSE may be effected by any method of transferring or dealing in securities
introduced by the TWSE or operated in accordance with the applicable public company rules as appropriate.

In accordance with the applicable public company rules, we shall issue our shares in scripless form and
our shares shall be traded on the TWSE during the period of listing.

Liquidation
On the winding up of our company, assets available for distribution among the holders of shares will be
distributed among the holders of the shares on a pro rata basis. If our assets available for distribution are

insufficient to repay all of the paid-up capital, the assets will be distributed so that the losses are borne by our
shareholders proportionately.
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Purchase of Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, our memorandum and articles of association and the
laws of the ROC, we may purchase our own shares on such terms and by such method as our board of
directors may from time to time decide subject to obtaining a resolution of shareholders.

Variations of Rights of Shares

If at any time, our share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attaching to any
class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may be varied or abrogated
with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a general meeting of the holders of the shares of that
class. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any modification or alteration to the articles of association is
prejudicial to the preferential rights of any class of shares, such modification or alteration shall be adopted by
a Special Resolution and shall also be adopted by a Special Resolution passed at a separate meeting of
Members of that class of shares.

General Meetings of Shareholders

Our board of directors may convene the general meetings whenever they think fit. For so long as our
shares are listed on the TWSE, general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
shareholder or shareholders entitled to attend and vote at general meetings holding at least 3% of the paid up
voting share capital of the Company for a period of one year or a longer time deposited at the registered
office of the Company or the office of the institution handling our shares specifying the objects of the meeting
and the reason therefore signed by such shareholder(s), and if our board of directors does not within 15 days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition dispatch the notice of such general meeting, and for so long as
the shares are listed on the TWSE, such shareholder(s) may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings may be convened by the directors.

At least 30 days’ notice of an annual general meeting, and at least 15 days’ notice of an extraordinary
general meeting shall be given to each shareholder entitled to attend and vote at such meeting.

Save as otherwise provided by our articles of association, the holders of shares being more than an
aggregate of one-half of all shares in issue present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote shall constitute a
quorum for any general meeting.

Election and Removal of Directors

Our board of directors consists of nine persons, including independent directors, each of whom shall be
appointed to a term of office of three years. We may from time to time by an ordinary resolution increase or
reduce the number of Directors subject to the above number limitation provided that the requirements by
relevant laws and regulations (including but not limited to any listing requirements) are met.

Unless otherwise permitted under the laws of the ROC, there shall be at least 3 independent directors
and, to the extent required by the laws of the ROC, at least one of them shall be domiciled in the ROC.

If the number of independent directors is less than 3 persons, or, the number of Directors is less than 5
persons, we shall hold an election of independent directors or directors (as the case may be) at the next
following general meeting. If all of the independent directors have resigned or are removed or vacated, or the
number of our board of directors equals to one third of the total number of Directors elected, our board of
directors shall hold, within 60 days, an extraordinary general meeting to elect succeeding Independent
Directors or Directors (as the case may be) to fill the vacancies.

We may at a general meeting elect any person to be a director pursuant to a cumulative voting
mechanism, where the number of votes exercisable by any shareholder shall be the same as the product of the
number of shares held by such shareholder and the number of directors to be elected and the total number of
such votes cast by any shareholder may be consolidated for election of one director candidate or may be split
for election amongst multiple director candidates, as specified by the shareholder pursuant to the poll vote
ballot. The top director candidates in the number equal to the number of the directors to be elected, to whom
the votes cast represent a prevailing number of votes relative to the other director candidates, shall be deemed
as elected.
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The shareholders of the Company may from time to time by supermajority resolution remove any
director from office.

Proceedings of Board of Directors

Our articles of association provide that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the articles of
association, applicable public company rules and any resolutions made in a general meeting, our business is to
be managed and conducted by our board of directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of the
business of the directors shall be more than one-half of the directors, unless otherwise fixed by the directors.

Our articles of association provide that the directors may exercise all powers of the Company to raise or
borrow money, to mortgage or charge its undertaking and property, to issue debentures, debenture stock and
other securities whenever money is borrowed or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of our
Company or of any third party.

Inspection of Books and Records

The board of directors shall keep at the office of our Shareholders’ Service Agent copies of our
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, minutes of every meeting of the Members,
financial statements, register of members and the counterfoil of corporate bonds issued by us. Any Member
may request, by submitting evidentiary document(s) to show his/her interests involved and indicating the
scope of interested matters, an access to inspect and to make copies of our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association and accounting books and records.

Changes in Capital

We may from time to time by ordinary resolution increase the authorized share capital of the Company
by such amount as we think expedient.

We may by a Special Resolution reduce our share capital in any manner authorized by law.
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TAXATION
Cayman Islands Taxation

The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income,
gains or appreciation and there is no taxation in the nature of inheritance tax or estate duty. There are no other
taxes likely to be material to us levied by the Government of the Cayman Islands except for stamp duties
which may be applicable on instruments executed in, or brought within the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands.
The Cayman Islands is not a party to any double tax treaties. There are no exchange control regulations or
currency restrictions in the Cayman Islands.

ROC Taxation

The following is a summary of current ROC tax laws that may be relevant to a holder of the Bonds or
the Shares who is either a Non-ROC Resident Individual or Non-ROC Resident Entity, each a “Non-ROC
Holder.” As used in the preceding sentence, a “Non-ROC Resident Individual” is a non-ROC citizen who is
not physically present in the ROC for 183 days or more within a calendar year and a “Non-ROC Resident
Entity” is a corporation or a non-corporate body established outside the ROC which does not have a fixed
place of business or business agent in the ROC. The summary does not purport to be a comprehensive
description of all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to a decision to purchase/own the Bonds
and/or the Shares and is based on tax laws of the ROC in effect on the date of this offering memorandum,
which are subject to change. You should consult your own advisors concerning the tax consequences of an
investment in the Bonds or the Shares.

Bonds

Premium and Possible Interest Payment. Payments of premium or interest, if any, on the Bonds to a
Non-ROC Holder are not subject to any ROC taxes.

Sale. The sale of the Bonds is not subject to any ROC taxes.

Conversion. Gains on conversion of the Bonds into the Shares will not be subject to any ROC taxes.
Nonetheless, in any event, we have agreed to pay additional amounts in respect with such tax on conversion,
if any. See “Description of the Bonds.” There is no ROC stamp, issue or registration tax imposed on the
issuance of the Shares upon conversion of the Bonds.

Shares

Dividends. Dividends, whether in cash or stock, declared by us out of retained earnings and distributed
to a Non-ROC Holder in respect of the Shares are not subject to any ROC taxes.

Sale. Securities transaction tax is payable by the seller at the rate of 0.3% of the transaction price upon
a sale of the Shares. The broker will withhold such 0.3% securities transaction tax from the sales proceeds
and pay the withholding tax to the national treasury accordingly. Under the current ROC law, capital gains on
transactions in shares are exempt from income tax. This exemption applies to capital gains derived from the
sale of the Shares.

Subscription Rights

Distributions of statutory subscription rights for the Shares are not subject to any ROC taxes. Proceeds
derived from sales of statutory subscription rights evidenced by securities are currently exempted from income
tax but are subject to securities transaction tax, currently at the rate of 0.3% of the gross amount received.
Proceeds derived from sales of statutory subscription rights that are not evidenced by securities may be
subject to capital gains tax at the rate of 20% of the gains realized for a Non-ROC Holder.

Inheritance Tax and Gift Tax

Our shares are not deemed as property located in the ROC; hence the ROC inheritance and gift tax law
does not apply to the Shares for Non-ROC Resident Individual.
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Tax Treaties
At present, the ROC has entered into income tax treaties with Singapore, Australia, Indonesia, New

Zealand, South Africa, Gambia, the Netherlands, Swaziland, Malaysia, Macedonia, Vietnam, the United
Kingdom, Senegal, Sweden, Belgium, Denmark, France, Hungary, Israel and Paraguay.
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

Because of the following restrictions, we encourage you to consult legal counsel prior to making any
offer, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Bonds or the Shares.

This offering is being made pursuant to Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. The Bonds and the
Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or with any securities regulatory
authority of any state in the United States or other jurisdiction. The Bonds may only be offered, sold or
delivered outside the United States (as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act) to persons other
than U.S. persons in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S, and outside the ROC, in each case in
accordance with any other applicable law.

Except in certain limited circumstances, interests in the Bonds may only be held through owning
beneficial interests in the Global Bond. Interests in the Global Bond will be shown on, and transfers thereof
will be effected only through, records maintained by Euroclear and Clearstream and their respective direct and
indirect participants. See “The Global Bond.” Each owner of Bonds, by its acceptance of the Bonds, will be
deemed to have acknowledged and represented to and agreed with our company and the joint bookrunners as
follows (terms used that are defined in Regulation S are used as so defined):

(1) The Bonds and the Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act
or with any securities regulatory authority of any state of the United States or other jurisdiction
and are subject to significant restrictions on transfer.

(2) Each owner is a person other than a U.S. person purchasing Bonds outside the United States in an
offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S.

(3)  Such owner will not offer, sell, pledge or otherwise transfer any Bonds and the Shares, except as
permitted by the applicable legend set forth in paragraph (4) below.

(4) The Bonds will bear a legend to the following effect, unless we determine otherwise in
compliance with applicable law, and that it will observe the restrictions contained therein:

The Bonds (“Bonds’’) and the common shares issuable upon conversion of the Bonds, have not
been and are not expected to be, registered under the United States securities act of 1933, as amended.

Each purchaser of Bonds that may wish to resell any Bonds pursuant to Regulations S is advised that
we have received approval in-principle for the listing of the Bonds on the SGX-ST. The SGX-ST is a
“designated offshore securities market” (within the meaning of Regulation S) and accordingly, a resale
transaction could be effected in, on or through the facilities of such exchange in reliance upon the safe harbor
provided by Rule 904 of Regulation S, subject to compliance with the conditions of Rule 904.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. and Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited, each trading as J.P. Morgan
Securities Ltd. and Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited are the joint bookrunners of this offering.
Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the purchase agreement, dated as of April 13, 2011, entered into
between our company and the managers, each manager has agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to
that manager, the principal amount of Bonds set forth opposite the manager’s name,

Manager Principal amount of Bonds
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. ....coceiiiiiiiiiiinieiieeieeeeeee et US$200,000,000
Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited........ccccceveeriiniiiiniiniiinnienieiieeeeneens US$200,000,000

TOLAL .ttt sttt US$400,000,000

The purchase agreement provides that the obligations of the managers to purchase the Bonds included in
this offering are subject to certain conditions, including receipt of certain legal opinions. The managers are
obligated to purchase all the Bonds if they purchase any of the Bonds.

The managers have agreed to purchase the Bonds at the offering price set forth on the cover page of this
offering memorandum, and we have agreed to pay the managers a combined underwriting commission of
0.4% of the principal amount of the Bonds purchased. We have been advised that the managers propose to
resell the Bonds at the offering price set forth on the cover page of this offering memorandum outside the
United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S.

The Bonds and the shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the U.S. Securities Act and
may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as
defined in Regulation S) except in transactions exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of
the U.S. Securities Act. See “Transfer Restrictions.”

Accordingly, in connection with sales outside the United States, each manager has agreed that, except as
permitted by the purchase agreement and as set forth in the “Transfer Restrictions”, it will not offer or sell the
Bonds within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation
S), and it will have sent to each dealer to which it sells Bonds a confirmation or other notice setting forth the
restrictions on offers and sales of the Bonds within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of,
U.S. persons.

In addition, until 40 days after the later of the commencement of this offering and the latest closing date
of this offering, an offer or sale of the Bonds within the United States by a dealer that is not participating in
this offering may violate the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act.

For a period of 90 days after the date of this offering memorandum, without the prior written consent of
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. and Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited, we and certain shareholders
holding an aggregate of 42.0% of our total issued and outstanding share capital as of December 31, 2010, will
not (i) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or
contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or
indirectly, or file with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act relating to, any Shares or any
securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Shares, or publicly disclose the intention to make
any offer, sale, pledge, disposition or filing, or (ii) enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in
whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Shares or any such other securities,
whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by delivery of Shares or such
other securities, in cash or otherwise, other than the Bonds to be sold hereunder. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, we may (A) issue employee bonus shares and stock dividends consistent with past practice, (B)
implement stock splits and employee stock option plans or employee share purchase plans, (C) issue common
stock issuable upon the conversion of securities or the exercise of warrants outstanding as of the date of this
offering memorandum and as described in this offering memorandum, (D) make any application or filing with
any applicable regulatory authority for issuance and offering of new common shares approved by the
shareholders prior to the date of this offering memorandum, and (E) announce and/or issue dividends of
shares of our common stock following the public announcement of our results of operations for the fiscal
year-ended December 31, 2010.
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The Bonds may not be offered or sold directly or indirectly in the ROC, or to, or for the account or
benefit of, any ROC person.

Under applicable ROC laws and regulations, we and the managers are prohibited from offering and
selling the Bonds to our “related parties” as defined in the ROC Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 6 and further specified in Section 36 of the ROC Securities Association Rules Governing Underwriting
and Resale of Securities by Securities Firms. Therefore, each subscriber or purchaser of the Bonds described
in this offering memorandum will be deemed to have acknowledged and represented to us and the managers
that it is not: (a) a business entity that is invested by us using equity method in our accounting reporting, (b) a
business entity that invests in our company and uses equity method in its accounting reporting; (c) a company
whose chairman of the board or president is the same as that of our company or is the spouse or relative
within two degrees of kinship thereof, (d) a foundation with one-third of its total paid-in funds donated by us,
(e) our director, president, vice-president, assistant vice president, and other department head under the
immediate supervision by our president, (f) a spouse of our director or president, (g) a relative within two
degrees of kinship of our directors or president, (h) a director or employee of any member of the underwriting
syndicate, or a spouse or relative within two degrees of kinship thereto, and (i) a person subscribing for the
Bonds on behalf of or for the benefit of any person set forth in items (a) to (h) above. For the purposes of the
above item (i), a person shall be deemed to subscribe for the Bonds on behalf of or for the benefit of a
“related party” if: (i) the purchase price for the Bonds is directly or indirectly funded by such related party;
(ii) the related party is entitled to manage, employ or dispose of the Bonds held under the name of such party;
or (iii) the related party shares all or part of the gains, interests or losses on the Bonds held under the name of
such person.

Each manager has represented and agreed that (1) it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of
the period of six months from the closing date, will not offer or sell any Bond to persons in the United
Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or
disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in
circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom
within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended); (2) it has complied and
will comply with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or FSMA, with
respect to anything done by it in relation to the Bonds in, from or otherwise involving, the United Kingdom;
and (3) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section
21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of such Bonds in circumstances in which
section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us.

Each manager has severally represented and agreed that:

(1) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell the Bonds in Hong Kong, by means of any
document other than:

(a) to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of
Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or

(b) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a “prospectus” as defined
in the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to
the public within the meaning of that Ordinance; and

(2) it has not issued or had in its possession for the purpose of issue, whether in Hong Kong or
elsewhere, any advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Bonds, which is directed at,
or the contents of which are likely to be assessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if
permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to the Bonds
that are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional
investors” within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong
and any rules made under that Ordinance.

This offering memorandum has not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, each manager has represented and agreed that it has not offered or sold
any Bonds or caused the Bonds to be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will it
offer or sell the Bonds or cause the Bonds to be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or
purchase, nor has it circulated or distributed nor will it circulate or distribute this offering memorandum or

78



any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase,
of the Bonds, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor
under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA”), (ii) to a relevant
person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the
conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the
conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

This offering memorandum has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of
Singapore. Accordingly, this offering memorandum and any other document or material in connection with the
offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of any Bonds and/or Shares may not be circulated or
distributed, nor may any Bonds and/or Shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an
institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA, (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any
person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the
SFA, or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of
the SFA.

Where the Bonds are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which
is:

(i)  a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole
business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or
more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or

(i1) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments
and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

securities (as defined in Section 239(1) of the SFA) of that corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest
(howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that
trust has acquired the Bonds pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(i) to an institutional investor or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to any
person or to any person arising from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) or Section
276(4)(1)(B) of the SFA;

(i) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer;
(iii)) where the transfer is by operation of law; or
(iv) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA.

Each manager has agreed that, as part of the distribution of the Bonds, it has not offered or sold, and
will not offer or sell, any Bond directly or indirectly in the ROC.

The Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law
of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended) (the “Financial Instruments and Exchange Law”). Each manager
represented and agreed that it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Bonds, directly or
indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any
person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan) or to
others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, a resident of Japan,
except pursuant to an exemption from the regulation requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of
Japan.

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), each Initial Purchaser has represented and agreed that
with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant
Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date) it has not made and will not make an offer of Bonds which
are the subject of the offering contemplated by this offering memorandum to the public in that Relevant
Member State other than:

(a) to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;
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(b) to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the
2010 PD Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as
defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to
obtaining the prior consent of Goldman Sachs International for any such offer; or

(c) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of Notes shall require us or any Initial Purchaser to publish a prospectus pursuant
to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer of Bonds to the public” in relation to any
Bonds in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Bonds to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to
purchase or subscribe for the Bonds, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure
implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State, the expression Prospectus Directive means
Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent
implemented in the Relevant Member State), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant
Member State and the expression “2010 PD Amending Directive” means Directive 2010/73/EU.

The Bonds will constitute new classes of securities with no established trading market. We have
received approval in-principle for the listing of the Bonds on the SGX-ST. However, we cannot assure you
that the prices at which the Bonds will sell in the market after this offering will not be lower than the initial
offering price or that an active trading market for the Bonds will develop and continue after this offering. The
managers have advised us that they currently intend to make a market in the Bonds. However, they are not
obligated to do so and any market-making activities with respect to the Bonds may be discontinued at any
time without notice. In addition, such market-making activity will be subject to the limits imposed by the U.S.
Securities Act and the U.S. Securities and Exchange Act. Accordingly, we cannot assure you as to the liquidity
of, or trading market for, the Bonds.

This offering memorandum does not constitute a public offer of the Bonds, whether by way of sale or
subscription, in the PRC. Other than to qualified domestic institutional investors in the PRC, the Bonds are
not being offered and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the PRC to or for the benefit of,
legal or natural persons of the PRC. According to the laws and regulatory requirements of the PRC, with the
exception of qualified domestic institutional investors in the PRC, the Bonds may, subject to the laws and
regulations of the relevant jurisdictions, only be offered or sold to non-PRC natural or legal persons in any
country other than the PRC.

We have agreed to indemnify the managers against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the U.S.
Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the managers may be required to make because of any of those
liabilities.

Certain of the managers and their respective affiliates may from time to time engage in transactions
with, and perform services for, us and our affiliates in the ordinary course of business, and have also engaged,
or may in the future engage, in commercial banking and investment banking transactions with us or our
affiliates, for which they have received, and may in the future receive, customary compensation.

Affiliates of any of the managers may purchase Bonds for their own account, subject to the terms
described in this offering memorandum.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on November
21, 2005. Our registered office is located at P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104,
Cayman Islands. According to paragraph 3 of our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the scope of our business is unrestricted.

The offering of the Bonds was authorized and approved by our board of directors at meetings held on
March 8, 2011. All consents, approvals, authorizations or other orders required under the prevailing laws of
the Cayman Islands have been given or obtained for the offer, issue and sale of the Bonds.

The Bonds have been accepted for clearance through the facilities of Euroclear and Clearstream. The
Bonds have been designated with Common Code number 061155112 and ISIN number XS0611551127.

Trades for the Bonds on the SGX-ST will be cleared through Clearstream and Euroclear in accordance
with their respective rules and operating procedures.

If individual definitive Bonds are exchanged for the Global Bond, and as long as the Bonds are listed on
the SGX-ST and the rules of the SGX-ST so require, we will appoint and maintain a paying agent in
Singapore, where the Bonds may be presented or surrendered for payment or redemption. In addition, we will
announce the exchange of individual definitive Bonds for the Global Bond through the SGX-ST. The
announcement will include all material information on the delivery of individual definitive Bonds, including
details of the paying agent in Singapore. The Bonds will be traded on the SGX-ST in a minimum board lot
size of US$200,000 for so long as the Bonds are listed on SGX-ST.

As long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, copies of our most recent annual audited consolidated
and unconsolidated financial statements, both of which we publish annually, and our most recent interim
unconsolidated financial statements, which we publish quarterly for each of the first three quarters of each
fiscal year, will be delivered to and be obtainable from the offices of the conversion agents and the transfer
agents specified on the back cover of this offering memorandum. We are required to publish on the TWSE’s
Website material developments of our company, including matters relating to dividend distributions, annual
general shareholders’ meetings and capital increases. The TWSE’s Website does not constitute part of this
offering memorandum.

Holders of the Bonds do not have any participating rights in any tender offer for our Shares.
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LEGAL MATTERS
Certain legal matters with respect to the Bonds will be passed upon for us by Ogier as to Cayman

Islands law, Lee and Li, Attorneys-at-Law as to ROC law and Leaven, Attorneys-at-Law as to PRC law, and
for the Initial Purchasers by Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP as to U.S. federal and New York law.

ACCOUNTANTS
Our audited consolidated financial statements, as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 and included in

this offering memorandum have been audited by Deloitte & Touche, independent certified public accountants,
to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
TPK Holding Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TPK Holding Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Those rules
and standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of TPK Holding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
2008, 2009 and 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

February 18, 2011

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and
applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of
China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference
in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and consolidated financial
statements shall prevail.



TPK HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010

(In Thousands, Except Par Value)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS (Note 2)

Cash (NOE 4)..uieeieeiiiee e

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -

current (Notes 2 and 20) ........ccooeeeeiieeeiiieeeeeene.
Note receivable (NOte 2) ..cccuviivuiieeciiieeiieceiieeeiiee
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 2, 5 and 18)..........
Inventories, net (Notes 2, 3 and 6)..........c...cccuveenn....

Deferred income tax assets - current

(Notes 2 and 15) ..c..ooecuiieeiiieeeeeeee e
Restricted assets - current (Note 10) .......ccoceeuveeennee.
Other current assets (Notes 2 and 15) ..........cc..........

Total current asSets ........ccovvveeeeeevivveeeeeeiveeeeeeennns

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Notes 2, 7 and 18)
Cost

Buildings ....cceeeeeviieieiieeeeee e
Machinery and equipment............cccoeceevueereereennenne
Transportation and Others .........c.ccceecveveernieeneennnen.

Total COSE...cviiiiiiiiiiiiicieeccceee e
Less: Accumulated depreciation..........c..cceeveevennenne.
Less: Accumulated impairment...........c.cceeevvevennenne.

Construction in progress and prepayments for

CQUIPIMENL ...eveiieniiieieeiieie ettt
Total property, plant and equipment.................
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET (Notes 2 and 8)...........

OTHER ASSETS

Assets leased to others, net (Notes 2 and 9)............
Refundable deposits (Note 18)......cccevevevvreniiennennnen.

Deferred income tax assets - noncurrent (Notes 2

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
$ 527,855 $ 1,670,865 $ 5,563,959 $ 191,004
33,902 — — —
630 — — —
719,362 835049 11,998,886 411,908
1,022,428 971250 3,055,873 104,905
10,732 19,841 — —
— 524,496 13,480 463
228,342 247,923 1,654,775 56,806
2,543251 4269424 22286973 765,086
1261,354 1,225,724 1,681,129 57712
3,670,562 4,307,085 10,154,586 348,595
664,273 934,066 2,726,052 93,583
5,596,189 6,466,875 14,561,767 499,890
(492,807)  (1,055,964) (1,993,033)  (68,419)
(3,461) — — —
202,506 548264  5404,036 185,514
5,302,427 5,959,175 17,972,770 616,985
542,748 517,110 1,290,850 44314
12,095 12,492 _ _
9,130 78,051 303,457 10,417
151,558 134,557 67,182 2,306
5,020 18,893 8,096 278
177,803 243,993 378,735 13,001
$8,566,229 $10,989,702 $41,929.328 $1,439,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES (Note 2)
Short-term loans (Note 10) ......coooveveieiiiieceeieeeeenes $1,845,501 $ 1,649,933 $ 3,408,924 $ 117,024
Current portion of long-term loans (Note 11)............. 211,991 — 247,605 8,500
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss - current (Notes 2 and 20) .......cceccevvevveeeeeennneen. 30,650 — — —
Notes payable........cccoovecierieiinieiinieieeeeeeeeeeee 268 697 2,491 86
Accounts payable (Note 18).....ccceeerveririeniieieeeene, 2,197,625 2,202,821 13,924,032 477,996
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 15).......cccceevvernennn. 1,452 63,526 431,306 14,806
Accrued expenses (NOte 13) .ooeevvvienieniiiineiiieinieeneens 380,812 630,360 2,194,103 75,321
Payables on construction and equipment..................... 478,438 455,459 2,686,705 92,232
Accrued liability on purchase commitment (Note 6).. — — 150,466 5,165
Deferred income tax liabilities - current (Notes 2
ANA 15) oiieiiieee e — — 310,435 10,657
Other payables - related parties (Notes 2 and 18) ...... 164,000 — — —
Other current liabilities.........ccoeevvievierieeieeciieeie e 817 39,561 85,079 2,920
Total current liabilitieS...........cocveievrireeiriieeeireeenee. 5,311,554 5,042,357 23,441,146 804,707
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term loans (Note 11)....ccccevvieniinniiiniiinieiiceneee — 594,900 3,604,535 123,740
OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension liabilities (Notes 2 and 12).............. 11,198 10,723 16,506 567
Guarantee deposits received........coovvererienenceneneenne. 384 21,888 74,183 2,547
OLNETS ..t 887 — — —
Total other liabilitieS........ccceeeeeeivveeeeeeirieeeeennneee. 12,469 32,611 90,689 3,114
Total Habilities .......c..ccovveeeeeiiieeiieeeieeeieeeeee e 5,324,023 5,669,868 27,136,370 931,561
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Notes 2, 13 and 14)
Shareholders’ equity of parent company
Common shares - US$0.1 par value in 2008 and
2009, NT$10 par value in 2010
Authorized: 500,000 thousand shares in 2008
and 2009, 300,000 thousand shares in 2010
Issued: 308,261 thousand shares in 2008 and
2009, 224,068 thousand shares in 2010 .......... 1,011,097 987,361 2,240,675 69,710
Capital surplus
Additional paid-in capital.........ccoccvrvrerirererirnnnne. 1,465,827 1,431,416 6,293,780 216,058
Employee stock options...........ccccceeecveneeveniennnnnn — — 179,467 6,161
Total capital SUrplus........cccceceeveveenencenenennns 1,465,827 1,431,416 6,473,247 222,219
Retained earnings
Legal 1eSerVe...ccouiivieriieiieiceieeeeec e — — 210,722 7,234
Unappropriated earnings...........ccccoceecveeveevenuennnene 506,770 2,619,701 5,457,028 187,333
Total retained €arnings .........cccceeceeveereeruenennns 506,770 2,619,701 5,667,750 194,567
Other items of shareholders’ equity
Cumulative translation adjustments .................... 258,512 263,937 417,403 21,539
Net loss not recognized as pension cost.............. — — (6,117) (210)
Total other items of shareholders’ equity ........ 258,512 263,937 411,286 21,329
Total shareholders’ equity of parent company .... 3,242,206 5,302,415 14,792,958 507,825
MINOTItY INEETESE ..evuveeiieeiiieriiieieeiie sttt — 17,419 — —
Total shareholders’ equUity .......ccccevceevuerierveniennnene 3,242,206 5,319,834 14,792,958 507,825
TOTAL ..o e $8,566,229 $10,989,702 $41,929,328 $1,439,386

Note: The foreign exchange rate between the foreign currency and New Taiwan dollars shall be based on the exchange rate as of the
date of the balance sheet for each year. However, for shares with the par value of NT$10 per share, the share capital should be the
total number of shares multiplied by NT$10 (fixed at the historical exchange rate). The exchange rates from U.S. dollars to New
Taiwan dollars as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were transferred in US$1=NT$32.80, US$1=NT$32.03 and

US$1=NT$29.13, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TPK HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share)

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
OPERATING REVENUE (Note 2) ..ccvvveeeeeiiieeeeeireeene. $12,946,642 $18,718,393 $59,647,515 $2,047,632
SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES (Note 2)...... (4,297) (9,642) (48,762) (1,674)
NET OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 18 and 20) ........ 12,942,345 18,708,751 59,598,753 2,045,958
COST OF GOODS SOLD (Notes 2, 3, 6, 12, 14,

16 and 18) ccuueiieeeeeieeee e 11,187,783 14,472,878 49,581,726 1,702,084
GROSS PROFIT ....oooiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 1,754,562 4,235,873 10,017,027 343,874
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 2, 12, 13, 14, 16

and 18)

MarKeting .....cevueieieieeiieieeieee et 107,334 118,005 373,029 12,806

General adminiStrative............cooevuveeeeiiiiieeeeeieiieeeeeeenns 616,454 866,894 1,837,262 63,071

Research and development..........c.cccceeenieniencenicncenne. 538,570 638,713 1,574,291 54,044

Total operating eXpenses .........cceveerveerreerversueennn 1,262,358 1,623,612 3,784,582 129,921
OPERATING INCOME .......coooovviiiiiiiieeeeieeeeeeeeeeen 492,204 2,612,261 6,232,445 213,953
NONOPERATING INCOME AND GAINS

Interest income (Note 20) .....ccoeieveieeeiieeecieeeeieeenee. 5,186 3,045 16,044 551

Exchange gain, net (Note 2) .....cccooeeveenenienieneenienenn 56,931 849 — —

Other income (NOtE 2) ....cccveieviiieiiieeeiee e 57,715 54,391 91,839 3,152

Total nonoperating income and gains................... 119,832 58,285 107,883 3,703
NONOPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Interest expenses (Notes 18 and 20).......ccccevevveenennne. 135,217 68,850 87,412 3,001

Exchange 10ss, net (INOte 2) ..c.eevveeviieneeriieeniienieeieene — — 155,051 5,323

Other loss (Notes 2 and 20) ......cccceeeeeeviveeeeeeeineeeeeeenns 83,033 37,541 164,541 5,648

Total nonoperating expenses and losses .............. 218,250 106,391 407,004 13,972
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX ....ccoovvviiiiiiieeeeennen, 393,786 2,564,155 5,933,324 203,684
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 15).................. 5,289 254,142 1,185,445 40,695
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME .......cccccccovvvvveeeeennnen. $ 388,497 $ 2,310,013 $ 4,747,879 $ 162,989
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Shareholders of the parent company.............ccecueruennenne $ 388,497 $ 2,317,007 $ 4,741,555 $ 162,772

MINOTILY INEEIESES ..uveveeuteerienierteeieeeeeie e eee e — (6,994) 6,324 217

$ 388,497 $ 2,310,013 $ 4,747,879 $ 162,989
2008 2009 2010
Before After Before After Before After
Income Income Income Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$ NT$ US$
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 17)
Basic earnings per share..........cccocovveeuene. $ 208 $ 206 $ 1360 $ 1226 $ 2978 $ 1.02 $ 2383 $ 082
Diluted earnings per share .............ccc...... $ 208 $ 206 $ 1311 $ 1182 $ 2878 $ 099 $ 23.03 $ 0.79

Note: The foreign exchange rate between the foreign currency and New Taiwan dollars shall be based on the exchange rate as of the
date of the balance sheet for each year. However, for shares with the par value of NT$10 per share, the share capital should be the
total number of shares multiplied by NT$10 (fixed at the historical exchange rate). The exchange rates from U.S. dollars to New
Taiwan dollars as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were transferred in US$1=NT$32.80, US$1=NT$32.03 and

US$1=NT$29.13, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TPK HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .....
Consolidated net iNCOME ........ccoeoevuveeeeeeeeeeeeeereeenneen. $ 388,497 $2310,013 $ 4,747,879 $ 162,989
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..............cccceeeverveennne. 499,364 699,575 1,059,359 36,367
Provision for doubtful accounts ............cccccceeevveennnnn — 9,127 20,684 710
Loss on purchase commitment..........cccccevvverveenenne — — 149,260 5,124
Provision for 1oss on inventories .........ccccccveeeeeeennnn. 58,008 5,677 466,138 16,002
Recognized (reversal of) impairment losses............ 3,461 (3,380) 155,878 5,351
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
(0 11102011 1| OSSPSR 3,555 (939) (289) (10)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets............c..c....... 40 — — —
Compensation cost for employee..........cccceceevuenueenee. — — 179,467 6,161
Valuation loss on financial assetS..........ccoeeveveevennnne.. (3,252) 3,176 — —
Deferred inCOME taX ...ooovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 3,471 4,082 386,457 13,267
Increase (decrease) in accrued pension liabilities ... (2,141) (213) 638 22
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes and accounts receivable ..........cccveeeevennnnee. 1,060,377 (141,087) (11,150,449) (382,782)
INVENLOTIES..eoviieiiiiiecieceeee et (404,632) (19,960) (2,620,154) (89,947)
Other current assSets ........cocvveeeeeevvveeeeeeiivreeeeeennnen (2,784) (24,942) (1,464,349) (50,270)
Notes and accounts payable .........ccocceevverrernenne. 503,899 57,222 11,897,384 408,424
Accrued expenses and income tax payable......... 109,621 320,596 2,180,389 74,850
Other payables ........coceeeveeniniinineiieneeeeeee (30,340) (160,150) — —
Other current liabilities..........cccceeeveiieeiiieeeieeene. (63,575) 38,763 (67,487) 2,317)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........... 2,123,569 3,097,560 5,940,805 203,941
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment............. (1,809,221) (1,409,152) (10,711,172) (367,702)
Acquisition of intangible assets ........c.ccceeveereerriernieenne (114,409) (55,323) (261,810) (8,988)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, equipment
and intangible asset ........ccccevvverieinieniienieeeeee e, 178,498 46,446 5,445 187
Decrease (increase) in restricted assetS.........ccovvveeenn. — (524,496) 463,534 15,913
Increase in refundable deposits........ccoceevvieriverienienne. (1,362) (69,135) (232,295) (7,974)
Increase in Other assSetS.........coveieviieeeciieeeiiee e (5,020) (13,992) (6,495) (223)
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiary .......c..c.cc..c..... — — (909,672) (31,228)
Net cash used in investing activities.................... (1,751,514) (2,025,652) (11,652,465) (400,015)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans ....................... 219,626 (152,244) 1,900,601 65,245
Proceeds from long-term 10ans ........cccceeeeerieriennenne. 379,814 594,639 3,392,486 116,460
Repayment of long-term 10ans.........ccoceeeveenvervenneenne. (862,914) (207,118) (135,788) (4,661)
Decrease in other liabiliti€S.......cccoeeeeevvveeieeieiveeeeeenns 420 (866) — —
Increase in guarantee deposits received.......c..ccceueee. — 21,513 54,277 1,863
Increase (decrease) in minority interest..................... — 24,413 (22,167) (761)
Issuance of common stock for cash.........coooeveennnnnnns — — 5,852,236 200,900
Cash dividends paid..........coocevervieneniieninieeneceeenee, — (192,180) (1,373,246) (47,142)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVITIES 1ovvviieveciieeiie et (263,054) 88,157 9,668,399 331,904
CASH INCREASE FROM ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY ..ottt — — 9,380 322
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES............... (132,543) (17,055) (73,025) 2,687
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2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH.........cccceuen.. $ (23,542) $1,143,010 $ 3,893,094 $ 138,839
CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR.......cccccoveunees 551,397 527,855 1,670,865 52,165
CASH AT THE END OF YEAR .....ccccectveiniineineenns $ 527,855 $1,670,865 $ 5,563,959 §$ 191,004
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Reclassification of leased assets and other assets
to property, plant and equipment .............cccceeeveneeee $ — 3 — $ 25882 $ 890
Fixed assets transferred to idle assets...........cccceeueeeeene. $ — 3 — $ 155878 $ 5,351
Issuance of common stock for bonus to employees ... $ — 3 — $ 189345 $ 6,500
Current portion of long-term 10ans ............ccoeeeveueeneeee. $ — 3 — $ 247,605 $ 8,500
INVESTING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTH
CASH AND NON-CASH ITEMS
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment............. $1,969,746  $1,397,405 $12,880,793 $ 442,183
Decrease (increase) in payables on construction
and eqUIPMENL.......c.evveeirieririeierieierieeneere et (160,525) 11,747 (2,169,621) (74,481)
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and
CQUIPIICNL ...ttt eaens $1,809,221  $1,409,152 $10,711,172 $ 367,702
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid for iNterest ........cceveverveireireeeeeeeeeeeees $ 119,658 $ 79,182 $ 82,780 $ 2,842
Cash paid for inCOmMe tax .......coceceererrreereeririeereeninenes $ 2003 $ 182999 $ 373,258 $ 12814

The Company acquired 50% equity interest and certain assets of Optera TPK Holding Pte. Ltd. (the Company
held the other 50% equity interest before the acquisition) from Magna International Inc. on March 12, 2010.
The acquisition consideration and the fair values of acquired net assets were summarized as follows:

NT$ US$
CUITEIIE @SSELES +eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e eee e eeeeeesereeeeeeaeaeeeeeeaaeaeeeeeeaaaeeeeeeseaaeeeessenreeeeessanes $ 118,032 $ 4,052
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt, NEL........ccuerieiiiriirierieeieie ettt 440,358 15,117
GOOAWILL ... ettt et e e e e te e et eeeaeeeteeeaveeeaeeenee e 285,620 9,805
Other INtan@IbDIE ASSELS .....cc.eruveitiriieiirtieiert ettt sttt sttt eeeaeenee 348,691 11,970
(0131 G < £ T RSO RRRR 2,963 102
CUITENt HADIIIES ...eeeeeiiieiie et et e e e e e e et e e et e eareeeeaaeeeans (146,004) (5,102)
LONG-TEITN LOAMNS ...ttt ettt sttt et be et sbe e naeeneens (23,468) (806)
AcqUISTHION CONSIABTALION ..eevuvieiiieiieeieeiiesiieeieesiee st eteestte st eesaeesiaeebeesaeesaseeseenaeesnseas 1,026,192 35,228
Less: Other PAYabIe.....ccc.oeiuiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt ettt st saee st ebeesaeesaeees (116,520) (4,000)
Cash paid fOr aCqUISTHON ..c..ecveiiiiiririitcteteet ettt $ 909,672 $ 31,228

Note: The foreign exchange rate between the foreign currency and New Taiwan dollars shall be based on the exchange rate as of the
date of the balance sheet for each year. However, for shares with the par value of NT$10 per share, the share capital should be the
total number of shares multiplied by NT$10 (fixed at the historical exchange rate). The exchange rates from U.S. dollars to New
Taiwan dollars as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were transferred in US$1=NT$32.80, US$1=NT$32.03 and
US$1=NT$29.13, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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TPK HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010

(In Thousands, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

TPK Holding Co., Ltd. (“TPKH”) was incorporated as a limited company under the provision of the Company Law of the
Cayman Islands on November 21, 2005.

TPKH and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) are mainly engaged in the business of developing, manufacturing and
selling touch modules, touch display and ITO glass related products.

TPKH’s shares have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since October 29, 2010.
As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Company had 7,737, 8,907 and 34,453 employees, respectively.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China (ROC). Under these guidelines and
principles, certain estimates and assumptions have been used for the allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance for loss on inventories,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortization of intangible assets, pension cost, bonuses to employees and directors,
valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets, impairment loss and fair values of net assets accounted for by the business
combination-purchase method, etc. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version
or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language financial statements shall prevail.

Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:
Principles of Consolidation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements not only include subsidiaries but also include other investees over which the
Company has controlling interests. All significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

The financial statements of TPKH are prepared in its functional currency at U.S. dollars and other subsidiaries’ financial
statements are prepared in their respective functional currency. For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the following exchange rates: assets and liabilities- spot rates
at the balance sheet date; shareholders’ equity - historical rates; income and expenses - average rates for the year. The resulting translation
adjustments are recorded as a separate component under shareholders’ equity.

As TPKH’s shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, the consolidated financial statements are required to be presented in
New Taiwan dollars. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements presented herein are translated from U.S. dollars into New Taiwan
dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date, except for the amount of issued common stock with the par value of NT$10 which
shall be translated at the historical exchange rate as required by the ROC regulations. The exchange rates from U.S. dollars to New
Taiwan dollars as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were US$1=NT$32.80, US$1=NT$32.03, and US$1=NT$29.13, respectively.
Exchange difference arising from the translations of foreign currencies are recognized as effect of exchange rate under shareholders’
equity.



Prior to March 12, 2010, TPKH had a 50% equity interest in a joint venture of Optera TPK Holding Pte. Ltd. (“OTH”). The
Company applied proportionate consolidation to account for OTH where TPKH recognized its share of assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses in its financial statements. On March 12, 2010, TPKH acquired the other 50% equity interest of OTH and as a result,
consolidated financial statements include all the accounts of OTH (see Note 22).

Percentage of Ownership

December 31

Name of
Investor Name of Investee Main Businesses 2008 2009 2010 Remark
TPKH TPK Technology International Inc. (TTI) International trade 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
" Improve Idea Investments Ltd. (Improve) Holding company 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
" Optera TPK Holding Pte. Ltd. (OTH) Holding company 50.0% 50.0% 100.0% a.
" Upper Year Holdings Limited (UYH) Holding company and 97.0% 99.7% 99.9%
international trade
" Ray-Star Universal Solutions Limited (RUSL) Holding company and — — 100.0% h.
international trade
Improve  TPK Touch Solutions Inc. (TPKT) Research, development and 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
sales
" Greatec Precision Solution Corp. (GPSC) Machinery producing and — 51.0% 100.0% c.
sales
" TPK Asia Pacific Sdn. Bhd. (TPKA) Holding company — — 100.0% i
UYH TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. (TPKC) Touch modules research, 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
development,
manufacturing and sales
" TPK Lens Solutions Inc. (TPKL) Optical glass manufacturing 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
and sales
" TPK Touch Systems (Xiamen) Inc. (TPKS) Touch display and system 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
research, manufacturing
and sales
" Ray-Star Optical Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. (RSO) Optical glass manufacturing — — 55.0% e.
and sales
" Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc. (RST) ITO glass research, — — 55.0% f.
development and sales
OTH Optera Technology (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (OTX) ITO glass research, 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
development and sales
" TPK U.S.A. LLC (TPK USA) International trade — — 100.0% g.
RUSL TPK Universal Solutions Limited (TPK HK) Holding company and — — 100.0% i.
international trade
TPKT TPK Advanced Solutions Corp. (TAS) Research and development 100.0% 100.0% — d.
" New Strategy Investment Ltd. (NSI) Holding company 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NSI Upper Year Holdings Limited (UYH) Holding company and 3.0% 0.3% 0.1% b.
international trade
TPKC Ray-Star Optical Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. (RSO) Optical glass manufacturing — — 45.0% e.
and sales
" Ray-Star Technology (Xiamen) Inc. (RST) ITO glass research, — — 45.0% f.

development and sales

a. TPKH acquired the other 50% equity interest to own all the shares of OTH in March 2010 (see Note 22).

b. In 2009 and 2010, TPKH continually invested cash and converted its receivables from UYH into investments in UYH,
respectively; therefore, TPKH increased its equity interest in UYH to 99.9%. NSI decreased its investment in UYH to 0.1% in
2010.

c. In February 2009, Improve invested NT$25,500 thousand in GPSC to acquire 2,550 thousand shares (51% equity interest). In
September 2010, Improve invested NT$24,500 thousand to acquire GPSC’s remaining 2,450 thousand shares. Therefore, Improve

increased its equity interest in GPSC to 100%.

d. On December 1, 2009, TAS (including its assets, liabilities, and business), a 100% owned subsidiary of TPKT, was merged into
TPKT.

e. In April 2010, UYH and TPKC jointly set up and invested US$11,750 thousand in RSO and acquired 55% and 45% equity
interest of RSO, respectively.

f. In April 2010, OTH and TPKC jointly set up and invested US$20,000 thousand in RST and acquired 55% and 45% equity interest
of RST, respectively. In July 2010, OTH disposed its equity interest in RST for US$11,000 to UYH.

g. In April 2010, OTH set up and invested US$1,000 thousand in TPK USA.



h. In December 2010, TPKH set up and invested US$22,000 thousand in RUSL.

i. In December 2010, Improve and RUSL individually set up TPKA and TPK HK, respectively. As of December 31, 2010, TPKA
and TPK HK have been registered but have not received the capital yet.

Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

Current assets include cash and those assets held primarily for trading purposes or to be realized, sold or consumed within one
year from the balance sheet date. All other assets such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are classified as noncurrent.
Current liabilities are obligations incurred for trading purposes or to be settled within one year from the balance sheet date. All other
liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) include
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition. The Company recognizes a
financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. A financial asset is derecognized when the Company has lost control of its contractual rights over the financial asset.
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized
directly in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. On derecognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the difference
between its carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable or consideration paid and payable is recognized in
profit or loss. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

The Company engages in forward foreign exchange contracts, which are derivatives. A derivative that does not meet the criteria
for hedge accounting is classified as a financial asset or a financial liability held for trading. If the fair value of the derivative is positive,
the derivative is recognized as a financial asset; otherwise, the derivative is recognized as a financial liability.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance sheet date are determined as follows: Financial assets and
financial liabilities without quoted prices in an active market - at values determined using valuation techniques.

Revenue Recognition, Trade Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods, primarily upon shipment, because the earnings process has been completed and the economic benefits associated
with the transaction have been realized or are realizable. Allowances for sales returns and others are generally recorded in the year the
related revenue is recognized on the basis of past experience, management’s judgment, and relevant factors.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts agreed between the
Company and the customers for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of sales discounts and volume rebates. For trade
receivables due within one year from the balance sheet date, as the nominal value of the consideration to be received approximates its fair
value and transactions are frequent, fair value of the consideration is not determined by discounting all future receipts using an imputed
rate of interest.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided on the basis of a review of the collectability of accounts receivable. The Company
assesses the probability of collections of accounts receivable by examining the aging analysis of the outstanding receivables.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-process. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made on an item by item basis, except where it may be appropriate to group similar or related
items. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Inventories are recorded at standard cost and adjusted to approximate weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date.

Property, Plant, Equipment and Assets Leased to Others

Property, plant, equipment and assets leased to others are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of property, plant, equipment and assets leased to others are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. Major additions and improvements to property, plant, equipment and assets leased to others are capitalized, while costs of

repairs and maintenance are expensed currently.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives as follows:

BUILIAING ..ottt b et b bbbttt ettt ettt enan 20 years
MaChinery and EQUIPIIICIIT ... ..c.coueuietieteaieitrtet ettt ettt ettt h bt es e b et e st eb et e st et et es e eb e e e st eb et ebeeb et es e et et ebeebe s eneeseeenes 4-10 years
TranspOrtation ANA OHEIS .......c.cvueiiuirtiieirt ettt ettt ettt b et ettt e et b et sa et bt bt et sa et bt benn st eaeeenes 2-6 years



The related cost, accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses of an item of property, plant, equipment and assets
leased to others are derecognized from the balance sheet upon its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of the asset is included in
nonoperating gains or losses in the year of disposal.

Property, plant, equipment and assets leased to others still in use beyond their original estimated useful lives are further
depreciated over their new estimated useful lives.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are initially recorded at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Land use right is amortized over 50 years, technical know-how is amortized over 7 years, computer software and patents are amortized
over 2-5 years. Goodwill arising from business combinations is not amortized and instead is tested for impairment annually.

Expenditure for research activities is recognized as an expense when incurred. An internally generated intangible asset arising from
development activities is capitalized and then amortized on a straight-line basis over 2 years if the recognition criteria for intangible asset
is met; otherwise, the development expenditure is recognized as an expense when incurred.

Idle Assets

Idled fixed assets are reclassified as other assets at the lower of their net realizable value or book value. The related cost and
accumulated depreciation are derecognized from the balance sheet upon transfer of the asset. The difference between carrying value and
net realizable value is recognized as loss. Idled assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of Assets

If the recoverable amount of an asset (mainly property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, assets leased to others and idle
assets) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to earnings. If the recoverable amount increases in a subsequent period, the amount previously recognized as
impairment would be reversed and recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted amount may not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, as if no impairment loss had been recognized.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGU(s)”) that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or whenever there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU becomes less than its carrying
amount, the impairment is allocated to first reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets
of the CGU on the pro rata basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. A reversal of an impairment loss on goodwill is
disallowed.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options granted on or after January 1, 2010 are accounted for under Rule No. 0990006370 issued by the Financial
Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) on March 15, 2010. Under the FSC’s rule, the value of the stock options granted, which is equal to the
best available estimate of the number of stock options expected to vest multiplied by the grant-date fair value, is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to capital surplus - employee stock options. The estimate is
revised if subsequent information indicates that the number of stock options expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

According to related government regulations, when issuing common stock for cash, certain amount of shares should be reserved
for subscription by employees. The Company uses the fair value of the equity instrument at grant date to evaluate the fair value of
services the employees provided. The compensation cost is recorded as salary expense with a corresponding adjustment to capital surplus
- employee stock options.

Pension Cost

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by actuarial valuations. Contributions made under a defined contribution
plan are recognized as pension cost during the year in which employees render services.

Curtailment or settlement gains or losses of the defined benefit plan are recognized as part of the net periodic pension cost for the
year.

Income Tax

The Company applies inter-year allocations for its income tax, whereby deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the tax effects of temporary differences, unused loss carryforward and unused tax credits. Valuation allowance is provided to the
extent, if any, that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be realized. A deferred tax asset or liability is
classified as current or noncurrent in accordance with the classification of its related asset or liability. However, if a deferred income tax
asset or liability does not relate to an asset or liability in the financial statements, then it is classified as either current or noncurrent based
on the expected length of time before it is realized or settled.

Tax credits for purchases of machinery, equipment and technology, research and development expenditures, and personnel training
expenditures are recognized using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax provision.



According to the Income Tax Law in Taiwan, an additional tax at 10% of unappropriated earnings of Taiwan subsidiaries is
provided for as income tax in the year the shareholders approve to retain the earnings.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Non-derivative foreign-currency transactions are recorded in functional currency at the rates of exchange in effect when the
transactions occur. Exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign-currency assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency monetary assets and liabilities are revalued using prevailing exchange rates and the
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation of the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010.

3. EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Accounting for Inventories

On January 1, 2008, the Company early adopted the newly revised SFAS No. 10, “Accounting for Inventories” in the ROC. The
main revisions are (1) inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, and inventories are written down to net realizable
value item-by-item except when the grouping of similar or related items is appropriate; (2) unallocated overheads are recognized as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred; and (3) abnormal costs, write-downs of inventories and any reversal of write-downs are
recorded as cost of goods sold for the period. The adoption had no material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statement as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Accounting for Bonuses to Employees and Directors

In March 2007, the Accounting Research and Development Foundation (the “ARDF”) of the ROC issued Interpretation 2007-052
that requires companies to recognize as compensation expenses bonuses paid to employees, directors and supervisors beginning January 1,
2008. These bonuses were previously recorded as appropriations from earnings. The adoption of this interpretation had no material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statement as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008.

4. CASH
December 31
2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Petty Cash......ccooioiiiciriicieccc e $ 419 $ 720 $ 1,555 $ 53
Checking accounts and demand deposits 466,296 1,372,266 5,562,404 190,951

Time dEPOSILS ..euviuiieiiiiieiiteieie ettt 61,140 297,879 — —
$ 527,855 $ 1,670,865 $ 5,563,959 $ 191,004

The 2008 and 2009 time deposits matured in December 2009 and January 2010, with interest rates of 0.1% to 2.17% and 0.15%,
respectively.

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Accounts receivable...........coeveevenenn.... L% 719,362 $ 843,744 $12,006,702 $ 412,176
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ...........ccceceevevevieereenenen. — (8,695) (7,816) (268)

$ 719,362 $ 835,049 $11,998,886 $ 411,908




Movements of the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

December 31

2008 2009 2010
Accounts Other Accounts Other Accounts Other
Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$ NT$ US$
Balance, beginning of year ................. $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 8695 $ 271 $ — 3 —
Add (deduct): Provision (reversal of
provision) for doubtful accounts.... — — 9,127 — (505) (17) 21,189 727
Translation adjustment............ccccceuenee. — (432) — (374) 14 — —
Balance, end of year..........ccccoervnrenne. $ — $ — $ 8,695 $ — $ 7816 $ 268 $21,189 $ 727
Factored accounts receivable were as follows:
Advances Interest Rates
Receivables Amounts Received at on Advances
Counter-parties Currency Sold Collected Year-end Received (%)
Year ended December 31, 2008
China Merchants Bank ............c...cc......... NT$ $ 4,900,186 $ 4,165,553 $ 734,633 Libor+1.8%
Year ended December 31, 2009
China Merchants Bank ...........cccccoceevenne NT$ $ 8,437,201 $ 7,971,595 $ 1,200,239 Libor+1.8%
Year ended December 31, 2010
China Merchants Bank.............c...cc......... NT$ $ 24,515,402 $ 24,412,385 $ 1,303,256 Libor+

(US$841,586) (US$838,050) (US$40,470) 0.8%-1.3%

Pursuant to the factoring contracts, losses from sales returns and discounts shall be borne by TPKC, while losses from credit risk
shall be borne by the bank. The credit lines of above contracts as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were NT$2,296,000 thousand,
NT$2,242,100 thousand and NT$5,826,000 thousand (approximately US$200,000 thousand), respectively. The credit lines may be used on
a revolving basis.

6. INVENTORIES

December 31

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Finished Z00dS.......ccoivuiuiirnieiiinicciei e $ 390,432 $ 302,705 $ 914,526 $ 31,395
WOTK 10 PIOCESS ...ceevvinirieiiirieieeiie ettt — 113,413 49,965 1,715
Raw mMaterials .........ocooevviieiieiiiieie e 631,996 555,132 2,091,370 71,794
GOOdS 1N LFANSIE 1.vveveeeievieiieiecieeteeie et — — 12 1

$ 1,022,428 $ 971,250 $ 3,055,873 $ 104,905

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the allowance for inventory devaluation was NT$58,505 thousand, NT$45,315
thousand and NT$519,376 thousand (approximately US$17,830 thousand), respectively.
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The costs of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were
NT$11,187,783 thousand, NT$14,472,878 thousand and NT$49,581,726 thousand (approximately US$1,702,084 thousand). The accounts
listed below were included in cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

Provision for 10SS 0N INVENLOTIES ...c..evverveevieierieniiiiiniereeieiene

Loss on purchase commitment.

LOSS 0N INVENLOTY SCIAP w..veveveeeeriiiiieeeeeee e
Loss on physical iNVENOTY .........cceeveririrenieineieincieeeienns

December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
$ 28435 $ 378 $ 462,162 $ 15,866
_ — 149,260 5,124
29,573 5,299 3,976 136
669 145 443 15
$ 58,677 $ 5,822 $ 615,841 $ 21,141

Due to client’s alteration of product design, certain raw materials were no longer usable. Based on the purchase contracts, the
Company recorded an estimate loss in the amount of NT$149,260 thousand (approximately US$5,124 thousand) which was included in
cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, the Company recorded accrued liability on purchase
commitment in the amount of NT$150,466 thousand (approximately US$5,165 thousand).

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Construction
in Progress
and
Machinery and Transportation Prepayments

Buildings Equipment and Others for Equipment Total
Cost
Balance, beginning of year ...........cccccoeueee $ 1,261,354 $ 3,670,562 $ 664,273 $ 202,506 $ 5,798,695
AdItiONS ... — — 220,586 1,176,819 1,397,405
DiSPOSALS .o (8,287) (22,761) (24,106) — (55,154)
Reclassification....... 1,134 740,715 85,632 (827,481) —
Translation adjustment............cceceverveeeniennns (28,477) (81,431) (12,319) (3,580) (125,807)
Balance, end of year........cccocccceeniriccninnenne 1,225,724 4,307,085 934,066 548,264 7,015,139
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, beginning of year .........c..cccccceeuens 83,934 268,009 140,864 — 492,807
Depreciation €Xpense...........cccccveereevereerennne 56,290 384,373 149,924 — 590,587
DiSPOSALS ...t (315) (6,061) (3,271) — (9,647)
Reclassification.........ocoeveeeeneinencnincniens (789) 1,089 (300) — —
Translation adjustment (1,864) (5,384) (10,535) — (17,783)
Balance, end of year.........c.cccccoevvrenneniennns 137,256 642,026 276,682 — 1,055,964
Accumulated impairment loss
Balance, beginning of year .. — 3,461 — — 3,461
Reversal of impairment 10SS..........ccccecevuenne — (3,380) — — (3,380)
Translation adjustment............cccecevveerenuennns — 81) — — (81)
Balance, end of year...........cccceevvvrerieinennns — — — — —
Net book value, end of year ..........cccceueueee $ 1,088,468 $ 3,665,059 $ 657,384 $ 548,264 $ 5,959,175
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(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Construction
in Progress
and
Machinery and Transportation Prepayments
Buildings Equipment and Others  for Equipment Total

Cost
Balance, beginning of year .. .. $ 1,225,724 $ 4,307,085 $ 934,066 $ 548,264 $ 7,015,139
AAAItiONS .....vvvevececeeeeee e — 1,553 2,873 12,876,367 12,880,793

Recognized on acquisition of subsidiary..... — 237,875 62,162 215,963 516,000
DiSPOSALS .o (1,227) (4,101) (19,868) — (25,196)
Reclassification........coceveveererieenenieisiens 528,318 5,750,293 1,767,979 (8,223,712) (177,122)
Translation adjustment............cccocevervevenuennns (71,686) (138,119) (21,160) (12,846) (243,811)
Balance, end of year........cccoccccoenirccninnnenne 1,681,129 10,154,586 2,726,052 5,404,036 19,965,803

Accumulated depreciation

Balance, beginning of year .. 137,256 642,026 276,682 — 1,055,964
Depreciation eXpense...........cocceveervevereerenns 52,863 616,185 300,031 — 969,079
Recognized on acquisition of subsidiary..... — 47,482 28,160 — 75,642
DiSPOSALS ...t (134) (3,118) (16,815) — (20,067)
Reclassification........c.ccceueveveeveviennieniereeiens 4,591 (46,335) (5,382) — (47,126)
Translation adjustment............ccecevveeveenuennnns (7,347) (24,797) (8,315) — (40,459)
Balance, end of year.........cccoccoeverenincnennns 187,229 1,231,443 574,361 — 1,993,033
Net book value, end of year ..........ccccceueueee $ 1,493,900 $ 8,923,143 $ 2,151,691 $ 5,404,036 $17,972,770
(Concluded)

(Amount in Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Construction
in Progress
and
Machinery and Transportation Prepayments
Buildings Equipment and Others  for Equipment Total

Cost
Balance, beginning of year ............cccccov..... $ 38268 $ 134,470 $ 29,163 $ 17,117 $ 219,018
Additions.........ccoevevveiiieieieieiennne — 53 99 442,031 442,183
Recognized on acquisition of subsidiary..... — 8,166 2,133 7,414 17,713
DiSPOSALS ..ot (42) (141) (682) — (865)
Reclassification ........c.oceveveerereneneneenens 18,091 197,402 60,738 (282,311) (6,080)
Translation adjustment............cccecevverveeenuennns 1,395 8,645 2,132 1,263 13,435
Balance, end of year........ccoccoceenirecnininenne 57,712 348,595 93,583 185,514 685,404
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, beginning of year .........c..ccccceeueues 4,285 20,044 8,639 — 32,968
Depreciation €Xpense...........coecveereeruereerennns 1,815 21,153 10,299 — 33,267
Recognized on acquisition of subsidiary..... — 1,630 966 — 2,596
DiSposals ...c.eveueeieieirerceeee e 5) (107) (577) — (689)
Reclassification 150 (1,591) (178) — (1,619)
Translation adjustment............ccecevvevverenuennns 182 1,145 569 — 1,896
Balance, end of year.........cccocceeveneiincncnns 6,427 42,274 19,718 — 68,419
Net book value, end of year ............cc.......... $ 51,285 $ 306,321 $ 73,865 $ 185,514 $ 616,985

As of December, 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, constructions in process were mainly comprised of manufacturing plants and clean
rooms under construction in process, and machinery and equipment under installation process.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recognized an impairment loss of NT$155,878 thousand (approximately

US$5,351 thousand), due to the alteration of production process. As a result, the equipment for use in the production could no longer be
used. Such equipment was transferred to idle assets which are included in other assets - others.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Technical Land Use Computer
Goodwill Know-how Right Software Patent Other Total

Cost
Balance, beginning of year.............. $ 372,674 $ — 3 66,518 $ 60,341 $ 41 $ 170,121 $ 669,695
AddItions .......cceeveveeiereieieeeieeeiens — — — 25,348 23,966 6,009 55,323
DiSpOosals ....cveerenieiinieiieneeeeee — — — — — (872) (872)
Reclassification ...... — — — 1,144 — (1,144) —
Translation adjustment.................... (8,868) — (1,500) (358) 56 (3,479) (14,149)
Balance, end of year..........ccoeueunene 363,806 — 65,018 86,475 24,063 170,635 709,997
Accumulated amortization
Balance, beginning of year.............. — — 4,989 12,313 — 109,645 126,947
AMOrtization..........ccoevevverrerieeerenns — — 1,300 12,294 1,205 54,303 69,102
DisSposals ....c..ccovevveiinenieineieieiee — — — — — (872) (872)
Translation adjustment.................... — — (112) 150 — (2,328) (2,290)
Balance, end of year.......c..cccceeeune — — 6,177 24,757 1,205 160,748 192,887
Net book value, end of year............ $ 363,806 $ — $ 58,841 $ 61,718 $ 22858 $ 9,887 $ 517,110

(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2010
Technical Land Use Computer
Goodwill Know-how Right Software Patent Other Total
Cost
Balance, beginning of year.............. $ 363,806 $ — 3 65,018 $ 86,475 $ 24,063 $ 170,635 $ 709,997
Additions ....c.oeeveereeeieeeseeeene 204 — 228,779 33,005 26 — 262,014
Recognized on acquisition of
SUDSIAIAIY c..voveeeecicicriene 285,620 253,693 — 4,481 69,134 23,624 636,552
DiSposals .....coeveueerievereiniriecieeeienens — — — (28) — (158,887)  (158,915)
Translation adjustment.................... (32,939) — 3,001 (777) 2,177) (10,749) (43,641)
Balance, end of year..........ccoeueuencee 616,691 253,693 296,798 123,156 91,046 24,623 1,406,007
Accumulated amortization
Balance, beginning of year.............. — — 6,177 24,757 1,205 160,748 192,887
AMOrtiZation........ceeveverveererieierenns — 30,202 5,033 19,141 4,380 30,045 88,801
Recognized on acquisition of
SUDSIAIATY ..eveeicicceee — — — 2,237 4 — 2,241

DiSpOSals ...c.covvveveeenirieiiirinciceeeieans — — — (1) — (158,887)  (158,888)
Translation adjustment..................... — — (268) 729 (109) (10,236) (9,884)
Balance, end of year..........ccoeueuenee — 30,202 10,942 46,863 5,480 21,670 115,157
Net book value, end of year............ $ 616,691 $ 223491 $ 285856 $ 76,293 $ 85,566 $ 2,953 $ 1,290,850
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(Amount in Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Technical Land Use Computer

Goodwill Know-how Right Software Patent Other Total

Cost
Balance, beginning of year.............. $ 11,358 $ — 3 2,030 $ 2,700 $ 751 $ 5328 $ 22,167
AddItions .....ccoeveveeerivieeieecreens 7 — 7,854 1,133 1 — 8,995
Recognized on acquisition of

SUDSIAIATY c.veevciceccene 9,805 8,709 — 154 2,374 810 21,852
Disposals ................ . — — — (1) — (5,455) (5,456)
Translation adjustment.................... — — 305 241 (1) 164 709
Balance, end of year..........cccoeueunene 21,170 8,709 10,189 4,227 3,125 847 48,267
Accumulated amortization
Balance, beginning of year.............. — — 193 773 38 5,018 6,022
AMOTtiZation.......c.covvveveenireeecirinnenens — 1,037 173 657 150 1,032 3,049
Recognized on acquisition of

SUbSIAIary ......coeevveereeinccirce — — — 77 — — 77
DiSposals ....coeovruenieiinieieireeeniee — — — — — (5,455) (5,455)
Translation adjustment..................... — — 10 102 1 147 260
Balance, end of year.......c..c.cccceeuee — 1,037 376 1,609 189 742 3,953
Net book value, end of year............ $ 21,170 $ 7,672 $ 9,813 $ 2,618 $ 2,936 $ 105 $ 44,314

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Company assessed the recoverability of the goodwill and determined that there was
no impairment loss.

9. ASSETS LEASED TO OTHERS (AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010: NONE)

December 31
2008 2009
NT$ NT$
COSE = DUIIAINGS 1.ttt $ 13,571 $ 14,894
Less: Accumulated depreciation - buildings..........ccoeeeeririeciininiecrinniceecceeeccee (1,476) (2,402)
$ 12,095 $ 12,492

The Company acquired the other 50% equity interest to own all shares of OTH in March 2010. As a result, the assets that were
originally leased to OTH and were accounted for using proportionate consolidation were reclassified into property, plant and equipment in
March 2010.

10.  SHORT-TERM LOANS

December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Bank 10ans .......ccooiiiiiiiiiii $ 1,845,501 $ 1,649,933 $ 3,408,924 $ 117,024

Interest rates of bank loans ranged from 3.82% to 8.23%, from 1.60% to 5.42% and from 0.90% to 5.56% as of December 31,
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

The short-term loans were guaranteed by the related parties as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 (see Note 18). Deposits of
NT$524,496 thousand and NT$13,462 thousand (approximately US$462 thousand), (included in restricted assets - current) were provided
as collateral for the short-term loans as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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11. LONG-TERM LOANS

December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Long-term bank 10ans..........ccociveirinieinineieccesceecsee $ 211,991 $ 594,900 $ 3,852,140 $ 132,240
Less: Current POrtion ......c..coeecereeeeueererreenieiesenieeeeseeseeessenenens (211,991) — (247,605) (8,500)
$ — $ 594,900 $ 3,604,535 $ 123,740

Interest rates for the long-term loans ranged from 4.90% to 6.80%, 1.43% to 5.40% and 1.09% to 5.60%, as of December 31,
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

The long-term loans were guaranteed by the related parties as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 (see Note 18).

12. PENSION PLANS

The pension plan under the Labor Pension Act in Taiwan (the “LPA”) is a defined contribution plan. Based on the LPA, TPKT,
TAS and GPSC make monthly contributions to employees’ individual pension accounts at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. For the
subsidiaries in the ROC, such pension costs were NT$9,669 thousand, NT$9,838 thousand and NT$15,508 thousand (approximately
US$532 thousand) for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Based on the defined benefit plan under the Labor Standards Law of ROC, pension benefits are calculated on the basis of the
length of service and average monthly salaries of the six months before retirement. TPKT contributes amounts equal to 2% of total
monthly salaries and wages to a pension fund administered by the pension fund monitoring committee. The pension fund is deposited in
the Bank of Taiwan in the committee’s name. TPKT recognized pension costs of NT$681 thousand, NT$282 thousand and NT$561
thousand (approximately US$19 thousand) for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) are members of state-managed retirement benefit plans
operated by the PRC government, which are defined contribution plans. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute an
amount equal to a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the pension fund. For the subsidiaries in PRC, such pension costs were
NT$12,295 thousand, NT$21,488 thousand and NT$48,768 thousand (approximately US$1,674 thousand) for the years ended December
31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

The employee contribution plan of the Company’s subsidiary in the U.S. followed the local regulations, which requires the U.S.
subsidiary to contribute to an employee retirement management plan. For the year ended December 31, 2010, such pension cost was
NT$362 thousand (approximately US$13 thousand) (for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009: None).

Information about the defined benefit plan of TPKT was as follows:

a. Components of net periodic pension cost
Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
TNEETESE COSEururvnrrirrurririereriiseeeeseseeeeessssese s st s ssssesessssese s sansesnanes $ 366 $ 405 $ 537 $ 18
Projected return on plan assets .........cccoeevveereeerierieenienieeseneenens (23) (123) (128) “4)
AMOTTZAION ...ttt (59) — 152 5
Net periodic PenSiON COSt......cururirrrrrirrririririnireresisesieeseseeseeeeeeeae $ 284 $ 282 $ 561 $ 19




b. Reconciliation of funded status of the plan and accrued pension liabilities as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Benefit obligation
Vested benefit 0bligation............ooeeieiviininiiiniiicccccene $ — $ 1,479 $ 1,498 $ 52
Non-vested benefit 0bligation ...........ccoceeveevveviecirerieincnnenne 9,235 11,166 20,266 696
Accumulated benefit 0bligation ...........ccoeeevevieireniccneiene 9,235 12,645 21,764 748
Additional benefit based on future salaries.........cccccceevveenn. 4,269 6,910 12,673 435
Projected benefit 0bligation ...........ccccceverieereniiirenicciene 13,504 19,555 34,437 1,183
Fair value of plan assets .........c.ccoeerereiinerieenenieencecseeeene (3,509) (4,293) (5,258) (181)
FUNAed SEALUS ..ot 9,995 15,262 29,179 1,002
Unrecognized Net 10SS ....c.ooverririeieiinieieireee e 1,203 (4,539) (12,673) (435)
AcCrued PENSION COS .vvuvrrmririrriririsreeieisseseassseessssesesssssesseenaees $ 11,198 $ 10,723 $ 16,506 $ 567
VeSted DENETIL ..ocvvivvieieeiceeeeeeceeeeeeee e $ —_ $ 1,486 $ 1,500 $ 51

C. Actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Discount rate used in determining present values................... 3.00% 2.75% 2.25%
Future salary inCrease rate ...........cccoeoeeeerieenenieenenieeneeneenes 3.00% 2.75% 2.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets..........cocceevvveeveenennennne 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
d. Contributions to the fUNd ........cooveeveviereereeeeeee e $ 2,698 $ 758 $ 895 $ 31
e. Payments from the fund.........ccccocoeiinieeinrceeeeeee $ — $ — $ — $ —

13.  SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Under the Article of TPKH, the capital surplus from share issued in excess of par value (additional paid-in capital from issuance
of common shares, conversion of bonds and treasury stock transactions) and donations may be capitalized, which however is limited to a
certain percentage of TPKH’s paid-in capital.

TPKH held the general meeting of shareholders on January 8, 2010. Several resolutions such as the adoption of new Memorandum
and Articles of Association of TPKH (the “Articles”) were approved in the meeting.

Effective on February 25, 2010, the authorized capital of TPKH has been revised from US$50,000 thousand (divided into 500,000
thousand shares with par value of US$0.10 each) to NT$3,000,000 thousand (divided into 300,000 thousand shares with par value of
NT$10.00 each). For the purpose of redenominating, the issued capital of US$30,826 thousand was translated into NT$1,000,000
thousand at the exchange rate of US$1=NT$32.44. Furthermore, TPKH capitalized a portion of its share premium amounting to
NT$800,000 thousand into 80,000 thousand shares to be issued pro rata to the shareholders of TPKH. Upon the redenominating of issued
share capital and the capitalization of share premium above, the authorized capital of TPKH was NT$3,000,000 thousand (divided into
300,000 thousand shares with par value of NT$10.00 each), and issued capital was NT$1,800,000 thousand (divided into 180,000
thousand shares with par value of NT$10.00 each).

Prior to January 8, 2010, the Articles provided that, when appropriating earnings for each fiscal year, TPKH should set aside the
following items accordingly:

a. Subject to the Articles, the Directors may from time to time declare and distribute dividends (including dividends declared
during the interim periods) out of the funds of TPKH lawfully available;

b. The Directors may, before declaring and distributing any dividends, set aside amounts as they consider appropriate based
on the Company’s operation needs as a reserve to be used in the business of TPKH;
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c. No dividend shall be made unless TPKH has incurred profits, realized or unrealized, or has share premium or any other
laws or regulations permit such transaction.

According to the newly amended Articles approved on April 13, 2010, TPKH may distribute profits in accordance with a proposal
for distribution of profits prepared by the directors and resolved by the shareholders. When appropriating the profits, TPKH shall first
offset its losses in previous years and set aside a legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits left over, until the accumulated legal capital
reserve has equaled the total capital of TPKH; then set aside special capital reserve in accordance with the Applicable Public Company
Rules or as requested by the authorities in charge; and then may set aside between 1% to 1.5% of the balance as bonus to directors and
between 5% to 10% of the balance as bonus to employees of TPKH.

On October, 4, 2010, the board of directors amended additional guidelines for cash dividend distribution in which the total amount
of cash dividend distributed could not be lower than 10% of the total dividend distributed and the maximum is 100%.

The appropriations of earnings for 2009 had been approved in the shareholders” meeting on April 13, 2010, and the appropriations
of earnings for 2008 had been approved in the meeting of board of directors on February 13, 2009. The appropriations and dividends per
share were as follows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars) (U.S. Dollars)
For Year 2008 For Year 2009 For Year 2008 For Year 2009
Legal capital TESETVE.....c.vuvvrvririeieeierieeisseessesseeeeenees $ — $ 7,234 $  — $  —
Cash dividends.........ccoeueueueurereineiiieeeeeeeeeeae 6,000 47,142 0.0195 0.2619

Stock dividends .. —_ 2,852 —_ 0.0158

In the shareholders’ meeting on April 13, 2010, the shareholders approved 28,000 thousand new shares issuance in an initial public
offering and listing on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, and agreed to waive any pre-emptive right to subscribe to TPKH’s issuance of shares
through such initial public offering and listing except 4,200 thousand shares (representing 15%) for employee stock options. The
Chairman was authorized to negotiate with the underwriters and determine the final offer price, the final term and condition of new shares
issuance on behalf of TPKH. This proposal was approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) under the Executive Yuan of
the ROC in letter No. 0990051313 issued on September 28, 2010.

The reserved employee stock options were accounted for under Interpretations 2007-267 issued by the Accounting Research and
Development Foundation (ARDF) of the ROC. The Black-Scholes pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of equity
instruments. For the year ended December 31, 2010, compensation cost of NT$36,130 thousand (approximately US$1,240 thousand)
(included in salary expense) was recognized, with a corresponding adjustment to capital surplus - employee stock options.

The bonus to employees and the remuneration to directors and supervisors for 2009 approved in the shareholders’ meeting on
April 13, 2010 were as follows (for year 2008: None):

Year Ended December 31, 2009
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Cash Stock

BONUS {0 EMPIOYEES ...vveveiriiiiieieiiscie ettt s et sse st ess s s nssaeses $ — $ 6,500
Remuneration to directors and SUPEIVISOLS ......c.crveirveiererieieereeietesieeeseeseseesesseeesessens 660 —

There was no difference between the approved amounts of the bonus to employees and the remuneration to directors and the
accrual amounts reflected in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Under the meeting of the board of directors, TPKH determined the ex-dividend date as July 1, 2010. On July 29, 2010 TPKH
registered with the Cayman government the stock dividends and issuance of common stock for employee bonus as appropriations of
earnings for 2009.

7,068 thousand shares of stock bonus to employee for 2009 were determined based on the employee bonus of US$6,500 thousand
divided by US$0.9197, the equity per share of the most recently audited financial report.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, the estimated bonus to employees was NT$208,195 thousand and NT$213,377
thousand (approximately US$7,325 thousand), and remuneration to directors was NT$21,140 thousand and NT$42,675 thousand
(approximately US$1,465 thousand), respectively, which was recorded as accrued expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2010, the estimated bonus to employees represented approximately 10% and 5%, respectively, and remuneration to directors represented
approximately 1% of net income after setting aside a legal capital reserve, respectively. Material differences between such estimated
amounts and the amounts proposed by the board of directors in the following year are adjusted for in the current year. If the actual
amounts subsequently resolved by the shareholders differ from the proposed amounts, the differences are recorded in the year of
shareholders’ resolution as a change in accounting estimate. If a share bonus is resolved to be distributed to employees, the number of
shares is determined based on the amount of the share bonus divided by the closing price (after considering the effect of cash and stock
dividends) of the day immediately preceding the shareholders’ meeting. However, before initial public offering, the number of shares is
determined by using the equity per share of the most recently audited financial report.
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Information on the bonus to employees and remuneration to directors is available on the Market Observation Post System website
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

14. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLANS

On May 1, 2010, 9,000 options were granted to qualified employees of the Company. Each option entitles the holder to subscribe
for one thousand common shares of TPKH when exercisable. The options granted are valid for 10 years and exercisable at certain
percentages after the second anniversary year from the grant date. Under SFAS No. 39, “Accounting for Share-based Payment” of the
ROC, employee stock options granted are valued at the fair value. For any subsequent changes (issuance of common stock as stock
dividend, capital surplus or capital reduction other than retirement of treasury stock) in TPKH’s paid-in capital, the exercise price is
adjusted accordingly.

Information about employee stock options was as follows (as of December 31, 2008 and 2009: None):

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Weighted-average

Number of Exercise Price
Options (In Dollars)
NT$ US$

OPLIONS ZLANLEA. ... .eitenieiieteiieiere ettt ettt sttt e b beneae 9,000 $ lo4 $ 563
OPptions fOrfEIted. ... ..ovuiieiiriiieiriec et (244) 143 491
Balance, end Of YEAT.......cociiiiiiiiiieieee et 8,756 143 491
Options exercisable, end Of YEar........ccocoririiiiriiiiiicec e —

Weighted-average fair value of options granted (in New Taiwan dollars) ................ $ 77

Information about outstanding options as of December 31, 2010 was as follows: (As of December 31, 2008 and 2009: None)

December 31, 2010

Range of Exercise Price (In Dollars)

NT$ US$ Weighted-average Remaining Contractual Life (Years)
$143 $4.91 9.33

Options granted in 2010 were priced using the Black-Scholes pricing model and the inputs to the model were as follows:

(Unit: Dollars)

Market value per share — grant date............coeeeieiririeieirieieiieee e NT$155 (approximately US$5.32)
EXEICISE PIICE wuvveuiuiieieieieieteiet ettt ettt ettt ettt s et et s et et e e s esesen e s et ese s seseneeseseseneesesenennsesann NT$164 (approximately US$5.63)
Expected volatility... 51.65%-52.01%
Expected life 6-7 years

Expected dividend yield..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e —
1.44%-1.51%

Risk-free interest rate

Expected volatility is based on the historical stock price volatility of similar industries.

Compensation cost of employee stock options was NT$143,337 thousand (approximately US$4,921 thousand) for the year ended
December 31, 2010 (for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2009: None).

For the year ended December 31, 2010, forfeiture of stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2010 due to
termination of employment was 2.71%. As of December 31, 2010, the estimated percentages of forfeiture due to termination of
employment over the remaining vesting period were 2%-5%.

On December 21, 2010, for the second time, the board of directors approved 10,000 options to be granted to qualified employees
of the Company. Each option entitled the holder to subscribe for one thousand common shares of TPKH when exercisable. The options
granted were valid for 10 years and exercisable at certain percentages after the second anniversary year from the grant date. This proposal
was approved in letter No. 0990072201 issued by the FSC on December 30, 2010. As of February 18, 2011, the employee stock option
has not been issued.

15. INCOME TAXES

TPKH is not subject to income or other taxes in the Cayman Islands and its subsidiaries are subject to taxes of jurisdiction where
they are located.
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A reconciliation of income tax expense based on income before income tax at statutory rates and current income tax payable was
as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Income tax expense of entities in the consolidated financial
statements at the Statutory TALES ......cooveveverrverereeriereeereereeenes $ 16,313 $ 255,732 $ 737,436 $ 25,315
Tax effect on adjusting items:
Permanent differences ..........cccoovveeevievieeiieiiecieee e (3,894) 8,255 (42,990) (1,476)
Temporary differences.........cococvevveiecrieinenieincieereeeecee 3,953 (24,923) 111,917 3,842
Current iNCOME taX EXPENSE.......erererrerrruerueierenreeesereeeesenseneenens 16,372 239,064 806,363 27,681
L0SS carryfOrwards .........cccoeeveerieieinienieencieeeceee e (13,467) — (1,111) (38)
Investment tax CIeditS.......c.ccvvrerierirerieerieeieeiieeeeeeieesreeeaeereenns (1,453) — (15,618) (536)
Tax refund receivable from merger ..........c.coeceeeveueernieeccnnnnne — (1,446) — —
Withholding taX .....oveveieieeeiiieieieieiee s 17) (175,566) (358,332) (12,301)
Income tax Payable........cceuiruiirieiririeiries e $ 1,435 $ 62,052 $ 431,302 $ 14,806
Income tax Payable........ccceoivueueiririeieiieeeeeeieeee e $ 1,452 $ 63,526 $ 431,306 $ 14,806
Tax refund receivable (included in other current assets) a7 (1,474) “4) —
Income tax refundable...........ccooveeveeeiiieiiceieeeee e $ 1,435 $ 62,052 $ 431,302 $ 14,806
(Concluded)

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Current income tax expense. w3 16,372 $ 239,064 $ 806,363 $ 27,681
LoSS carryforwards ........cccoceveereerieinienieineeeeecee e (13,467) — (1,111) (38)
Investment tax CIditS.......c.cccvierierireiieerieeieeiieeseeereesreeeaeereenns (1,453) — (15,618) (536)
Adjustments fOr prior Years’ taX ........cocecevereeeeerierereneeeseneeens 1,653 2,535 (4,311) (148)
Unused tax credits in PRC .......cccoviiiiiiiiiiieecee e —_ 6,015 —_ —_
Deferred iNCOME taX ......viievuiiiiiiiiiecieeeceeeeeeeee ettt 2,184 4,082 403,644 13,857
ONETS 1.ttt be e ene s — — 15,677 538
Exchange differences........c..ocoeeeeveecninnceinineccneicceneeceenes — 2,446 (19,199) (659)
INCOME tAX EXPEIMSE ..vvvevevireriitieteteieteeeeeteeeeeteeeteeeeeseeseeeeeeeeeeeneas $ 5,289 $ 254,142 $ 1,185,445 $ 40,695

For the subsidiaries in the ROC during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Legislative Yuan of the ROC
passed the following amendments to tax laws:

a. In January 2009, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of Article 39 of the Income Tax Law, which extends the
operating loss carryforward period from 5 years to 10 years.

b. In May 2009, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduced a
profit-seeking enterprise’s income tax rate from 25% to 20%, effective from January 1, 2010

c. Under Article 10 of the Statute for Industrial Innovation (SII) passed by the Legislative Yuan in April 2010, a
profit-seeking enterprise may deduct up to 15% of its research and development expenditures from its income tax payable
for the fiscal year in which these expenditures are incurred, but this deduction should not exceed 30% of the income tax
payable for that fiscal year. This incentive took effect from January 1, 2010 and is effective till December 31, 2019.

d. In May 2010, the Legislative Yuan passed amendment of Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduces a profit-seeking
enterprise’s income tax rate from 20% to 17%, effective from January 1, 2010.
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Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Current
Investment taxX CTEdItS......c.veveveeveereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens $ 21,779 $ 24,048 $ 28,074 $ 964
Bonus to emplOYees .......c.ccoveeieiireniiireieincee e — 18,237 9,805 337
L 0SS CATyFOrwards .........cceevveriereeenieirenieieesiee e — — 31,889 1,095
Unrealized allowance for loss on inventories ...........cc......... —_ 1,071 65,044 2,233
Unrealized exchange 10SSes......c..oevveererieinenicinenieiecieene — 77 10,233 351
ONETS ottt 23 456 64,783 2,223
21,802 43,889 209,828 7,203
Less: Valuation allowance............cccoeevveevieeiieviesiecreeeieeenen (8,988) (24,048) (9,500) (326)
Deferred income tax asSets - CUITENL ........c..cevveeveevreeeeeerneeereenns 12,814 19,841 200,328 6,877
Deferred income tax liabilities - current
Unrealized exchanged ains..........coccoeevevveivenieiincneiecnienne (2,082) — — —
Equity in earnings of iNVEStee ..........ccvevveirrenieiriereeinenenne — — (510,763) (17,534)
Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) - current....................... $ 10,732 $ 19,841 $ (310,435) $  (10,657)
Noncurrent
Investment taX CIEdILS......c.ocvivevueerieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneens $ 103,106 $ 94,511 $ 65,415 $ 2,246
L 0SS CarryfOrwards .........cceeevereeierenieerenieeeeee e 45,652 37,516 — —
ONETS .ttt 2,800 2,530 1,767 60
Deferred income tax assets- NONCUITENE .........c.evevrveverrreerennns $ 151,558 $ 134,557 $ 67,182 $ 2,306
The tax rates for calculating deferred taxes were as follows:
December 31
2008 2009 2010
TPKT, TAS and GPSC.....cccooiiiieieiiieeeeeeeeee e 25% 20% 17%
TPKC, TPKL, TPKS, OTX, RSO and RST..........ccccooeeunenn — Approximately 11%  Approximately 12%

Pursuant to the tax legislation applicable to foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC, TPKH’s subsidiaries in the PRC were entitled
to an exemption from PRC income tax for two years starting from their first profit-making year after utilizing all loss carryforward and
thereafter, a 50% relief from PRC income tax for the next three years. The first profit-making year of TPKC and OTX was 2007.

The PRC government published the Enterprise Income Tax Law in March 2007, and the Implementation Rules of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law and the Notice No. 39 (2007) of the State Council (collectively, the "New Tax Law”) in December 2007.

Foreign-invested enterprise in the PRC that have unused tax benefits as of the start of the implementation of the New Tax Law on
January 1, 2008 are allowed to continue to use their remaining tax benefits. However, under the New Tax Law, all new enterprises
regardless of the profit level will start their first tax exemption year from 2008. Accordingly, TPKL and TPKS started their tax-exemption
benefit from 2008. Furthermore, the tax rate of TPKH’s subsidiaries in the PRC gradually rises to the newly enacted tax rate of 25% in a
five-year transition period.

As of December 31, 2010, investment tax credits of TPKT were comprised of:

Remaining Creditable Expiry

Laws and Statutes Tax Credit Source Total Creditable Amount Amount Year
NT$ US$ NT$ US$
Statute for Upgrading Industries.... Purchase of machinery $ 103 $ 4 8 103 $ 4 2012
and equipment
Research and 28,074 964 28,074 964 2011
development 26,666 915 26,666 915 2012
expenditures 38,646 1,327 38,646 1,327 2013

$ 93489 $ 3210 $ 93489 $ 3,210
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Loss carryforwards of TPKT as of December 31, 2010 were comprised of:

Unused Amount Expiry Year
NT$ US$
$ 32,019 $ 1,099 2014
84,227 2,891 2015
61,893 2,125 2016
9,442 324 2017
$ 187,581 $ 6,439

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the balance of the imputation credits which could be allocated to TPKT’s shareholders
amounted to NT$553 thousand, NT$3,726 thousand and NT$3,726 thousand (approximately US$128 thousand), respectively.

According to the Income Tax Law of the ROC, when TPKT distributes earnings to non-ROC resident shareholders, TPKT should
calculate tax credit for use of non-ROC resident shareholders based on the 10% tax on undistributed earnings. The non-ROC resident
shareholders could use the tax credit to settle their tax payable on the dividend they received.

The income tax returns of TPKT through 2007 have been assessed by the tax authorities.

16. PERSONNEL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Personnel
SALATY . $ 944,733 $ 1,601,110 $ 3,093,897 $ 106,210
22,645 31,608 65,199 2,238
45,623 51,611 74,019 2,541
103,617 126,727 1,456,154 49,988
$ 1,116,618 $ 1,811,056 $ 4,689,269 $ 160,977
Depreciation.........e.eevveeeeeirieierenieieieeisee e $ 358,572 $ 590,587 $ 969,079 $ 33,267
AMOTTHZALION .t $ 140,792 $ 108,988 $ 90,280 $ 3,100
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17.  EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”)

The numerators and denominators used in calculating basic EPS were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2008

Income for the year

Basic EPS and diluted EPS

Income for the year attributable to common
shareholders plus effect of potential dilutive
common stock

Year ended December 31, 2009

Income for the year

Basic EPS

Income for the year attributable to common
shareholders

Effect of dilutive potential common stock

Bonus to employees

Diluted EPS

Income for the year attributable to common
shareholders plus effect of potential dilutive
common stock

Year ended December 31, 2010

Income for the year

Basic EPS

Income for the year attributable to common
shareholders

Effect of dilutive potential common stock

Employee stock option

Bonus to employees

Diluted EPS
Income for the year attributable to common

shareholders plus effect of potential dilutive

common stock

Amounts (Numerator)

Shares

EPS

Before Income Tax

After Income Tax

(In Thousands)

Before Income Tax

After Income Tax

NT$ US$ NT$ US$

$ 393,786 $ 388,497

$ 393,786 $ 388,497 189,000

$2,564,155 $2,310,013

$2,571,149 $2,317,007 189,000
— — 7,068

$2,571,149 $2,317,007 196,068

$5,933,324 § 203,684 $4,747,879 $ 162,989

$5,926,072 $ 203,435 $4,741,555 $ 162,772 199,003
— — — — 4,623
— — — — 2,293

$5,926,072 $ 203,435 $4,741,555 $ 162,772 205,919

NT$ US$ NT$ US$
2.08 $ 2.06
13.60 $ 12.26
13.11 $ 11.82
29.78 $ 1.028 2383 §$ 0.82
28.78 $ 099 § 23.03§ 0.79

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation (ARDF) issued Interpretations 2007-052 that require companies to

recognize bonuses paid to employees, directors and supervisors as compensation expenses. These bonuses were previously recorded as
appropriations from earnings. If the company may settle the bonus to employees by cash or shares, the company should presume that the
entire amount of the bonus will be settled in shares and the resulting potential shares should be included in the weighted average number
of shares outstanding used in the calculation of diluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive effect. The number of shares is estimated by

dividing the entire amount of the bonus by the closing price (before initial public offering, by the net equity per share on the basis of the
most recently audited financial report) of the shares at the balance sheet date. Such dilutive effect of the potential shares should be
included in the calculation of diluted EPS until the shareholders resolve the number of shares to be distributed to employees at their

meeting in the following year.

The weighted average number of shares outstanding for EPS calculation has been retroactively adjusted for the redenominating of
issued share capital and the capitalization of share premium (see Note 13), which had been approved in the meeting of shareholders on
January 8, 2010. As a result of this adjustment, the basic EPS after income tax for the year ended December 31, 2008 decreased from
NT$2.16 to NT$2.06. Furthermore, the basic and diluted EPS after income tax for the year ended December 31, 2009 also decreased from
NT$12.87 to NT$12.26 and from NT$12.39 to NT$11.82, respectively.
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18.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a.

Related parties and their relationships with the Company

Related Party Relationship with the Company
Balda AG .....ccocovveviiie . Related party in substance
Balda Solution (Suzhou) Ltd. .....c..ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceceseeecee e Related party in substance
Balda Solution (Beijing) Ltd.......ccecirieiririeieiieiieseeeeee et Related party in substance
Touch Video MONItOr COTP. ...c..eviuirieiiiirieieieetet ettt ettt sttt st aeeene Related party in substance
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) COIP. .....ccueeririeiriinieinienieiteteeeiteieseee et eeesaeeene Related party in substance
Taiwan Video & MONItOr COIP. ...c.ccuevieiriiieiirieieieieieieieteit ettt en e Related party in substance
Vision Optical Technologies (Xiamen) INC. ......c.cocoeiinirieininineininieeiieeeeeceeeeaene Related party in substance
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd.........ccoccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecceeeceee e Related party in substance
TVM GIODAL COTP. ..ttt ettt ettt st Related party in substance
Smart Peak International Limited ..........ccooeoieiviiiiiiniiiininiiiiencieecee e Related party in substance
Magna Gain Management (Hong Kong) Limited...........ccccocvviiiiinineiiiiniiiinicicicieene Related party in substance
Max Gain Management Limited.........c.ccooiiiiiiiininiiiiiicciceceeeeeeecee e Related party in substance
ACE Advance Enterprises Ltd. ......ccccoeiririiininiiiniieieeeeee e Related party in substance

Pan Shi (Xiamen) Real Estate Development Inc. . Related party in substance

J1aNE ChA0 RUI ettt Chairman
PENZ YUN LANG c.eoniiiiiitieiiiee ettt ettt et es e ebe s eneeseeneneene Spouse of chairman

Significant transactions with related parties:

2008 2009 2010
% to % to % to
Related Party Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
1) Purchases
Balda Solution (Beijing) Ltd. .............. $ — — 3 — —  $201,768 $ 6,926 —
Smart Peak International Limited........ — — — — 20,955 719 —
Balda Solution (Suzhou) Ltd... . 4,006 —_ 13,612 —_ 1,452 50 —_
Touch Video Monitor Corp. ................ 9,995 — 10,073 — 81 3 —
OLhETS ..o 18 — 17 — 33 1 —
$ 14,019 —  $23,702 —  $224289 $ 7,699 —
2) Net sales
Balda Solution (Beijing) Ltd. .............. $ — — 3 — —  $859,066 $29,491 1
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen)
COIP. ittt 45,712 — 37,815 — 48,496 1,665 —
Balda Solution (Suzhou) Ltd............... 1,284 — — — 40,017 1,374 —
Smart Peak International Limited........ — — — — 9,817 337 —
OthETS .o — — 1,360 — 73 3 —
$ 46,996 —  $39,175 —  $957,469 $ 32,870 1
3) Rental disbursement (overhead)
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd........ $ — — $ 3,182 —  $ 58490 $ 2,008 52
Vision Optical Technologies
(Xiamen) InC. .....cooeevivereeieieeieeiennns — — — — 27,884 957 25
$ — — $ 3,182 — $ 86,374 $ 2,965 77
4) Rental disbursement (operating
expense)
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd........ $ — — $ 6,894 — $26843 $ 921 22
Touch Video Monitor Corp. ................ — — — — 17,957 616 15
Vision Optical Technologies
(Xiamen) INC. ...covvevvvveieieieieiene — — — — 13,125 451 11
Pan Shi (Xiamen) Real Estate
Development Inc. ......cccoocveveviennnnne. — — — — 487 17 —
$ — — $ 6,8% —  $ 58412 $ 2,005 43
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2008 2009 2010
% to % to % to
Related Party Amount Total  Amount Total Amount Total
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
5) Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen)
COIP. et $ — — $ 433 — $ 3,583 123 —
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd.. — — 144 — 1,340 46 —
Touch Video Monitor Corp. ................ — — — — 45 2 —
$ — — $ 577 — $ 4968 171 —
6) Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen)
COIP. vt $ 6,452 4 $ — —  $ — — —
Balda Solution (Suzhou) Ltd............... 5,949 3 — — — — —
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd........ — — 929 2 — — —
$ 12,401 7 $ 929 2 3 — — —
7) Accounts receivable
Balda Solution (Beijing) Ltd. .............. $ — — 3 — —  $157,227 5,397 1
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen)
COIP. ettt 1,817 — 5,051 1 6,732 231 —
OLhers ...oeeueeeeieieeeeeeee e 34 — 618 — 256 9 —
$ 1,851 — $ 5,669 1 $164,215 5,637 1
8) Accounts payable
Balda Solution (Beijing) Ltd. .............. $ — —  $ — — $ 24387 837 —
Smart Peak International Limited........ — — 9 — 12,918 443 —
Balda Solution (Suzhou) Ltd............... 4,010 — — — — — —
Touch Video Monitor Corp. ................ 2916 — — — — — —
Others — — 525 — — — —
$ 6,926 — $ 534 — $ 37,305 1,280 —
9) Refundable deposits
BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Ltd........ $ — —  $36,662 47 $ 39,329 1,350 13
Vision Optical Technologies
(Xiamen) IncC. ...ccoeevveveverieeiieieeen, — — 24,689 32 34,494 1,184 11
Taiwan Video & Monitor Corp. .......... — — — — 7,674 263 3
$ — —  $61,351 79 $ 81,497 2,797 27

Terms of purchases from related parties were similar to those from third parties.

The selling prices and collection terms for products sold to related parties were similar to those for products sold to

third parties.

OTX and TPKC leased their manufacturing facilities from BTO Technologies (Xiamen) Inc. The lease terms and
prices were determined in accordance with mutual agreements. The rental expense was paid monthly and classified

under overhead and operating expenses.

TPKS leased its office from Vision Optical Technologies (Xiamen) Inc. The lease terms and payments were

determined in accordance with mutual agreements. The rental expense was paid monthly and classified under

overhead and operating expenses.

TPKT leased its office from Taiwan Video & Monitor Corp. The lease terms and payments were determined in
accordance with mutual agreements. The rental expense was paid monthly and classified under operating expenses.

TPKS and TPKC individually leased their employee dormitories from Pan Shi (Xiamen) Real Estate Development
Inc. The lease terms and payments were determined in accordance with mutual agreements. The rental expense was

paid monthly and classified under operating expenses.

Refundable deposits were made for leasing the manufacturing facilities and offices from related parties for the

period 2009 to 2015.
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10)  Financing from related parties (for year ended December 31, 2010: None)

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Maximum Ending Interest Interest

Balance Balance Expense Rate

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
Max Gain Management Limited..........c.ccccoeuene. $ 295,201 $ 164,000 $ 2,552 5%-6%
Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) Corp. ............... 182,342 — 4,241 7.4%
Balda AG ..o 147,600 —
ACE Advance Enterprises Ltd. ......cccccccovvenennnee. 32,800 — — —
Magan International (Hong Kong) Limited........ 13,940 — — —

$ 671,883 $ 164,000 $ 6,793

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Maximum Ending Interest Interest
Balance Balance Expense Rate
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
Max Gain Management Limited..........cccocevueveve. $ 160,150 $ — $ 585 5%-6%

11) Guarantees

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, guarantees for long-term and short-term loans provided by related parties
were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Beneficiary Ending
Company Balance Guarantor
NT$
TPKC ...t $250,371 Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) Corp.
TPKC ..o 211,991 Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) Corp., Jiang Chao Rui, and Peng Yun Ling
TPKC ..o, 206,675 Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) Corp.
TPKC ....cccoeiiiiiis 143,973 Touch Video Monitor (Xiamen) Corp., Jiang Chao Rui, and Peng Yun Ling
TPKL...coooovviiiiine 38,393 TPKC
(011 1 QT 23,996 TPKC

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Beneficiary Ending

Company Balance Guarantor
NT$

TPKH.....coooveveeeenn $341,120 TPKT and Jiang Chao Rui

TPKH......cccvvve. 193,922 Jiang Chao Rui

TPKL....oooiveierirernnne 83,629 TPKC

TPKL...ootieiereierne 70,363 TPKC

(01 ) QR 2,345 TPKC

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Beneficiary
Company Ending Balance Guarantor
NT$ US$
TPKH.......covvvvee. $4,019,940 $138,000 Jiang Chao Rui
65,000 2,231 Jiang Chao Rui
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19.

20.

Compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
SALATIES ..ttt $ 53,226 $ 70,637 $ 69,890 $ 2,399
BOMUS .ttt — 46,464 9,886 339
Incentive and Others ..........ooovveeeveieeciieeeeeeeeee e 8,900 14,425 60,051 2,061
$ 62,126 $ 131,526 $ 139,827 $ 4,799

The bonus to directors and management personnel for the year ended December 31, 2010 included the estimated bonus to
employees and remuneration to directors, which will be paid in 2011. The actual amount will be determined based on the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting in 2011.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The expiration dates of leases of manufacturing facilities, office facilities and transportation equipment are in 2011 and thereafter.
As of December 31, 2010, the future rentals were as follows:

Year NT$ US$
2011 ettt ettt ettt ettt eae ettt e et et s et eseeae s ensene s ens $ 254,978 $ 8,753
20121 ettt et et b et te e a s b et st ese et ese et e s ene et e b eseeae s e s eae s enes 322,474 11,070
2013 ettt b et a ettt e b e st ese et s et e s ent s et es e ae s eneenesenn 317,630 10,904
20T ettt a et n et n e ae et sttt et s et en e se s eneenesenen 246,109 8,449
2015 and thETEATTET ... ..cueeievietieiieie ettt ettt et be e e s e beeaeenaenas 41,329 1,407
$ 1,182,520 $ 40,583

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values of financial instruments

2008 2009 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Non-derivatives Amount Value Amount Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$ NT$ US$

Assets
CaSh i $ 527,855 $ 527,855 $1,670,865 $1,670,865 $ 5,563,959 $191,004 $ 5,563,959 $191,004
Note and accounts receivable........... 719,992 719,992 835,049 835,049 11,998,886 411,908 11,998,886 411,908
Restricted assets .......coovvevrverveierennns — — 524,496 524,496 13,480 463 13,480 463
Refundable deposits 9,130 9,130 78,051 78,051 303,457 10,417 303,457 10,417
Liabilities
Short-term 10ans.........ccceevvereeevenne 1,845,501 1,845,501 1,649,933 1,649,933 3,408,924 117,024 3,408,924 117,024
Current portion of long-term loans . 211,991 211,991 — — 247,605 8,500 247,605 8,500
Note and accounts payable.............. 2,197,893 2,197,893 2,203,518 2,203,518 13,926,523 478,082 13,926,523 478,082
Accrued expenses 380,812 380,812 630,360 630,360 2,194,103 75,321 2,194,103 75,321
Payable on construction and

CQUIPMENL ... 478,438 478,438 455,459 455,459 2,686,705 92,232 2,686,705 92,232
Other payables - related parties ..... 164,000 164,000 — — — — — —
Long-term 10ans ........cccccevueucerreenenns — — 594900 594,900 3,604,535 123,740 3,604,535 123,740
Guarantee deposits received............. 384 384 21,888 21,888 74,183 2,547 74,183 2,547

Derivatives

Assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss-current ..... 33,902 33,902 — — — — — —
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss-current ..... 30,650 30,650 — — — — — —
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Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments were as follows:

1) The carrying amounts of the following short-term financial instruments approximate their fair values because of their short
maturities: Cash, receivables, restricted assets, short-term loans, notes payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
payable on construction and equipment.

2) The fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss was estimated using valuation techniques.

3) The long-term loans (including current portion of long-term loans) have floating interest rates; thus, the fair values were
equivalent to the carrying amounts.

4) Refundable deposits and guarantee deposits received do not have specific due dates; thus, the fair values were equipment to
the carrying values.

5) Some financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities do not have to disclose their fair value; thus, the
values mentioned above did not represent the total value of the Company.

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, financial assets exposed to fair value interest rate risk amounted to NT$61,140
thousand and NT$822,375 thousand and zero, respectively, financial liabilities exposed to fair value interest rate risk amounted to
zero, zero and NT$125,357 thousand (approximately US$4,303 thousand), respectively; financial assets exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk amounted to NT$464,495 thousand, NT$1,370,755 thousand and NT$5,567,462 thousand (approximately
US$191,125 thousand), respectively; and financial liabilities exposed to cash flow interest rate risk amounted to NT$2,057,492
thousand, NT$2,244,833 thousand and NT$7,135,707 thousand (approximately US$244,961 thousand), respectively.

Recognized gains (losses) arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held for trading were generated
by forward exchange contracts. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, net losses from forward exchange contracts
were NT$13,085 thousand and NT$1,650 thousand, respectively (for the year ended December 31, 2010: None).

The Company entered into forward exchange contracts to manage exposures due to exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations.
The financial risk management objective of the Company is to minimize risks due to changes in fair value or cash flows from
exchange rate fluctuations.

The fair values of forward exchange contracts of the Company were determined by using valuation techniques.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts as of December 31, 2008 were as follows (December 31, 2009 and 2010: None):

Contract Amount Fair Value
Currency Duration (In Thousands) (In Thousands)
December 31, 2008
Non-delivery forward ... Sell RMB/Buy USD 2008.07.16-2009.07.21 RMB96,890/US$15,000 $ 33,902
Currency swap .............. Sell USD/Buy RMB (forward) 2008.07.16-2009.07.17 US$15,000/RMB 102,306 (30,650)

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, the interest income and expense associated with financial assets and
liabilities other than those at FVTPL were NT$5,186 thousand, NT$3,045 thousand and NT$16,044 thousand (approximately
US$551 thousand) of total interest income, and NT$135,217 thousand, NT$68,850 thousand and NT$87,412 thousand
(approximately US$3,001 thousand) of total interest expense, respectively.

Financial risks
1) Market risk

The financial asset exposed to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk resulting from interest rate
fluctuation of the Company is bank deposit with interest rate fluctuations. Thus, the effect is not considered significant.

The Company has set up relevant risk control policies to reduce the risk of financial liabilities exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk.

2) Credit risk

Credit risk is the possible loss due to counter-parties’ default on contracts. The value exposed to credit risk is the
outstanding balance of the account. In order to reduce the credit risk of financial assets, the Company chooses to deal with
counter-parties with good credit and by performing a series of control procedures for derivative transactions.

3) Liquidity and cash flow risk

The Company’s operating capitals are deemed sufficient to meet the cash flow demand; therefore, liquidity and cash flow
risks are not considered to be significant.
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21. SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
a. Industry financial information

The Company is a vertically integrated touch and display solutions provider specialized in touch and lens modules for total
integrated solutions. The integrated solutions account for more than 90% of Company’s operating revenue, net income and indentified
assets. Therefore, the disclosure of industry financial information is not applicable to the Company.

b. Geographic information

The Company’s operation outside of Asia is less than 10% of the total sales and total assets. Therefore, the disclosure of
geographic information is not applicable to the Company.

c. Export sales
Year Ended December 31
Area 2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
NOIrth AMETICA ..o $ 6,654,551 $11,694,580 $45,273,779 $ 1,554,198
ASIA 1ttt 6,241,713 7,014,171 14,324,974 491,760
BUIOPE ..ottt 46,081 — — —
$12,942,345 $18,708,751 $59,598,753 $ 2,045,958
d. Major customers representing at least 10% of net sales
Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 2010
Customer Amount % Amount % Amount %
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
Customer A ........cccceuee $6,337,431 49 $8,515,272 46 $43,362,384 $1,488,599 73
Customer B.........cc........ 4,247,533 33 3,806,958 20 6,217,981 213,456 10
Customer C.......cccoeuene. — — 2,857,685 15 1,710,650 58,725 3

22. BUSINESS COMBINATION

TPKH and Magna International Inc. Group (Magna) owned the joint venture of Optera TPK Holding Pte. Ltd. (“OTH”) and each
held 50% equity interest of OTH. OTH owned 100% of equity interest of OTX, which is engaged in ITO glass research, development,
manufacturing and sales activities. TPKH acquired the other 50% equity interest of OTH and certain assets of Magna (the “Purchased
Assets”) on March 12, 2010 for US$35,000 thousand of which US$31,000 thousand was paid in cash and the other US$4,000 thousand
paid in standby letter of credit with the term of one year. As of December 31, 2010, the standby letter of credit had been settled.

The acquisition was accounted for under the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 25, “Business Combinations
- Accounting Treatment under Purchase Method,” summarized as follows:

Amount
NT$ US$
ACQUISTHON COSLS..vvettttteteietetete ettt ebebeee $ 1,026,192 $ 35,228
Less: Fair value of PUrchased ASSELS .......ccoccvevvervierierieiieereeeesteeteeseeseessesseeeessesseesseseenas (740,572) (25,423)

GOOAWILL .. $ 285,620 $ 9,805
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The consolidated income for the year ended December 31, 2010 included the operating result of the subsidiary acquired in March
2010. The pro forma operating results of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, assuming the Company
acquired 50% equity interest of OTH at the beginning of 2008 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
NEL SALES vttt $13,334,055 $19,222,869 $59,677,978 $ 2,048,678
Income before extraordinary income.............coc...... $ 428,553 $ 2,433,048 $ 4,755,603 $ 163,254
Net income attributable to shareholders of parent
company - before tax .......c.ooeoeeeereeerceerenenns $ 433,843 $ 2,707,600 $ 5,943,124 $ 204,021
Net income attributable to shareholders of parent
COmPany - after tax ........ooeoeeeereeueneeeiercieenenenes $ 428,553 $ 2,440,043 $ 4,761,927 $ 163,472

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Before After Before After
Tax Tax Tax Tax Before Tax After Tax
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$ NT$ US$

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share... $ 230 $ 227 $ 1433 $ 1291 $ 298 $ 103 $ 2390 $ 0.82

Diluted earnings per
share ......cocovvvvneninne 2.30 2.27 13.81 12.44 28.86 0.99 23.09 0.79

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to the demand of business operation, promotion and integration, on November 19 and December 17, 2010, the board of
directors approved several resolutions as follows:

a. Improve disposed of its 100 % equity interest in TPKT and GPSC, for US$26,546 thousand and NT$69,747 thousand to
TPKA and TPKT, respectively. The re-organization had been completed on January 27, 2011.

b. On January 28, 2011, RUSL and Jan Ann Co., Ltd. (Cayman) jointly set up and invested US$3,500 thousand in TPK
Specialty Materials Limited (TPKM HK). They obtained 51% and 49% equity interest of TPKM HK, respectively.

c. On January 26, 2011, OTH and TPK HK individually invested US$10,700 thousand and US$19,500 thousand in OTX;
therefore, OTH equity interest of OTX decreased to 71.43%, and TPK HK increased to 28.57%.

d. On January 21, 2011, TPKA set up and invested NT$378,000 thousand in Che Tung Co., Ltd.

e. TPK HK set up a Taiwan branch and injected NT$14,000 thousand capital for operation.

f. On February 14, 2011, TPK HK set up and invested US$60,000 thousand in a 100% owned subsidiary in Xiamen named
TPK Glass Solutions (Xiamen) Inc.
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24. OTHERS
Significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars were as follow:
(Amount in Thousands)

December 31

2008 2009 2010
Foreign Exchange U.S. Foreign Exchange U.S. Foreign Exchange U.S.
Currencies Rate Dollars Currencies Rate Dollars Currencies Rate Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary items
RMB...cooiieieeeieee $ 56,232 6.8346 $ 8,227 $248,286 6.8282  $36,362 $ 254,594 6.6227 $ 38,443
NTD oo 40,241 32.8000 1,227 65,905  32.0300 2,058 60,937  29.1300 2,092
TPY oo — — — 740  92.4387 8 14,631  85.7795 171
KRW oot — — — 35,472 1,160.5072 31 54,350 1,159.9694 47
EUR....covviiieeee 9 0.7109 12 9 0.6945 13 3 0.7803 4
— — — 1,476 7.7630 190 — — —
62 1.4456 43 — — — — — —
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
RMB...coooiieiieieee 194,832 6.8346 28,507 213,626 6.8282 31,286 1,256,556 6.6227 189,735
38,836 32.8000 1,184 105,953  32.0300 3,308 514,898  29.1300 17,676
1 0.7109 2 70,101  92.4387 758 1,482,399  85.7795 17,282

25.  ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures required by the Securities and Futures Bureau of the ROC for the Company and its
investees:

a. Financings provided: Table 1 (attached)

b. Endorsements/guarantees provided: Table 2 (attached)

[ Marketable securities held: Table 3 (attached)

d. Marketable securities acquired or disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:

Table 4 (attached)

e. Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: (None)

f. Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: (None)

g. Total purchases from or sales to related parties of at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: Table 5 (attached)

h. Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: Table 6 (attached)

i Names, locations, and related information of investees over which the Company exercises significant influence: Table 7
(attached)

J- Derivative transactions of investees over which the Company has a controlling interest: (Note 20)

k. Investments in Mainland China
1) Name of the investees in Mainland China, main businesses and products, paid-in capital, method of investment,

information on inflow or outflow of capital, percentage of ownership, investment income or loss, ending balance of
investment, dividends remitted by the investee, and the limit of investment in Mainland China: Table 8 (attached)

2) Significant direct or indirect transactions with the investees, the amount and the percentage of related account
payable/receivable ending balance, gain and loss on disposal of assets, prices and terms of payment, unrealized gain
or loss: Tables 5 and 6 (attached)

3) Endorsements, guarantees or collateral directly or indirectly provided to the investees: Table 2 (attached)

4) Financings directly or indirectly provided to the investees: Table 1 (attached)

5) Other transactions that significantly impacted current year’s profit or loss or financial position: None

L. Intercompany relationship and significant intercompany transactions: Table 9 (attached)
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APPENDIX A — THE SECURITIES MARKET OF THE ROC

The information presented in this section has been extracted from publicly available documents that
have not been prepared or independently verified by us, the Initial Purchasers or any of our respective
affiliates or advisors in connection with this Offering.

In September 1960, the ROC government established the ROC Securities and Exchange Commission to
supervise and control all aspects of the existing domestic securities market and the TWSE began to take shape
soon thereafter. In the 1970’s and the early 1980’s, the ROC government implemented a number of steps
designed to upgrade the quality and importance of the ROC securities markets, such as encouraging listing on
the TWSE and establishing an over-the-counter securities exchange. In the mid-1980’s, the ROC government
began to revise its laws and regulations in a manner designed to facilitate the gradual internationalization of
the ROC securities markets. In 1997, the ROC Securities and Exchange Commission was renamed the ROC
Securities and Futures Commission. Effective July 1, 2004, the ROC Securities and Futures Commission has
been renamed the ROC Securities and Futures Bureau of the FSC, and its supervisory authority has been
transferred from the Ministry of Finance to the Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan.

The Taiwan Stock Exchange

In 1961, the ROC Securities and Futures Bureau established the TWSE to provide a marketplace for
securities trading. The TWSE is a corporation owned by government-controlled and private banks and
enterprises. The TWSE is independent of the entities transacting business through it, each of which pays to
the TWSE a user’s fee. Subject to limited exceptions, all transactions in listed securities by brokers, traders
and integrated securities firms must be made through the TWSE.

The TWSE commenced operations in 1962. During the early 1980s, the ROC Securities and Futures
Bureau actively encouraged new listings on the TWSE and the number of listed companies has grown from
119 in 1983 to 758 as of December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, the market capitalization of
companies listed on the TWSE was approximately NT$23.8 trillion.

Historically, ROC companies have listed only shares and bonds on the TWSE. However, the ROC
Securities and Futures Bureau has encouraged companies to list other types of securities. In 1988, the Ministry
of Finance permitted the issuance of ROC’s first exchangeable bonds. Since 1989, there have been offerings
of domestic convertible bonds and convertible preferred shares. In addition, beneficiary units evidencing
beneficiary interests in closed-end investment funds and bonds issued by super-national financial institutions
are also listed on the TWSE or traded on the GreTai Securities Market (which is discussed below). The ROC
Securities and Futures Bureau also has promulgated regulations which permit foreign issuers to list certain
securities on the TWSE.

The TWSE considers the following factors when evaluating a company for listing:

° the number and distribution of shareholders, including the diversification of such shareholders;

° length of time in business;

° amount of paid-in capital; and

° profitability.

However, special listing criteria apply to technology companies and key businesses that are engaged in
the national economic development.
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The following table shows for the periods indicated information relating to the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Weighted Index.

No. of Listed

Companies at  Stock Trading Index at
Period Period End Values Index High Index Low Period End
(in NT$
billions)

1996.....ooiiiiiiiiiic 375 12,907.6 6,982.81 4,690.22 6,933.94
L1907 e 404 37,241.2 10,116.84 6,820.35 8,187.27
TOO8 .. 437 29,619.0 9,277.09 6,251.38 6,418.43

1999 .. 462 29,291.0 8,608.91 5,475.00 8,448.84
2000 ..c..icieeieiieeeeee e 531 30,526.6 10,202.20 4,614.60 4,739.09
2001 e 584 18,354.9 6,104.20 3,446.30 5,551.24
2002 ...t 638 21,874.0 6,462.30 3,850.04 4,452.45
2003 .. 669 20,333.2 6,142.32 4,139.50 5,890.69
2004 ..o 697 23,875.4 7,034.10 5,316.87 6,139.69
2005 ettt 691 18,818.9 6,575.53 5,632.97 6,548.34
2000 ...t 688 23,900.4 7,823.72 6,257.80 7,823.70
2007 .o 698 33,043.9 9,809.88 7,344.56 8,506.28
2008 ...t 718 26,1154 9,295.20 4,089.93 4,592.22
2009 ... 741 29,680.5 8,188.11 4,242.61 8,188.11

2010 et 758 28,218.7 8,972.50 7,071.67 8,972.50
2011 (January - March) .....c.cccceeevenneee 761 7,162.6 9,145.35 8,234.78 8,683.30

Source: Taiwan Stock Exchange; World Federation of Stock Exchanges (www.fibv.com) for “Number of Listed Companies at the Period
End” information.

The ROC GreTai Securities Market

To complement the TWSE, the GreTai Securities Market was established in September 1982 on the
initiative of the ROC Securities and Futures Bureau to encourage the trading of securities of companies that
do not qualify for listing on the TWSE. As of December 31, 2010, 564 companies had listed equity securities
on the GreTai Securities Market and the total market capitalization of those companies was NT$1,985 billion.

Price Limits, Commissions, Transaction Tax and Other Matters

The TWSE has placed limits on block trading and on the range of daily price movements. According to
the TWSE’s block trading guidelines, transactions in one class of securities that involve 500 or more trading
lots or trading amounts exceeding NT$15 million, and transactions involving five or more different classes of
securities and trading amounts exceeding NT$15 million must be registered and executed in accordance with
the guidelines. Fluctuations in the price of stock traded on the TWSE are currently subject to a restriction of
7% above and below the previous day closing price (or reference price set by the TWSE if the previous day
closing price is not available because of lack of trading activity). However, these restrictions have been
modified from time to time by the ROC FSC based on market conditions. The ROC FSC has announced that
limitations on price fluctuations may be relaxed with a view to eventually abolish all share price fluctuation
controls. Brokerage commission can be set at any rate of the transaction price, provided that any rate
exceeding 0.1425% shall be reported to the TWSE and notified to the client in advance. A securities
transaction tax, currently levied at 0.3% of the transaction price, is payable by the seller of equity securities.
Such securities transaction taxes are withheld at the time of the transaction giving rise to such tax. Sales of
shares of companies listed on the TWSE are currently sold in round lots of 1,000 shares. Investors who desire
to sell less than 1,000 shares of a listed company occasionally experience delays in effecting such sales.
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Regulation and Supervision

The ROC FSC has extensive regulatory authority over public companies. Public companies are generally
required to obtain the deemed approval from the ROC FSC for all securities offerings. The ROC FSC has
promulgated regulations requiring, unless otherwise exempted, periodic reporting of financial and operating
information by all public companies. In addition, the ROC FSC establishes standards for financial reporting
and carries out licensing and supervision of participants in the ROC securities market.

The ROC FSC has responsibility for implementing ROC Securities and Exchange Act and for overall
administration of governmental policies in the ROC securities market. It has extensive regulatory authority
over the offering, issuance and trading of securities. In addition, ROC Securities and Exchange Act
specifically empowers the ROC FSC to promulgate necessary rules. ROC Securities and Exchange Act
prohibits market manipulation. For example, it permits an issuer to recover short-swing trading profits made
through purchases and sales within six months by directors, managerial personnel, supervisors, as well as the
spouses, minor children and nominees of these parties, and shareholders (together with their spouses, minor
children and nominees) who hold 10% or more of the shares of the issuer. ROC Securities and Exchange Act
prohibits trading by “insiders” based on non-public information that materially affects share price movement
prior to publication of such information and within 18 hours after publication of such information. “Insiders”
include:

° directors, supervisors, managers, as well as the spouses, minor children and nominees of these
parties, and shareholders (together with their spouses, minor children and nominees) who hold
10% or more of the issuing company’s shares and any individual designated by a governmental or
corporate director or supervisor to act on its behalf;

° any person who has learned material, non-public information due to an occupational or controlling
relationship with the issuing company;

° any person who has discharged from the status or position in the first and second bullet points for
not more than six months; and

° any person who has learned material, non-public information from any of the above.

Sanctions include imprisonment. In addition, damages may be awarded to persons injured by the
transaction. ROC Securities and Exchange Act also imposes criminal liability on certified public accountants
and lawyers who make false certifications in their examination and audit of an issuer’s contracts, reports and
other documents related to securities transactions. The ROC FSC regulations require that financial reports of
listed companies be audited by accounting firms consisting of at least three certified public accountants and be
signed by at least two certified public accountants.

In addition, ROC Securities and Exchange Act provides for civil liability for material misstatements or
omissions made by issuers and regulation of tender offers. The ROC FSC does not have criminal or civil
enforcement powers under ROC Securities and Exchange Act. Criminal actions may be pursued only by
government prosecutors. Civil actions may only be brought by plaintiffs who assert that they have suffered
damages. The ROC FSC is empowered to curb abuses and violations of laws and regulations only through
administrative measures including:

° issuance of warnings;

° temporary suspension of operation;

° imposition of administrative fines; and
o revocation of licenses.

In addition to providing a market for securities trading, the TWSE reviews applications by ROC issuers
to list securities on the TWSE. If issuers of listed securities violate laws and regulations or encounter
significant difficulties, the TWSE may, with the approval of the ROC FSC, delist the securities of these
issuers.
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Transfer Restrictions

Under the ROC Securities and Exchange Act, each director, supervisor, manager, as well as their
respective spouses, minor children and nominees, and any shareholder who, together with his or her spouse,
minor children or nominees, holds more than 10% of the common shares of a public company (i.e., a major
shareholder), must report, on a monthly basis, any change in that person’s shareholding to the issuer of the
common shares; and each director, supervisor, manager or major shareholder holding such common shares for
more than a six-month period may transfer any common shares listed on the TWSE or traded on the GreTai
Securities Market and should report to the ROC FSC his or her intent to transfer such common shares at least
three days before the intended transfer, unless the number of common shares to be transferred is less than
10,000 common shares.
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